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MANLY WARRINGAH FOOTBALL ASSOCIATION Ltd.
(Established 1947)

Seventy Sixth Annual General Meeting Final Notice of Meeting

Notice is hereby given to the Members of the MWFA Ltd that the 76th Annual General Meeting of 
the Manly Warringah Football Association Ltd. will be held at the

Manly Warringah Football Club (101 South Creek Rd, Dee Why)
Monday 27th November 2023 commencing 7.30 p.m.

AGENDA

1. Welcome and confirmation of Chair for the meeting
2. Attendees (as per attendance book)
3. Apologies
4. Quorum
5. Proxy appointments
6. Confirm the Minutes of the 2022 A.G.M
7. Matters arising from the 2022 A.G.M. Minutes
8. Presentation of Meritorious Service Awards
9. Presentation and adoption of the 2023 Annual Report
10. Presentation of the 2023 Financial Report
11. Adoption of 2024 Budget (including consideration of Honorariums)
12. Presentation of the 2023 Auditors Report
13. Appointment of Auditor for 2024 (Watson Turner Corporate Services Pty Ltd)
14. Questions regarding the MWFA Ltd business and operations
15. Election of Directors
16. Confirmation of Committees
 a. Finance and Audit Committee
 b. Disciplinary Committee
 c. Appeals Committee
 d. Competitions Committee
 e. Registration and Grading Committee
17. Special Resolutions – Notice of Motion
 a. Adoption of 2024 Playing Rules
18. Affiliation of Clubs

Please join the MWFA Board for refreshments.
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MWFA Board

David was elected to the MWFA Board for the 2020 season  
and  was  elected  Chairman. Previously David served as a 
member of the MWFA Management Committee as VP (senior 
men) and the Executive Committee for four seasons from 
2014-2017. David also served on the committees of Seaforth 
FC and Beacon Hill FC and coached with Wakehurst FC, 
Beacon Hill FC, Pittwater RSL FC and Manly United FC.

Linda was elected to the MWFA Board as part of the 
transitional agreement from the MWFA Executive to the 
MWFA Board for the 2020 season. Linda was a member of 
the MWFA Executive for the 2018 and 2019 seasons but 
previously  she  served  on  the  MWFA Management   
Committee and Executive Committee from 1991 – 2005 
including 11 seasons as MWFA President. Linda also 
served on the CC Strikers FC committee and the Football 
NSW Board and is a Life Member of the MWFA and a 
recipient of the Football NSW State Award and George 
Churchward Medal.

Joseph was elected to the MWFA Board as part of the 
transitional agreement from the MWFA Executive to the 
MWFA Board for the 2020 season. Joseph was a member of 
the MWFA Executive, serving as Treasurer from 2016-2019 
and was also previously a member of the committee at 
Wakehurst FC.

Joseph Sorbara - Director / Treasurer

Linda Ward -  Director/Secretary

David Wilson - Chairman

Position Name

Chairman David Wilson

Director / Secretary Linda Ward
Director / Treasurer Joseph Sorbara

Director Rhonda Ferguson
Director Terry Gatward
Director David Anglicas
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Rhonda Ferguson - Director

Terry Gatward - Director

David Anglicas - Director

Rhonda was elected to the MWFA Board for the 2020 
season. Previously Rhonda was a member of the MWFA 
Management Committee where she was the Women VP 
from 2003-2015. Rhonda is a Life Member of the MWFA 
and also served on the committee at Harbord Seasiders 
United FC.

Terry was elected to the MWFA Board for the 2020 season. 
Previously Terry served as a member of the MWFA 
Management Committee as the VP Seniors from 2017-2019, 
where he was instrumental in the roll out of the Defib 
program across the MWFA. Terry has also served on the 
committee of Many Vale FC.

David was elected to the MWFA Board in 2020 after 
previously serving 5 years on the MWFA Management  
Committee  as  Vice  President of Seniors between 2001-
2005  and 10 years on the Appeals Committee between 
2011-2020. David also served on the committee of St 
Augustines FC.
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History of Board Members 

Year Chairman Secretary/
Director

Treasurer/
Director

Director Director Director Director/
Manly United

2020 David 
Wilson

Linda 
Ward

Joseph 
Sorbara

Rhonda 
Ferguson

Terry 
Gatward

David 
Anglicas

Ian Clarke

2021 David 
Wilson

Linda 
Ward

Joseph 
Sorbara

Rhonda 
Ferguson

Terry 
Gatward

David 
Anglicas

Ian Clarke

2022 David 
Wilson

Linda 
Ward

Joseph 
Sorbara

Rhonda 
Ferguson

Terry 
Gatward

David 
Anglicas

Ian Clarke

2023 David 
Wilson

Linda 
Ward

Joseph 
Sorbara

Rhonda 
Ferguson

Terry 
Gatward

David 
Anglicas
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• Avalon Soccer Club founded 1982.
• Beacon Hill Football Club founded 1964.
• Belrose Terrey Hills Raiders Football Club 

founded 1986. 
• Brookvale Football Club founded 1972.
• Collaroy Cromer Strikers Football Club 

founded 1995. 
• Curl Curl Youth Club founded 1958.
• Dee Why Football Club founded 1947.
• Forest Killarney Football Club founded 1962 .

Member Clubs of the MWFA 

Over the years there have been several amalgamations of MWFA Clubs to form the current 17 
Clubs.  
• Avalon Soccer Junior and Senior Clubs merged in 1982.
• Belrose Rangers Soccer Club (founded 1978) and Terrey Hills Soccer Club merged in 1986 to 

become the BTH Raiders Football Club.
• Brookvale Football Club started as Manly Milan Soccer Club in 1962 and then changed name to 

Brookvale FC in 1971.
• Manly Soccer Club (founded 1949) and Allambie Soccer Club (founded 1963) merged in 1992 to 

become the Manly Allambie United Football Club
• Forest Killarney Soccer Football Club formed in 1962 with 2 teams and then split in 1969 to form 

Killarney Heights Soccer Club and Forest Soccer Club. These two Clubs then merged again in 
1993 to form Forest Killarney Football Club

• Cromer Strikers Soccer Club and Collaroy Plateau Youth Club merged in 1995 to form Collaroy 
Cromer Strikers Football Club.

• Pittwater was formed in 1964 as a soccer section of the Pittwater RSL Youth Club. In 1966 the 
Football Section became a separate entity - what is now Pittwater RSL FC. 

• Harbord Diggers Soccer Club (founded 1947/48) and Seasiders Soccer Club (Men’s founded 
1982 and joined by Queenscliff Women’s in 1991) merged in 2004 to form Harbord Seasiders -
United Football Club In 2020 Harbord Seasiders United FC changed their name to Harbord 
Football Club.
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• Harbord Football Club founded 2004.
• Manly Allambie United Football Club 

founded 1992.
• Manly Vale Football Club founded 1951.
• Mosman Football Club founded 1966. 
• Narrabeen Football Club founded 1965.
• Pittwater RSL Football Club founded 1964.
• Seaforth Football Club founded 1963.
• St Augustines Soccer Football Club founded mid 

1960’s. 
• Wakehurst Football Club founded 1968.



Committees

Disciplinary Committee Appeals Committee

Competitions Committee Registration & Grading Committee

• David Wilson (Director)
• Tony Cavalieri 
• Ange Carey 
• James Raphael 
• Mark Gale
• Iain Church

• Edward Neill 
• Warren Meppem 
• Stuart Nairn
• Roy Sider 
• Richard Wright

• Terry Gatward (Director)
• Michael Sestanovich 
• Greg Dick
• John Kowtan 
• Ashley Parker
• Suzy Broughton
• David Schmidt 

• Rhonda Ferguson (Director) 
• Annette Burgoyne (Registrar)
• Peter Auld (Registrar)
• David Brennan 
• James Raphael 
• Kym Weekes
• Brian Barkworth 

Alternate 
• Cas Greco 

Alternate 
• Leon Brilman 
• Joe Vescio

Life Members

• Brian Emery - Dee Why FC SC 
• Cyril Sutton
• Leonie Parker - MWLSA 
• Jackie Higgins - MWLSA 
• Warren Meppem - MWLSA
• Wayne Connor - CPYC
• Eric Beckett - St Augustines FC/CPYC
• Trevor Croal - CPYC 1993
• Charles Vale - Wakehurst SC 1994 
• Linda Ward - CC Strikers 1999
• Keith Pester - Wakehurst SC 2000 

Deceased Life Members
• F Curtis
• R J Parker
• Reg Gillings 
• Don Balmain 
• George Hudson 
• Len Lems
• Fred Alder
• Syd Russell (2007)

• Graeme Kellow - CC Strikers FC 2001 
• Ray Fanning - MWFC 2004
• Don Gale - Pittwater RSL FC 2004
• Ted Blackwood - Narrabeen YCFC 2005 
• Greg Carroll - Pittwater RSL FC/MWFA 2010
• Andrew Edwards Wakehurst FC/MWFA 2013
• David Tomlinson - Manly Allambie United FC/MWFA 2013 
• Rhonda Ferguson HSU FC/MUFC 2015
• Edward Neill - MWFA 2018
• John Mesite - Brookvale FC/MWFA  2020
• David Brennan - Wakehurst FC/MWFA 2022
• Jeff Smit - St Augustines FC/MWFA 2022

• Shirley Bones (2008)
• Mal Ticehurst (2009)
• John Tilley (2010)
• Fred Bones (2010)
• Bruce Smith (2011)
• Col Jones (2011)
• Lorna Gale (2013)
• Mike Speed (2020)
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Background David was Vice President Juniors on the MWFA Management Committee from 2006 until 
2019, when the new Board structure commenced. In this role David was passionate about ensuring 
decisions made were in the best interests of all junior participant’s enjoyment. This included 
participation, inclusiveness, fairness in competitions and making changes when required to keep younger 
players in the game longer. 

David has continued to be an active and essential member of the Grading Committee. He has actively led 
the Grading Committee, including the preparation of the grading protocols and information that has been 
essential in improving the information available to assist the Grading Committee. David dedicates 
significant hours to this task covering all age groups that require grading from under 12’s right through to 
the oldest age groups and includes all grades and divisions. David also provides invaluable insight and 
analysis with the sub junior grades when it comes to regrading those teams for all age groups after the 
initial few rounds of the year. 

David is a progressive thinker and has always upheld the MWFA ideals to improve the experience of all 
players, young or old, Premier League or Division 8 as his primary goal while being unafraid to propose 
new or different ideas, no matter how different they are from custom and practice. 

David has been on the Committee at Wakehurst FC for 15 years, since 2008 as Vice President - Youth and 
now also Treasurer. He's also been Competition Secretary. David has also been a key part of the 
reestablishment of the Wakehurst Summer Football competition. David has used the Summer Football 
competition to test the sum of his innovative ideas such as the Swiss System which is a round-robin-style 
tournament where rather than each competitor playing every other competitor, each competitor plays 
only other competitors that have won a similar number of games. 

David has an enviable coaching record at Wakehurst FC, winning many Major & Minor Premierships, two 
State Cups and two Champion of Champions. He has also coached two teams in the same year at least 8 
times. David’s commitment and dedication to the game of football is deserving of being awarded life 
membership of the MWFA. Terry Gatward asked if anyone wanted to speak for or against David’s 
nomination.

Greg Dick (President, Wakehurst FC) spoke in support of the nomination in that David Brennan 
epitomises everything that is good about grassroots football. David Brennan is as much, if not more, 
interested in lower divisions as he is in Premier League and if there were more people like him it would 
be wonderful.

2022 Life Members

David Brennan 

In line with the MWFA Ltd Constitution, MWFA Director 
Joseph Sorbara forwarded a proposal for David Brennan to 
be nominated as a Life Member to the MWFA Board for 
their consideration. 

The MWFA Board has nominated David Brennan to be 
elected as a Life Member by Special Resolution at the 2022 
AGM. 
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Jeff Smit has played, coached, managed, refereed, sponsored and been on the committee of either a 
local soccer club or MWFA for the past 30 years. Jeff started playing for Curl Curl in the Under 6s and 
continued to play with them for 17 years. He played senior football with Cromer, Collaroy Plateau 
and one year with Long Reef. He has played PL for Pittwater, Wakehurst and St. Augustine’s. Jeff 
moved to the Central Coast in 1989 where he joined Killarney District Soccer Club. He played in their 
senior team and the boys started playing in their Under 5s competition. He coached one of their 
teams each year and joined the committee and was the Senior President. He also ran the canteen 
and was on field set up most Sundays. 

On his return to Sydney in 1998 Jeff settled in Frenchs Forest, near Lionel Watts reserve, hence 
Wakehurst became his new club. It didn’t take long before he was running the Hews Parade Canteen 
and then the Bantry Bay Road canteen. Jeff coached or managed one or two of his children each 
season. He played goalkeeper for the Premier League. He was also on the Wakehurst committee and 
assisted with all the grading days and team allocations. His sons went to St. Augustine’s. Again, he 
took on canteen duties and ran the Grahams canteen for several years. Jeff was St. Augustine’s 
Registrar for a few years (until the school took over the role), he also assisted with the gradings, team 
allocations and coached a team for a number of years. 

Jeff started refereeing when he became a Cadet Referee at 14 years old, a branch entrant at 16 and 
then onward to complete his Level 2 certificate and referee all grades including Premier League. 

Jeff became Vice President of MWFA in 2006 and held that position until he became President in 
2015, a position he held for 5 years. Jeff has also served as a Member of the Manly United FC, Manly 
Warringah District Soccer Football Club Boards as well as numerous committees both with MWFA 
and Football NSW through his position. 

In 2019, as a Committee Member of the Manly Warringah District Soccer Football Club, Jeff became 
the major driver in the re-development of the Cromer Park Clubhouse facility. Which came to fruition 
with its re-opening in October 2021.
Jeff has been a long standing, dedicated member of the football family of Manly Warringah over many 
years. Linda Ward felt his dedication and commitment should be recognised with the awarding of Life 
Membership of the MWFA.

Jeff Smit 

2022 Life Members
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In line with the MWFA Ltd Constitution, MWFA Director 
and Life Member Linda Ward forwarded a proposal for Jeff 
Smit to be nominated as a Life Member to the MWFA 
Board for their consideration. 

The MWFA Board has nominated Jeff Smit to be elected 
as a Life Member by Special Resolution at the 2022 AGM. 



Charles Valentine Medal

• Keith Pester 2012

George Churchward Medal
• Fred Bones 1996
• Linda Ward 2006
• Ray Fanning 2014

State Award
• Fred Bones 1991
• Robert (Mal) Ticehurst 1992 
• Eric Beckett 1996
• Syd Russell 1998
• Charles Vale 1999
• Lorna Gale 2000
• Don Gale 2000
• Linda Ward 2001
• Roland Luke 2003
• Keith Pester 2004
• John Mesite 2005
• Neville Drake 2007
• Connie Greco 2008
• Cass Greco 2008
• John Koster 2009

Soccer Sydney Meritorious Service Award

• Greg Carroll 2005
• Andrew Edwards 2005

FNSW State Awards

• David Anglicas 2010
• David Broughton 2011
• Roy Sider 2012
• Richard Wright 2013
• Michael Bosschieter 2014
• Edward Neill 2015
• Tony Davies 2016
• Jeremy Toivonen 2017
• Richard Hooker 2018
• Michael Sestanovich 2019
• Peter Auld 2022
• Annette Burgoyne 2022
• Suzy Broughton 2023
• Greg Dick 2023
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2023 Football NSW State Awards

In 2003, Seasiders Football Club merged with Harbord Diggers Football Club to become Harbord 
Seasiders United, and they have since undergone a name change to become Harbord Football 
Club.  Since 2003 Suzy Broughton has been the heartbeat of the football club, holding positions of 
age coordinator, registrar, secretary, canteen manager, gear steward, coach (teams from U10s 
through to senior women) and competition secretary.

Like many grassroots clubs, Harbord Football Clubs survives on the goodwill and drive of 
volunteers and Suzy picks up everything that falls through the cracks. Quite simply the small 
community club of Harbord Football Club would struggle to exist without her.

Not only is Suzy a dedicated volunteer but she is also an incredibly knowledgeable and balanced 
football administrator, who’s ability to consider the entire sport and put “football first” is 
highlighted by her position on the MWFA Competition Committee.

In 2009 Suzy was awarded the MWFA Meritorious Service Award for her work with Harbord 
Football Club and the Manly Warringah Football Association.

Suzy is a magnificent servant to the game and the Manly Warringah Football Association are 
proud to nominate Suzy Broughton for the Football NSW State Award.

Suzy has been a key player, committee member, 
volunteer and driver of Harbord Football Club, 
stretching back to the early 1990’s. 

She started as a player, manager and coach of the 
Seasiders Football Club Women’s All Age team 
that won the MWFA Women’s Premier League 12 
times between 1991 and 2003 as well as three 
Football NSW State Cups and six Football NSW 
Champion of Champions titles.

Suzy Broughton – Harbord FC 
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2023 Football NSW State Awards

Greg is a long-serving and respected member of the 
Manly Warringah Football Association for his work 
as President of Wakehurst Football Club.

As President of the largest football club on the 
Northern Beaches, Greg’s contribution to 
Wakehurst Football Club and the MWFA is 
enormous and has been a significant part of the 
growth of football, not just at Wakehurst but the 
entire Northern Beaches.

Greg Dick – Wakehurst FC 

He first joined the Wakehurst FC committee in 2013 as the Vice President (Junior Women), which he 
held for 9 years. In 2014 he doubled up to become Deputy President and has been President since 
2015 also taking on the responsibility of MPIO officer – a position he takes very seriously.

His passion for Wakehurst FC is huge and he is a constant figure at Lionel Watts and other 
Wakehurst grounds all weekend, sharing his loyalty evenly between the boys, girls, men’s and 
women’s teams.

His contribution also takes on a broader remit as he is Wakehurst’s Delegate to the MWFA where he 
offers a measured and wholistic approach to all issues we confront as a sport.

Greg’s stature is also evident as he sits on the MWFA Competition Committee, which is reserved for 
respected and experienced Club volunteers who can make decisions on what is best for the sport 
and entire competition.

In 2020 Greg was awarded the MWFA Meritorious Service Award for his work with Wakehurst 
Football Club and the Manly Warringah Football Association.

Greg is a respected and highly regarded member of the Manly Warringah Football Association, and 
we are proud to nominate Greg Dick for the Football NSW State Award.
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History of Executive Officers

Year    President Secretary Treasurer Senior Vice President

1947 F Alder G Hudson G Hudson

1948 F Alder G Hudson T Burke

1949 F Alder G Hudson W Fogarty

1950 R A Baker G Hudson/J Tilley J McClelland

1951 R A Baker J Tilley M Alagich/C West

1952 R A Baker J Tilley J Ayre

1953 R A Baker J Tilley J Baker

1954 R A Baker J Tilley J Miller

1955 R A Baker J Tilley R A Baker

1956 R A Baker J Tilley R A Baker

1957 R J Parker J Tilley H Freeman

1958 R J Parker J Tilley H Freeman

1959 R J Parker F Curtis A Cowie

1960 R J Parker F Curtis A Cowie

1961 J Tilley F Curtis B Emery

1962 A Cowie/R Parker R Tetstall A C Carlson

1963 A Cowie B Emery A C Carlson

1964 J Thomson B Emery B Knight

1965 B Emery C Sutton B Knight

1966 B Emery C Sutton B Knight

1967 B Emery C Sutton B Knight

1968 B Emery C Sutton B Knight

1969 C Jones C Sutton B Knight

1970 C Jones C Sutton B Knight R Gillings

1971 C Jones C Sutton R Gillings R Gillings

1972 F Bones F Parker R Gillings F Finch

1973 F Bones K Atkinson R Gillings N Lawrence

1974 F Bones K Atkinson R Gillings N Lawrence

1975 F Bones K Atkinson R Gillings N Lawrence

1976 F Bones J Nettheim R Gillings J Castely

1977 F Bones J Nettheim R Gillings J Castely

1978 J Castely F Bones R Gillings F Bones

1979 J Castely L Lems R Gillings M Samuels

1980 M Samuels L Lems L Lems F Bones

1981 J Castely/W Connor L Lems E Beckett K Donnell

1982 W Connor L Lems E Beckett D Hardyman
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Year    President Secretary Treasurer Senior Vice President

1983 W Connor L Lems  E Beckett M Ticehurst
1984 W Connor L Lems E Beckett M Ticehurst
1985 W Connor L Lems E Beckett M Ticehurst

1986 W Connor S Russell E Beckett M Ticehurst

1987 W Connor W Connor E Beckett M Ticehurst
1988 F Bones S Russell E Beckett M Ticehurst
1989 F Bones S Russell E Beckett K Pester
1990 F Bones S Russell E Beckett C Vale
1991 C Vale S Russell E Beckett F Bones
1992 C Vale S Russell E Beckett F Bones
1993 C Vale S Russell E Beckett L Ward
1994 C Vale S Russell E Beckett L Ward
1995 L Ward S Russell E Beckett G Kellow
1996 L Ward S Russell E Beckett G Kellow
1997 L Ward S Russell E Beckett G Kellow
1998 L Ward S Russell E Beckett G Kellow / K Pester
1999 L Ward S Russell E Beckett G Kellow / K Pester
2000 L Ward S Russell E Beckett G Kellow / K Pester
2001 L Ward  R Turner E Beckett G Kellow / K Pester
2002 L Ward R Turner/S Russell S Christie/D Tomlinson K Pester/ R Fanning
2003 L Ward S Russell D Tomlinson K Pester/ R Fanning
2004 L Ward S Russell D Tomlinson K Pester/ R Fanning
2005 L Ward S Russell D Tomlinson K Pester/ R Fanning
2006 R Fanning A Edwards D Tomlinson K Pester/ J Smit
2007 R Fanning  A Edwards D Tomlinson K Pester/ J Smit
2008 R Fanning A Edwards D Tomlinson K Pester/ J Smit
2009 R Fanning A Edwards D Tomlinson K Pester/ J Smit
2010 R Fanning A Edwards D Tomlinson K Pester/ J Smit
2011 R Fanning A Edwards D Tomlinson K Pester/ J Smit
2012 R Fanning A Edwards D Tomlinson K Pester/ J Smit
2013 R Fanning A Edwards D Tomlinson K Pester/ J Smit
2014 R Fanning A Edwards R Carollo K Pester/ J Smit
2015 J Smit A Edwards R Carollo K Pester / D Wilson
2016 J Smit A Edwards J Sorbara K Pester / D Wilson
2017 J Smit A Edwards J Sorbara K Pester / D Wilson
2018 J Smit  L Ward J Sorbara K Pester / D Kerr
2019 J Smit L Ward J Sorbara K Pester / D Kerr

History of Executive Officers cont.
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In 2019, the Manly Warringah Football Association Inc. undertook a process to change its 
structure from an Incorporated Association to a Company Limited by Guarantee. This was done 
at the request of NSW Fair Trading and ASIC. As part of this process, the Manly Warringah 
Football Association Limited was formed and moved from an Executive and Management 
Committee structure to a Board of Directors.



History of Management Committee Officers

Year Vice President

1980 K Donnell
1981 J Scane, J Payne, M Ticehurst
1982 J Scane, J Payne, M Ticehurst
1983 J Scane, J Payne
1984 J Scane, J Payne, P Lovett (Resigned)
1985 J Scane, J Payne, D Charlton
1986 D Tice, L Parker, J Loupis (Resigned)
1987 D Tice, J Delaney , T Broughton
1988 D Tice, C Vale, T Broughton
1989 M Ticehurst, C. Vale, I Turner (Resigned)
1990 M Ticehurst, T Byrnes, M Pittman
1991 M Ticehurst, T Byrnes, L Ward

Year Sub-Junior Junior Senior Women Trophies

1992 E Neill T Bynes B Stocks
1993 E Neill T Bynes B Stocks
1994 S Thomas T Bynes B Stocks
1995 G Carroll T Bynes G Kellow M Beckett
1996 G Carroll T Bynes M Beckett
1997 G Carroll T Bynes F Bond
1998 G Carroll A Edwards R Turner F Bond(res)/N Midlane L Gale
1999 G Carroll A Edwards R Turner N Midlane L Gale
2000 G Carroll A Edwards R Turner S Dundon L Gale
2001 G Carroll A Edwards D Anglicas S Dundon
2002 G Carroll A Edwards D Anglicas J Mastroianni
2003 G Carroll A Edwards D Anglicas R Ferguson
2004 G Carroll A Edwards D Anglicas R Ferguson
2005 G Carroll A Edwards D Anglicas R Ferguson
2006 G Carroll D Brennan J Mesite R Ferguson
2007 G Carroll D Brennan J Mesite R Ferguson L Gale
2008 G Carroll D Brennan J Mesite R Ferguson L Gale
2009 G Carroll D Brennan J Mesite R Ferguson L Gale
2010 G Carroll D Brennan J Mesite R Ferguson L Gale
2011 G Carroll D Brennan J Mesite R Ferguson L Gale
2012 G Carroll D Brennan D Broughton R Ferguson L Gale
2013 G Carroll D Brennan D Broughton R Ferguson
2014 G Carroll D Brennan D Wilson R Ferguson
2015 T Davies D Brennan D Wilson R Ferguson
2016 T Davies D Brennan D Wilson L Walker
2017 T Davies D Brennan T Gatward L Walker
2018 T Davies D Brennan T Gatward R Winter

2019 T Davies D Brennan T Gatward R Winter (Seniors) 
D Cook (Juniors)
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Registrars

Year Registrar
1947 G. Hudson

1948 V Pomering

1949 J Ayre

1950-1952 J Baker

1953 R Watson & F Cranfield

1954 -1956 F Cranfield

1957- 1958 F Curtis

1959-1960 B Emery

1961 R J Parker

1962 B Emery

1963 R Alford

1964-1965 No Record

1966-1969 F Finch & S Finch

1970-1971 F Bones

1972-1977 S Bones

1972-1974 S Finch (Junior)

1974-1977 B Smith (Junior)

1975-1999 B Smith

2000-2006 B Smith (Junior) & L Gale (Senior)

2007-2011 M Edwards (Junior) & L Gale (Senior)

2012-2013 D Graham, M Edwards & L Gale

2014-2017 D Graham, M Edwards & P Auld

2018 A Burgoyne, M Edwards & P Auld

2019 A Burgoyne, L Beaugeard & P Auld

2020 - 2023 A Burgoyne and P Auld

Assistant Secretaries

Year Assistant Secretary
1947 G. Hudson

1948 G. Hudson

1949 J. Ayre

1950 J Baker

1951 J Ayre

1952 J Ayre

1953 M Cossins

1954 -1956 R J Parker

1957 L McClelland

1958 A Pitter

1959 A James

1960-1963 A Pitter

1964-1979 No Records

1980-1982 S Bones

1983-1985 J Loupis

1986-1995 S Bones

1996-1998 S Bones

1999 No Appointment

2000-2017 T Davies

2018 - 2019 No Appointment

2020 - 2023 Gillian Hunt
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Attendance Meetings

Board Meetings

Club attendance at Forum Meetings

Name Office Maximum Board-8 Maximum Forum-8

David Wilson Chairperson 8 8

Linda Ward Director / Secretary 7 8

Joseph Sorbara Director / Treasurer 7 2

David Anglicas Director 8 7

Terry Gatward Director 7 6

Rhonda Ferguson Director 8 5

Club Maximum Forum-8

Avalon SC 8

Beacon Hill FC 8

Brookvale FC 8

BTH Raiders FC 8

CC Strikers FC 8

Curl Curl FC 8

Dee Why FC 8

Forest Killarney FC 7

Harbord FC 7

Manly Allambie United FC 8

Manly Vale FC 8

Mosman FC 8

Narrabeen FC 8

Pittwater RSL FC 6

Seaforth FC 8

St Augustines FC 8

Wakehurst FC 7
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MWFA Administration

History of Staff Employment

Full time and part time salaried staff:
• David Mason – CEO
• Lee-Anne Sestanovich – Office Manager and Disciplinary Secretary
• Alysha Rowe – Competition Manager 
• Anthony Pavlidis – Compliance Officer
• Eric  Subijano – Communications Officer
• Angela Crandell – Receptionist
• Derek Turner - Accounts Manager
• Eugene Lawrenz – Community Coach Development Manager 
• Gillian Hunt – Minutes Secretary

General Manager Position established in May 2000
• Jeremy Toivonen commenced May - 2000 to 4th July 2017

Chief Executive Officer Position Established in July 2017
• David Mason - 24th July 2017 – Present 

Administrator position established in April 2005 
• Vanessa Henderson - April 2005 to 25th September 2009
• Lee-Anne Sestanovich 12th December 2009 to 5th July 2023 
• Karon Saunders 22nd March 2017 to 24th February 2021
• Alysha Rowe  - 1st March 2021 to Present 
• Anthony Pavlidis – 15th May 2023 to Present 

Office Manager Position established July 2023
• Lee-Anne Sestanovich -  5th July 2023 to Present.

Communication Officer Position established January 2022.
• Sophie Tarrant-Foder – 10th January 2022 to 21st December 2022. 
• Eric Subijano – 6th March 2023 to Present.

Part Time Receptionist Position established February 2008
• Kim McCormick - 25th February 2008 to 10th March 2009
• Lee-Anne Sestanovich - 9th March 2009 to 11 December 2009
• Jan Patterson - 11th December 2009 to 17th June 2011
• Angela Crandell - 18th July 2011 to Present 
• Louise Blair - 1st July to August 2016

Community Coach Development Manager position established in 2017
• Chris Adams - March 2017 to 23rd November 2018
• Eugene Lawrenz - 4th February 2019 to Present
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Disciplinary Secretary Position established as a part time position in 2008. 
(Changed from Judiciary to Disciplinary in 2020)
• Syd Russell up to December 2008.
• Keith Pester - December 2008 to December 2019. 
• Lee-Anne Sestanovich - January 2020 to Present.

Accounts Manager Position established as a part time position in 2006.
• Barbara Cifala - 2006 to October 2014. 
• Derek Turner from January 2015 to Present.

Minutes Secretary Position established as a part time position in 2017.
• Kelly Sargent - 13th June 2017 to 1st April 2019 
• Gillian Hunt - 6th May 2019 to Present.

Technical Director and youth Development position established in July 2003
• Phil Moss July 2003 to May 2010. Phil resigned to take up a position with the Central Coast 

Mariners A-League Team.
• Richy Williams June 2010 to November 2011. Richy resigned to return to Wales with his family
• Craig Midgley October 2011 to 9th December 2015. Craig resigned to join family in north 

Queensland
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MWFA Meritorious Service Awards History 

Year Name Club

1985 Ted Blackwood Warriewood

1985 Don Tice Harbord Diggers
1985 Bruce Hutton Curl Curl YC
1986 Velma Sestanovich Manly Vale FC
1986 Joan Finlay Manly
1986 Don Logan Seasiders FC
1986 Terry Allen Avalon Soccer
1986 John Mesite Brookvale FC
1987 Tony Seaman Curl Curl YC
1987 Warren Squires Curl Curl/Dee Why 
1987 John Wainwright Manly Vale FC
1987 Reg Smith Seaforth YC
1987 Fred Parker
1987 John Bailey Harbord Diggers
1987 Mike Carlowe Mosman FC
1988 Terry O’Connell Pittwater RSL FC
1988 Beryl MacDougall Sporting Union
1988 Denzyl Joyce Sporting Union
1988 Cyril Jack MWSRA
1988 Albert Siddons Forest FC
1988 Trevor Croal Collaroy Plateau
1988 John Loupis Mosman FC
1988 Graeme Coates Seaforth YC
1988 Marios Economides Allambie FC
1988 John Maunder Wakehurst FC
1989 Neil Davison Manly Vale FC
1989 Peter Clarke Collaroy Plateau
1989 Paul Rudgley Pittwater RSL FC
1989 Lorna Gale Pittwater RSL FC
1989 John Ward Collaroy Plateau
1989 Don Gale Pittwater RSL FC
1990 Jim Delaney Long Reef
1990 Val Jefferson Allambie FC
1990 John Fitzgerald Wakehurst FC
1990 Alice Marshall Manly SC
1990 Pedro Lopez Curl Curl YC
1990 John Bashford Manly Vale
1990 Ron Coffey Curl Curl YC
1990 Kevin Martin Collaroy Plateau
1991 Dave Clapham Manly Vale FC
1991 Keith Pester Wakehurst/MWSC

Year Name Club
1991 Denis Bayley Manly Vale FC
1991 Judy Head Seaforth YC
1991 John Henson BTH Raiders
1991 Scott Campbell Balgowlah RSL
1991 Frank Molinaroli Curl Curl YC
1992 Alan Hoy Harbord Diggers FC
1992 Michael Wilson Pittwater RSL FC
1992 Phil Smealie Seaforth YC
1992 Linda Ward Collaroy Plateau YC
1992 Robyn Skene Wakehurst FC
1992 Connie Greco Manly Vale FC
1992 Wendy Thompson Manly Allambie FC
1992 Steve Springett Forest Killarney FC
1992 Linda Bell Manly Allambie FC
1992 Michael Deane MWSC Ltd
1993 John Catchpool Manly Allambie FC
1993 Don Tice Harbord Diggers
1993 Bob Verduin Wakehurst FC
1993 Judy Kellow Cromer YC
1993 Ted Byrnes Collaroy Plateau YC
1993 Michael Speed Dee Why FC
1993 Lionel Stacey Narrabeen YC
1994 W (Billy) Glasgow Harbord Diggers FC
1994 Bev Hessell Manly Allambie FC
1994 Wes Jamieson BTH Raiders 
1994 Chris Doran Wakehurst FC
1994 Robert Turner Forest Killarney FC
1994 Bev Brewer Harbord Diggers FC
1994 Jean Young Curl Curl YC
1994 Bob Dunn MWSA Reps
1994 Peter van Wensveen Collaroy Plateau YC
1995 Peter Campanella Brookvale FC
1995 Michael Rogan Narrabeen YC
1995 Rhonda Withers Seasiders
1995 Graham Sutherland Manly Allambie FC
1996 Graham Berry St Augustines FC
1996 Steve Gosling CC Strikers FC
1997 Michael Bosschieter Narrabeen YC
1997 Max Turnbull Manly Vale FC
1997 Rob Hessell Manly Allambie FC
1997 Ida Rigoni CC Strikers FC
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Year Name Club

1997 Cas Greco Manly Vale FC

1998 Roland Luke Avalon Soccer

1998 Noel Robertson St Augustines FC

1998 Mick Meechan MWSA Reps

1998 David Anglicas St Augustines FC

1998 David Mollard Mosman FC

1999 Bill Mc Burnie MWSRA

1999 Con Pithis Wakehurst FC

1999 Vince Macri MWSA Dolphins

1999 Ray Fanning MWSA

2000 Ross & Debbie Cordukes CC Strikers FC

2000 Paul Connah Dee Why FC

2001 Greg Fennell Dee Why FC

2001 Tony Davies Beacon Hill FC

2001 Neville Drake BTH Raiders

2001 Sam Mesite Brookvale FC

2001 Henry Schydlo Pittwater RSL

2001 David Broughton Seasiders FC

2001 Lizetta Femia Brookvale FC

2002 John Nicotra St Augustines FC

2002 Michael & Roz DeRome Curl Curl YC

2003 Peter Fennell Narrabeen YC

2003 Greg Carroll MWSA

2003 Lyn & Keith Radford Seaforth YC

2003 Tom Miles Manly Vale FC

2003 Peter Symonds Pittwater RSL FC

2004 Jeff Smit St Augustines FC

2004 Ed Neill MWFA

2005 Tim Riley

2005 Kim Linay Beacon Hill FC

2005 Peter Tracey HSU

2005 Wayne McSorley CC Strikers FC

2005 Richard Hooker CC Strikers FC

2005 Colin Barry Forest Killarney FC

2005 Joan Croal CC Strikers FC

2005 Rocky Carlino Brookvale FC

2005 Peter Auld Manly Vale FC

2006 Tony Bruzzano Manly Vale FC

2006 Annette Burgoyne Pittwater RSL FC

2006 Brian Geoghegan Brookvale FC

Year Name Club

2006 John & Kerrie Koster Beacon Hill FC

2006 Dylis Graham Avalon Soccer

2006 Andrew Edwards Wakehurst & MWFA

2006 Bryan Floyd Wakehurst FC

2007 Jim Trevenar MUFC

2007 David & Debbie Scott Beacon Hill FC

2007 Colin Ritchie Pittwater FC

2007 David Waller Seaforth FC

2007 Mike Kirk Avalon Soccer

2007 David Tomlinson Manly Allambie FC

2008 Tony Cavalieri Brookvale FC

2008 Ross Downie BTH Raiders

2008 Rick Asher Avalon Soccer

2009 Warren Meppem Forest Killarney FC

2009 Paul Mulligan HSU FC

2009 Suzy Broughton HSU FC

2009 Michael Sestanovich Manly Vale FC

2009 Alistair Campbell Avalon Soccer

2010 David Howell Manly Allambie FC

2010 John Kowtan Avalon Soccer 

2010 Larry Duke Narrabeen FC

2010 Michele Winston MWFA

2010 Marc Adam Dee Why FC

2011 Neil Burgoyne Pittwater RSL FC

2011 Sandra Parkin Narrabeen FC

2011 Roger Graham Avalon Soccer

2012 Richard Wright Seaforth FC

2012 Dave Wilson Seaforth FC

2013 Drew Benjamin Wakehurst FC

2013 Jay Tofferi Narrabeen FC

2013 Caroline Musik Wakehurst FC

2013 Trevor Watson Manly Allambie FC

2014 Anita Paul Forest Killarney FC

2014 Karen Carlson Beacon Hill FC

2014 Vince Vescio Beacon Hill FC

2014 David Brennan Wakehurst / MWFA

2015 Sam Femia Brookvale FC

2015 Maria (Pachi) Jones Mosman FC

2015 Ludo Ledieu Curl Curl YC

2016 Linda Wright Seaforth FC
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Year Name Club

2016 Stuart Nairn Dee Why FC

2016 Wayne Brown Avalon Soccer

2017 Christine Noldus Avalon Soccer

2017 John Tansley Beacon Hill FC

2017 Maria Pollard Beacon Hill FC

2018 David Lavings Curl Curl YC

2018 Caroline Hodges Manly Vale FC

2018 Neil Blundell Manly Vale FC

2018 Keith Wainright Manly Vale FC

2019 Vince Condomitti Brookvale FC

2019 Wesley Ryder Brookvale FC

2019 Helen Chambers Beacon Hill FC

2019 Vince Roperti Curl Curl FC

2019 Jenny Roberts Curl Curl FC

2019 Steve Kiddle Pittwater RSL FC

2020 Greg Dick Wakehurst FC

2020 Sigrid Mulherin Beacon Hill FC

2020 Russell Rogers Manly Allambie FC

2021 Vince Santarosa Brookvale FC

2021 Leon Brilman CC Strikers FC

2021 Aaron Kemp Curl Curl FC

2021 Gaby Rogers Manly Allambie FC

2021 Louise Walker Mosman FC

2021 Wendy Waters Narrabeen FC

2021 Josephine Sloots St Augustines FC

2021 Jacinta Newcombe Avalon SC

2021 Robert Brennan MWFRA

2021 Peter Robson MWFRA

2022 Alan Glixman Seaforth FC

2022 David Schmidt Mosman FC

2022 Stephen Calacouras Forest Killarney FC

2022 Giuseppe Guerrera Forest Killarney FC
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However, Al’s more substantial contributions to the club commenced in 2008 when he joined the 
committee assuming hands-on roles with the training ground and teams’ coordination 
responsibility. Al wasn’t long in these roles before he stepped up further and volunteered to take-
on an executive role and became Club Secretary from 2010. 

During the 12 years in this role, Al has made significant contributions and brought substantial 
changes, introducing structure, rigor, and discipline to a key area of the club, which can often get 
overlooked by our members. 

His contributions as Club Secretary have been immense, where he has sought to ensure the club 
has consistency, transparency and discipline across our operations, documenting policies and 
procedures and ensuring compliance and integrity in all club matters. This has ensured fairness 
and equity across all aspects of the club, from players and teams to the general club community. 
Al is a huge advocate of ‘fair game time’ and applies meticulous attention to club judiciary matters, 
an area he seems to thrive in.

In 2019, Al took sole responsibility for the development of a new Seaforth FC website, driving the 
design, preparing all the material, and coordinating with our web developers. This culminated in a 
comprehensive and elegant website to inform and communicate with our members - an outcome 
the club is very proud of. 

Through COVID years, Al coordinated our club COVID plans and compliance to ensure we were 
able to operate through the challenging times. In the last few years, Al has also gone above and 
beyond and regularly takes on extra committee roles, when we are short of club volunteers. 

Al is an invaluable asset to the Seaforth FC Club and to MWFA, taking volunteering and 
‘commitment to community’ to new heights. 
This nomination confirms the gratitude from the club and in my opinion demonstrates the 
fundamental value of service sought by the MWFA Meritorious Service Awards. 

2022 Meritorious Service Awards

Alan Glixman – Seaforth FC
Alan Glixman (known to most as “Al” ) is a 
longstanding, loyal and committed volunteer of 
Seaforth FC spanning 14+ years on the committee. 

Prior to joining the committee, he was actively 
involved with his son’s junior teams, coaching, 
managing, and gaining a flavour for life at Seaforth FC. 
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Over his time with the Club, David has filled virtually every role associated with community 
football.  He has been a team manager and coach of 20 years+ standing, referee and general 
committee member as well as Club Vice President for much of the 1990s and, since 2020, a board 
member and the Club’s Vice President, Senior Men.  

During recent years, David has managed/coached three Mosman FC teams per season, filled in as 
an occasional delegate to the MWFA Forum, and given of his time generously to undertake those 
numerous tasks that arise during the football year.  The Club has relied heavily on David’s 
preparedness to store excess equipment and supplies at his business premises as well as the 
provision of his truck to move goal posts, BBQs, etc., often at short notice. 

 David has also been the driving force behind the Club’s recent acquisition of four portable 
defibrillators.  In short, David continues to make a substantial contribution to Mosman FC, bringing 
an enthusiasm to his involvement with the Club that is seldom matched.  It is with considerable 
pleasure that Mosman Football Club nominates David Schmidt for a MWFA Meritorious Service 
Award in 2022.

David Schmidt – Mosman FC

David has been a member of Mosman Football Club for 50 
years having started playing with the Club as an U6.  
Playing more than 1,000 games for the Club, David is a 
former Premier League player who continues to turn out for 
the Club’s historically highly performing O45s; a team that 
has an enviable record within the Champion of Champions 
competition.  He has played in various positions during his 
playing career including centre mid, centre back sweeper, 
right fullback, and goalkeeper.

2022 Meritorious Service Awards
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Steve has been playing, coaching, managing and volunteering in the MWFA for 20 years. The journey 
began in 2003 with Wakehurst FC before spending 8 seasons at CC Strikers FC. During this time 
Steve volunteered as a team coach and manager for 6 years winning an AL League title in 2004. In 
2012 Steve moved to Forest Killarney FC. 

He volunteered as team manager from 2014 through to 2022 winning 2x AL Championships in 2015 
and 2016 and an O/35 Championship and KO Winner in 2019. In addition to this he has coached 3 
Junior teams since 2018. 

In 2018 Steve joined the FKFC committee as the Sub Junior Coordinator spending his time helping to 
integrate new families into football ensuring their experience was a positive one. He completed his C-
Licence and has been part of the club's CCC program. In 2019 he became FKFC VP and is currently in 
this role. He has tackled head on the difficult seasons endured with COVID and recently the weather 
with professionalism. 

Steve has been instrumental in launching the FKFC Training Academy and has been one of the clubs’ 
strongest advocates for women's football linking our junior girls to our senior team. Earlier this year 
he ran a "Show your colours Day" bringing our junior girls together in support of the Women's AL1 
side. Steve's passion for the club and game is second to none. 

He is always helping new coaches, managers and parents at the club to ensure they have the best 
possible experience. If local football clubs are about connecting with the community and providing 
your member base with enjoyment, then I can't think of anyone who does this more passionately 
than Steve. Football is about grass roots connections and Steve invests a lot of his time to make sure 
this happens. Whether it's BBQs, Field Set Up, Presentation days, Running Social pages or just 
lending a hand at training or on game day - Steve is the type of person every club needs and we're very 
lucky to have him at FKFC. He is a very popular member of our club, and he quietly goes about his 
business.  

As this is his 20th year of involvement within the MWFA, I would like to put him forward for an MWFA 
Meritorious Service Award. 

Stephen Calacouras – Forest Killarney FC

2022 Meritorious Service Awards
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In 2016 he was the manager of the very first Forest Team to win Kanga Cup in the under 14’s age 
group. He continued to manage this same team which went on to win two (2) FNSW champion of 
champions and various MWFA competitions. 
Giuseppe’s history on the FKFC Committee:
•       2015 - Sub Juniors Coordinator
•       2016 - VP Juniors
•       2016-18 - Technical Director (During this tenure – FKFC was awarded junior club of the year)
•       2018 - Vice President 
•       2019 - Present      

Giuseppe has also taken time during the summer to be part the summer soccer sub-committee. 
FKFC’s summer soccer as a commercial operation and brand has gone to another level. This year 
Forest summer soccer has hit 250 registered players, which is an all-time record. This revenue 
stream has been an enormous financial boost for the club. 

Since his tenure as president, he has worked hard in aligning the clubs core values with that of the 
MWFA. Particularly in area of sideline spectator conduct and the protection, of match officials. He 
has always been supportive of the decisions handed down by the disciplinary committee, even 
though at times this view has not been shared by members of the club. Giuseppe has always 
acknowledged the hard work of the MWFA disciplinary committee in curving bad behaviour on the 
sideline. He has always made it a point to communicate and reinforce this message to the member 
base on a regular basis. It has been his mission to help develop a good club culture, as well as a safe 
and enjoyable playing environment for its members. 

Giuseppe has always believed that the club is blessed to have such facilities at its disposal. He has 
always had the view that the Melwood facilities should not be taken for granted. He has also had a 
strong view that the Melwood facilities are also beneficial to the wider peninsula footballing 
community. During the winter allocation and during inclement weather Giuseppe has worked closely 
with the MWFA in making sure that other clubs get the opportunity to continue to play football by 
minimising cancelled games. 
 
Giuseppe possesses humane leadership skills. He has empathetic qualities, he is open and honest 
with people, can connect and listen to people’s issues and always diplomatic in his approach to 
problem solving. 

On behalf of the club, we would like to nominate GG for this recognition. We feel that his activities in 
grassroots football have been unselfish and would like to recognise his work at the club over the last 
13 years. 

Giuseppe Guerrera – Forest Killarney FC
Giuseppe joined the club in 2009 like most young parents. 
He quickly joined the coaching ranks in coaching his older 
son Christopher’s under six team. From this point on he 
continued with coaching and managing various teams. 
In 2015 the then secretary – Adrian Sammons suggested to 
Giuseppe to join the committee. Giuseppe took on the role 
as Sub-Junior Coordinator. 
Giuseppe was also instrumental in managing one of the first 
FKFC teams to attend the coveted Kanga Cup International 
tournament in Canberra.

2022 Meritorious Service Awards
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* Not awarded due to COVID-19 disruption as teams all played a different number of 
games.

MWFA Perpetual Award History

Year President’s Cup Syd Russell Memorial 
Secretary’s Shield Executive Award Union Jack Award

1979 Terrey Hills Manly Vale U16

1980 Belrose - Terrey Hills Wakehurst

1981 Forest Allambie

1982 Wakehurst Forest 13/1

1983 Forest Brookvale U12/4

1984 Wakehurst Long Reef U11/4

1985 Pittwater RSL Collaroy Plateau YC Brookvale FC Avalon A U17/2

1986 Wakehurst FC Beacon Hill FC YC M.A.F.S.C. Pittwater 12/1

1987 Wakehurst FC Manly SC Brookvale FC Wakehurst 15/1

1988 Wakehurst FC Cromer YC Pittwater RSL Pittwater 12/1

1989 Wakehurst FC Manly Vale FC Manly Vale FC Wakehurst 11/3

1990 Wakehurst FC Allambie FC Brookvale FC St Augustine’s 10/2

1991 Wakehurst FC Wakehurst FC Mosman FC Forest 13/2

1992 Pittwater RSL FC Brookvale FC Curl Curl YC Manly Vale 13/1

1993 Pittwater RSL FC BTH Raiders Mosman FC *N/A

1994 Pittwater RSL FC Seaforth YC Beacon Hill FC YC Pittwater RSL 13/1

1995 Collaroy Cromer SC Narrabeen YC Wakehurst FC Wakehurst 15/1

1996 Pittwater RSL FC Pittwater RSL FC Mosman FC Pittwater RSL 13/1

1997 Pittwater RSL FC Avalon Soccer Wakehurst FC Pittwater RSL 14/1

1998 Pittwater RSL FC CC Strikers FC Wakehurst FC Pittwater RSL 15/1

1999 Wakehurst FC/Pittwater FC Harbord Diggers Beacon Hill FC Y Mosman 10/1

2000 Wakehurst FC St Augustines Wakehurst FC Seaforth 14/1

2001 Wakehurst FC BTH Raiders Wakehurst FC Pittwater A 15/1

2002 Beacon Hill YC Mosman FC Mosman FC Beacon Hill 13/1

2003 Seaforth YC Forest Killarney FC Pittwater RSL FC Seaforth 10/1

2004 Wakehurst FC Manly Vale FC Pittwater RSL FC Beacon Hill 15/1

2005 Wakehurst FC CC Strikers FC Forest Killarney FCBeacon Hill 16/1

2006 Wakehurst FC Mosman FC CC Strikers FC Wakehurst 16/1

2007 Wakehurst FC Curl Curl FC Beacon Hill FC Wakehurst 12/1

2008 Manly Allambie FC Seaforth FC Avalon Soccer Wakehurst 13/1

2009 Wakehurst FC Forest Killarney FC Manly Vale FC Wakehurst 14/1 A
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MWFA Perpetual Award History cont.

Year President’s 
Cup

Syd Russell Memorial 
Secretary’s Shield

Executive 
Award

Union Jack 
Award

2010 Wakehurst FC Narrabeen FC CC Strikers FC Wakehurst 13/1 A

2011 Wakehurst FC Wakehurst CC Strikers FC St Augustine’s 14/1

2012 Wakehurst FC BTH Raiders Pittwater RSL FC Avalon W14/1

2013 Avalon Soccer Manly Vale FC Seaforth FC St Augustine’s 13/1 A

2014 St Augustines Harbord Seasiders Utd Pittwater RSL FC Avalon W16/1 A

2015 Forest Killarney FC Forest Killarney FC Pittwater RSL FC Forest Killarney 12/1

2016 CC Strikers FC Wakehurst FC Wakehurst FC CC Strikers W16/1

2017 Wakehurst FC Narrabeen FC Wakehurst FC Avalon W15/1 A

2018 Wakehurst FC Pittwater RSL FC Wakehurst FC Avalon W16/1 A

2019 Forest Killarney FC Forest Killarney FC BTH Raiders Pittwater RSL W12/1
& BTH W15/1

2020 *N/A *N/A *N/A *N/A

2021 *N/A *N/A *N/A *N/A

2022 Wakehurst FC Wakehurst FC Curl Curl YC Seaforth U16/1

2023 CC Strikers FC Manly Allambie United FC Curl Curl YC Wakehurst W15/1
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MWFA Perpetual Award History cont.

Year Ron Savell Award 
Men’s Premier League

Trent Patton 
Award Men’s AL 1

Judy Head Award 
Women’s PL/WAL1

Best & Fairest 
Women's AL1 

1979

1980 Curl Curl YC

1981 Pittwater RSL

1982 Pittwater RSL

1983 Pittwater RSL

1984 Pittwater RSL

1985 Pittwater RSL

1986 Seaforth YC

1987 Belrose Terrey Hills

1988 Belrose Terrey Hills

1989 Mosman FC

1990 Mosman FC

1991 Mosman FC

1992 Brookvale FC Mosman FC

1993 Pittwater RSL Pittwater RSL FC

1994 Pittwater RSL Wakehurst FC

1995 Brookvale FC Wakehurst FC BTH Raiders WAL 2

1996 Pittwater/Wakehurst Avalon Soccer Seasiders WAL 1

1997 Narrabeen YC Belrose Terrey Hills Manly Vale WAL 3

1998 Wakehurst FC Wakehurst FC Wakehurst WAL 3A

1999 Mosman FC/Avalon SC Forest Killarney FC Pittwater WAL 3A

2000 Mosman FC Manly Vale FC Manly Vale WAL 2

2001 Mosman FC Seaforth FC Strikers WPL

2002 Beacon Hill YC Mosman FC Wakehurst WPL

2003 Avalon Soccer Wakehurst FC Not Awarded

2004 Mosman FC Wakehurst FC Pittwater WAL 1

2005 Wakehurst FC BTH Raiders Manly Vale WAL 1B

2006 Beacon Hill FC BTH Raiders Brookvale WAL1/Manly Vale 
WAL1 B

2007 Beacon Hill FC Manly Allambie FC Brookvale WPL/Manly Vale 
WPL

2008 Manly Allambie FC Pittwater RSL FC Pittwater WPL

2009 Forest Killarney FC Beacon Hill FC Harbord Seasiders Utd WPL
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MWFA Perpetual Award History cont.

Year Ron Savell Award 
Men’s Premier League

Trent Patton Award 
Men’s AL 1

Judy Head Award 
Women’s PL

Best & Fairest 
Women's AL1 

2010 Wakehurst FC St Augustines Manly Vale WPL B

2011 Manly Allambie FC Beacon Hill FC Pittwater WPL

2012 Wakehurst FC Beacon Hill FC Brookvale WPL

2013 Wakehurst FC Harbord Seasiders Utd Manly Vale WPL B

2014 Wakehurst FC Wakehurst FC Brookvale WPL &
Wakehurst WPL

2015 Wakehurst FC Avalon Soccer Wakehurst WPL

2016 Mosman FC Harbord Seasiders Utd Wakehurst WPL

2017 CC Strikers FC Avalon Soccer Manly Vale WPL & WAL1

2018 CC Strikers FC Harbord Seasiders Utd Manly Vale WPL

2019 CC Strikers FC Wakehurst FC Mosman WAL1

2020 CC Strikers FC Wakehurst FC Manly Allambie FC Mosman FC

2021 *N/A *N/A *N/A *N/A

2022 CC Strikers FC Forest Killarney FC Pittwater RSL FC Forest Killarney FC

2023 CC Strikers FC Avalon SC Manly Allambie Avalon SC & 
Beacon Hill FC
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Club person of the Year

Year Name Club 

1984
1985 Michael Reynen Manly SC
1986 Dave Coady Manly SC
1987 Dave Flaskas Terry Hills
1988 Greg Jones Allambie
1989 Terry Allen Avalon Soccer FC
1990 Sam Mesite Brookvale FC
1991 Michael Soderberg Seasiders
1992 Les Macedo Pittwater RSL FC
1993 No awards
1994 No awards
1995 Bryan Moore Manly Vale FC
1996 Wesley Ryder Brookvale FC
1997 Craig Cavanagh Curl Curl YC
1998 Jim Little Narrabeen FC
1999 No awards
2000 Brian Geoghegan Brookvale FC
2001 No awarded
2002 Nick Bogunovic Pittwater RSL FC

2002 Michael 
Sestanovich Manly Vale FC

2003 Simon Euers Brookvale FC
2004 Peter Tracey HSU

Year Name Club

2020 Sophie Tarrant-Foder Curl Curl FC

2021 *N/A

2022 Bethany Sweeny Beacon Hill FC

2023 Mikayla Natoli & Jayda Bouveng Pittwater RSL FC

Men’s

Women's

* Not awarded due to COVID-19 disruption as teams all played a different number of 
games.

Year Name Club 

2005 Jeff Smit St Augustines

2006 Tony Calboutin Mosman FC

2007 Mark Ninness Manly Vale FC

2008 N Tracey Manly Allambie FC

2009 Justin Rainbird Wakehurst FC

2010 Darren Kynoch-
Kelly Forest Killarney FC

2011 Chris Rodgers Manly Allambie FC

2012 Rocco Papalia Brookvale FC

2013 Anthony Vescio St Augustines FC

2014 Jordan Perkins Mosman FC

2015 Peter Robertson St Augustines FC

2016 Christopher 
Rodgers Manly Allambie FC

2017 Scott White Manly Vale FC

2018 Dean McCreath Pittwater RSL FC

2019 Chris Lynch Forest Killarney FC

2020 Leon Brilman CC Strikers FC

2021 *N/A

2022 Louis Renaud Avalon SC

2023 Ryan McLean St Augustines
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* Not awarded due to COVID-19 disruption as teams all played a different number of games.

Year Name Club
1984 Dale Halpin Seaforth YC
1985 Neil Edwardson Brookvale FC
1986 Greg Harpur Seaforth YC
1987 Mark Kroschell Brookvale FC
1988 Jurgen Muller Mosman FC
1989 Dudley Fox Brookvale FC
1990 Gary Sandtner Seasiders
1991 Simon Euers Brookvale FC
1992 Stuart Cleary Seasiders
1993 No awards

1994 No awards
1995 Simon Rhead Wakehurst FC
1996 Aaron Ferguson Pittwater RSL FC
1997 Ross Etherington Wakehurst FC
1998 Adam Townsend BTH Raiders
1999 No awards
2000 Mark Nicholson CC Strikers FC
2001 Roland Webber Pittwater RSL FC
2001 Wayne Pierce Brookvale FC
2002 Bobby Colville Mosman FC
2003 Ross Etherington Brookvale FC
2004 Adam Townsend Wakehurst FC
2005 Roland Weber Pittwater RSL
2006 Bobby Colville Forest Killarney FC
2007 Paul Mulligan HSU
2008 Chris Hallett BTH Raiders
2009 Kai Alagich Wakehurst FC
2010 Robin Woods Manly Vale FC
2011 Jared West Manly Allambie FC
2011 Gregg McKittrick Brookvale FC
2012 Pascale Julliard Narrabeen FC
2013 Daniel Bateup Avalon Soccer FC
2013 Pascal Julliard Narrabeen FC
2014 Jakub Sklenar Narrabeen FC
2015 Sam Byrne Mosman FC
2016 Tyson Masters Manly Vale FC
2017 Cameron White Pittwater RSL
2018 Luke Curnow CC Strikers FC
2019 Daniel Deblaere Seaforth FC
2020 Luke Curnow CC Strikers FC
2021 *N/A *N/A
2022 Tomas Posposil Narrabeen FC
2023 Tomas Posposil Narrabeen FC

Premier League Individual Awards History

Lorna Gale PL Player of the Year
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Rookie of the Year

Year Name Club

1984 Joe Smith Manly Vale

1985 Richard Fry Curl Curl YC

1986 Paul Smit Manly SC

1987 Sean Westwood Seaforth YC

1988 Steven Finlay Manly SC

1989 Sam Condamitti Brookvale FC

1990 Daniel Smit Manly SC

1991 Marcus Von Euw Wakehurst FC

1992 Milan Jaglica Manly Vale FC

1993 No Awards

1994 No Awards

1995 Carl McCreath Manly Vale FC

1996 Danny Townsend Belrose-Terrey Hills

1997 Ben Molyneux Wakehurst FC

1998 Greg McKitterick Pittwater RSL FC

1999 No awards

2000 Mathew Turner Mosman FC

2001 Danny Moore Wakehurst FC

2002 Tim Boorman Beacon Hill FC YC

2002 BJ Inkster St Augustines

2003 Stefano Teghini Pittwater RSL FC

2004 Not awarded

2005 Peter Wye CC Strikers FC

2006 Eric Sebulonsen Manly Vale FC

2007 Matthew Bowden Belrose-Terrey Hills

2008 Daniel Greco Manly Vale FC

2009 Tom Reeves Pittwater RSL FC

2010 Tommy Freemantle Beacon Hill FC

2011 Mitchell Marks Manly Vale FC

2012 Michael Ball Wakehurst FC

2013 Angus Thomson St Augustines

2014 Andrew Green Wakehurst FC

2015 John Bushnell Wakehurst FC

2016 Sebastien Szambowski Brookvale FC

2017 Jack McGinley Seaforth FC

2018 Jack Worland HSU AL1

2019 Oscar Drew Mosman FC

2020 Luca Cavalieri Brookvale FC

2021 *N/A *N/A

2022 Thomas Cazalet Avalon SC

2023 Wilson Sarkies Wakehurst FC
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Goalkeeper of the Year

Year Name Club
1984 Mark Chapman Brookvale FC
1985 Max Van Leeuwin Terrey Hills
1986 John Saunders Mosman FC
1987 Brett Hersee Manly SC
1988 Peter Antic Pittwater RSL
1989 Greg Bower Dee Why FC
1990 Leon Brilman Manly Vale FC
1991 Leon Brilman Manly Vale FC
1992 Warwick Tingle Manly Vale FC
1993 No awards

1994 No awards
1995 Warwick Tingle Manly Vale FC
1996 Warwick Tingle Manly Vale FC
1997 Mark Whitby Manly Allambie FC
1998 Mark Whitby Manly Allambie FC
1999 No awards
2000 Peter Cveticanin Pittwater RSL FC
2001 Hamish Carroll Beacon Hill FC
2002 Peter Dougheney Wakehurst FC
2003 BJ Inkster St Augustines
2004 Ian Moores Manly Vale FC
2005 Ian Moores Manly Vale FC
2005 Hamish Carroll Beacon Hill FC
2006 Jamie Kukuron Dee Why FC
2007 Darren Sekulic Pittwater RSL FC
2008 S Jansen Belrose Terrey Hills
2009 Dean McCreath Narrabeen FC
2010 Peter Dougheney Wakehurst FC
2011 Brendan Inkster St Augustines
2012 Peter Dougheney Wakehurst FC
2013 Ross Fleming Beacon Hill FC
2013 Rocco Papalia Brookvale FC
2013 Peter Dougheney Wakehurst FC
2014 Dean McCreath Pittwater FC
2015 Rocco Papalia Narrabeen FC
2016 Scott Bagnall Narrabeen FC
2017 Dean McCreath Pittwater RSL
2018 Matthew Smith CC Strikers FC
2019 Matthew Smith CC Strikers FC
2019 Daniel Trueman Seaforth FC
2020 Luke Femia Brookvale FC
2021 *N/A *N/A
2022 Matthew Smith CC Strikers FC
2023 Josh Dijkstra Pittwater RSL FC
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Coach of the Year

Golden Boot of the Year

Year Name Club
2004 David Anglicas St Augustines
2005 Michael Symons Avalon Soccer FC
2006 Glen Wood Forest Killarney FC
2007 Dean Harding Narrabeen FC
2008 David Bonney Manly Allambie FC
2009 David Bonney Manly Allambie FC
2010 Nigel Mahoney CC Strikers FC
2011 Paul Jeurgens Wakehurst FC
2012 Lewis Furlong CC Strikers FC

2013 Ian Brooks Pittwater RSL

2014 Bob Caitlan Manly Vale FC
2015 Joe Santarosa Narrabeen FC
2016 Paul Jeurgens Wakehurst FC
2017 Ryan Butcher CC Strikers FC
2017 Adam Israel Pittwater RSL

2018 Joshua Aysough Mosman FC
2019 Matthew Gale and Jordan Lefebvre Seaforth FC
2020 Ryan Butcher CC Strikers FC
2021 *N/A *N/A
2022 Adam Israel Pittwater FC
2023 Luke Tinker Mosman

Year Name Club
2006 Jurg Dierkes Brookvale FC
2006 Stefan Teghini Pittwater RSL
2007 Simon Teofilo Beacon Hill FC FC
2008 R Woods Manly Vale FC
2008 F Gigliotti Brookvale FC
2009 Luke Ryan Manly Allambie FC
2010 Mitchell Lensink Pittwater RSL
2011 Stefan Teghini Pittwater RSL
2012 Stefan Teghini Pittwater RSL
2013 Adam Bosward Pittwater RSL
2014 Jakub Sklenar Narrabeen FC
2015 Tyson Masters Manly Vale FC
2016 Matthew Cooper Dee Why FC FC
2016 Tyson Masters Manly Vale FC
2017 Matthew Cooper Dee Why FC FC
2018 Sipan Berti Narrabeen FC
2019 Justin Hayward Brookvale FC
2020 Joshue Ciabatti Brookvale FC
2021 *N/A *N/A
2022 Aaron Peters CC Strikers FC
2023 Jordan Devries CC Strikers FC
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AL1 Awards initiated in 2016
* Not awarded due to COVID-19 disruption as teams all played a different number of games.

Goalkeeper of the Year

Year Name Club

2016 Timmo Mayer Pittwater RSL FC

2017 Ashley Hadcroft Mosman FC

2018 Bryan Howell Manly Allambie FC

2018 Robert Fleming Belrose-Terrey Hills

2018 Timothy Noldus Avalon Soccer FC

2019 Jack Worland Harbord Seasiders FC

2020 Robert Fleming Avalon Soccer FC

2021 *N/A *N/A

2022 Richard Beauchamp Wakehurst FC

2023 Richard Beauchamp Wakehurst FC

Year Name Club

2016 John Stambolieff Curl Curl FC

2017 Daniel Rodgers Manly Allambie FC

2018 Ben Sheppard Harbord Seasiders FC

2019 Jack Brown Belrose-Terrey Hills

2019 Bruno Mendes Mosman FC

2020 Jesse Ditchfield Wakehurst FC

2021 *N/A *N/A

2022 Dan Talbot Dee Why FC

2023 Darragh Reynor Forest Killarney FC

Amateur League Division 1 - Individual Awards History

Player of the Year
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Coach of the Year

Year Name Club

2016 Paul Mulligan Harbord Seasiders FC

2017 Ratko Lovric Belrose-Terrey Hills

2018 Paul Mulligan Harbord Seasiders FC

2019 Paul Mulligan Harbord Seasiders FC

2020 Robert Hanimyan BTH Raiders

2021 *N/A *N/A

2022 Max Roland Manly Vale FC

2023 Paul O'Shaughnessy Forest Killarney FC

Golden Boot of the Year

Year  Name Club

2016 Luke Crunow CC Strikers FC

2017 Tyson Masters Curl Curl FC

2018 Tyson Masters Curl Curl FC

2019 George Harle Belrose-Terrey HIlls

2019 Benjamin White Harbord Seasiders FC

2019 Simon Dolling Mosman FC

2020 Jordan Barrett Beacon Hill FC FC

2021 *N/A *N/A

2022 Charlie Townsend Manly Vale FC

2023 Darragh Reynor & 
Matthew Brewster

Forest Killarney FC & 
St Augustines FC
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Note: From 2002-2006 there was no WPL.
* Not awarded due to COVID-19 disruption as teams all played a different number of games.

Year Name Club
2000 Laura Roemer Seasiders
2001 Jenny Carter Pittwater RSL FC
2007 Melissa Lawther Wakehurst FC

2008 No awards

2009 Amanda Young Forest Killarney FC
2009 Di Murace Brookvale FC
2010 Jess Wootton Beacon Hill FC
2010 Tess Adema Avalon Soccer FC
2011 Alice Kirby Avalon Soccer FC
2011 Julia Waugh Manly Vale FC
2012 Anna Granberg Manly Vale FC
2013 Renae Jolly Pittwater RSL FC
2014 Michelle Piggott Manly Vale FC
2014 Gabrielle Miles Wakehurst FC
2015 Alice Kirby Avalon Soccer FC
2016 Jess Wootton Beacon Hill FC
2017 Anna Nakao Wakehurst FC
2017 Sarah Moyer Beacon Hill FC
2018 Lauren Scaramuzza Manly Vale FC
2019 Jess Wotton Beacon Hill FC
2019 Bethany Sweeny Beacon Hill FC
2020 Georgia Goulding Manly Vale FC
2021 *N/A *N/A
2022 Julia Murphy Seaforth FC 
2023 Julia Murphy Seaforth FC 

Women's Premier League - Individual Awards History

Player of the Year
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Rookie of the Year
Year Name Club

2007 Kate McPhee Avalon Soccer FC

2008 No awards

2009 Kara Eggleston Manly Vale FC

2010 Chelsea Meatchem Avalon Soccer FC

2011 Ellie Van Yzendoon Beacon Hill FC

2012 Skye Ludlow CC Strikers F

2013 Marli Jones Wakehurst FC

2014 Jessie Williams Seaforth FC

2015 Tomika Hillebrand-Shaw Manly Vale FC

2016 Nina Hall Beacon Hill FC

2016 Gemma Walmsley Manly Vale FC

2017 Lucie Crisp Brookvale FC

2018 Hannah Keeler Beacon Hill FC

2019 Mia Waddington Manly Vale FC

2020 Holly Hetherton Mosman FC

2021 *N/A *N/A

2022 Emma Hills Seaforth FC 

2023 Piper Turton Manly Allambie United FC

Goalkeeper of the Year
Year Name Club

2012 K Eggleston Manly Vale FC

2013 Melinda White Pittwater RSL FC

2014 Melinda White Wakehurst FC

2015 Tara Bradshaw Mosman FC

2016 Shannon Heath Wakehurst FC

2017 Amy Scott Beacon Hill FC

2017 Nicole Rickard HSU

2018 Lauren Scaramuzza Manly Vale FC

2019 Lauren Scaramuzza Manly Vale FC

2020 Kelly Spoerk Mosman FC

2021 *N/A *N/A

2022 Lauren Scaramuzza Manly Vale FC

2023 Kierly Wiggins Seaforth FC
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Golden Boot of the Year

Year Name Club
2007 Hayley Weston Brookvale FC

2008 No awards

2009 Briony Mattocks Brookvale FC
2010 Jemma Euers Brookvale FC
2011 Eliza Ashcroft Manly Vale FC
2012 Eliza Ashcroft Manly Vale FC
2012 Anna Granberg Manly Vale FC
2013 Jess Wootton Beacon Hill FC
2013 Anna Jamison Manly Vale FC
2014 Jemma Euers Brookvale FC
2015 Jemma Euers Brookvale FC
2016 Jemma Euers Brookvale FC
2017 Ayse Adalis Beacon Hill FC
2018 Jess Wootton Beacon Hill FC
2018 Ayse Adalis Beacon Hill FC
2019 Naomi Peterson Beacon Hill FC
2020 Jemma Satchell Manly Vale FC
2021 *N/A *N/A
2022 Sophie Larson Seaforth FC

2023 Nicole Saldern & Chloe 
Higgins

Beacon Hill FC & Manly Vale 
FC

Coach of the Year
Year Name Club

2014 Tony Bruzzano Manly Vale FC

2015 Donna Stuart Wakehurst FC

2016 Vince Vescio Beacon Hill FC

2017 Tony Bruzzano & Roland Winter Manly Vale FC

2018 Colin Euers Brookvale FC

2019 Tony Bruzzano & Roland Winter Manly Vale FC

2020 Hassan Chehab Mosman FC

2021 *N/A *N/A

2022 Chris Wood Seaforth FC

2023 David Laime Beacon Hill FC
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W-AL1 Awards initiated in 2016
* Not awarded due to COVID-19 disruption as teams all played a different number of games.

Goalkeeper of the Year

Year Name Club

2016 Alissa Lukomskyj Seaforth FC

2017 Tayla Carlson Forest Killarney FC

2018 Kelly Spoerk Mosman FC

2019 Bree Bowden Seaforth FC

2019 Monique Frack Brookvale FC

2019 Lucy Eagleton Beacon Hill FC

2020 Beth Moran Curl Curl FC

2021 *N/A *N/A

2022 Rachel West Curl Curl 

2023 Sam Menzies Narrabeen FC

Women’s Amateur League Division 1 - Individual Awards History

Year Name Club

2016 Rachael Lewis HSU
2017 Madeline Cameron Manly Vale FC
2018 Ayla Blakeman Beacon Hill FC
2018 Hannah Grimble Mosman FC
2019 Amee Dawson Pittwater RSL FC
2020 Brittany Rollason BTH Raiders
2020 Stephanie Maiolo Curl Curl FC
2021 *N/A *N/A
2022 Samantha Grant Curl Curl
2023 Sarah Jackson Brookvale FC

Player of the Year
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Coach of the Year

Year Name Club

2016 David Pugh Pittwater RSL FC

2017 Ian Bentham Mosman FC

2018 Stephen Neilan & Roderick 
MacLean Mosman FC

2019 David Pugh Pittwater RSL

2020 Andy Saunders BTH Raiders

2021 *N/A *N/A

2022 Michael Kember Curl Curl

2023 Danny Panetta Wakehurst FC

Golden Boot of the Year

Year Name Club

2016 Madeleine Duncan Mosman FC

2017 Alexandra Valentine Beacon Hill FC

2018 Madeline Wilson Mosman FC

2019 Alysha Rowe Pittwater RSL FC

2020 Stephanie Maiolo Curl Curl FC

2021 *N/A *N/A

2022 Simone Conly Forest Killarney 

2023 Sarah Jackson Brookvale FC
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Competition Trophy Winners
Junior Mixed

Age/Div Champions KO Winners

12/1 Manly Vale Manly Vale

12/2 Seaforth Seaforth

12/3A Mosman Mosman

12/3B Brookvale Narrabeen 

12/4 Harbord Seaforth 

12/5 Beacon Hill Beacon Hill

13/1 BTH Raiders BTH Raiders

13/2 Pittwater A Pittwater A

13/3 Avalon Avalon

13/4 Manly Vale Manly Vale 

14/1 CC Strikers CC Strikers

14/2 CC Strikers CC Strikers

14/3 CC Strikers Forest Killarney

14/4 Seaforth BTH Raiders

15/1 Forest Killarney BTH Raiders

15/2 St Augustine’s B St Augustine’s A

15/3A Mosman Narrabeen

15/4B St Augustine’s Brookvale

16/1 St Augustine’s A BTH Raiders

16/2 Mosman Mosman

16/3 Manly Allambie Wakehurst

18/1 Wakehurst St Augustine’s

18/2 Narrabeen St Augustine’s

18/3A Narrabeen Manly Allambie

18/3B St Augustine’s Dee Why

18/4 CC Strikers CC Strikers

21/1 Brookvale CC Strikers B

21/2 Seaforth Manly Vale

KO Home Team Score KO Away Team Score

Manly Vale 4 St Augustine’s 0

Seaforth 2 Wakehurst 1

Mosman 3 Seaforth 1

Brookvale 0 Narrabeen 2

Harbord 0 Seaforth 1

Mosman 0 Beacon Hill 1

BTH Raiders 2(4) Dee Why 2(2)

Pittwater A 2 Wakehurst 1

Avalon 1 Wakehurst 0

Manly Vale 1 Harbord 0

CC Strikers 5 Wakehurst 0

CC Strikers 2 St Augustine’s 0

Forest Killarney 3 Manly Vale 1

CC Strikers A 1(3) BTH Raiders 1(4)

Forest Killarney 1(3) BTH Raiders 1(4)

St Augustine’s B 1(2) St Augustine’s A 1(4)

Mosman 0 Narrabeen 1

Brookvale 1 Manly Vale 0

BTH Raiders 2 St Augustine’s A 0

Mosman 1 Wakehurst 0

Wakehurst 3 CC Strikers 0

Wakehurst 0 St Augustine’s 4

St Augustine’s 1 Dee Why 0

CC Strikers 0 Manly Allambie 1

St Augustine’s 0 Dee Why 1

CC Strikers 5 Curl Curl 1

Brookvale 0 CC Strikers B 1

Manly Vale 4 Seaforth 2
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Competition Trophy Winners
Senior Men

Age/Div Champions KO Winners

PL Pittwater Narrabeen

PL/R CC Strikers CC Strikers 

AL1 Forest Killarney Forest Killarney

AL1/R St Augustine’s Forest Killarney

AL2 Pittwater Brookvale

AL3 Seaforth Mosman A

AL4 St Augustine’s St Augustine’s

AL5 Mosman Manly Vale B

AL6 Mosman A Mosman A

AL7 Curl Curl A Beacon Hill

O35/1A Pittwater A Pittwater A

O35/1B Dee Why B Dee Why A

O35/3 Pittwater Seaforth A

O35/4 Brookvale Curl Curl A

O35A Manly Allambie Manly Allambie

O35B Curl Curl Curl Curl

O45/1 Mosman A Mosman A

O45/2A Brookvale Brookvale

O45/2B BTH Mosman

O45/3A Avalon Beacon Hill

O45/3B Seaforth Manly Allambie

O45/4 BTH A BTH B

KO Home Team Score KO Away Team Score

Pittwater 1(3) Narrabeen 1(4) 

CC Strikers 1(3) Mosman 1(1)

Forest Killarney 2 Wakehurst 0

Forest Killarney 1 Wakehurst 0

Manly Vale 2(3) Brookvale 2(4)

Manly Vale 0 Mosman A 2

St Augustine’s 4 Curl Curl A 1

Manly Vale A 2 Manly Vale B 4

Mosman A 3 Wakehurst 2

Dee Why 1(3) Beacon Hill 1(4)

Pittwater A 4 Mosman 0

Dee Why B 3 Dee Why A 4

Pittwater 1 Seaforth A 4

Brookvale 0(4) Curl Curl A 0(5) 

Manly Allambie 3 Mosman A 2

Curl Curl 4 Forest Killarney C 1

Manly Allambie 0 Mosman A 3

Brookvale 2 Pittwater 0

Harbord 0(5) Mosman 0(6)

Beacon Hill 1(4) Wakehurst 1(3)

Seaforth 2(3) Manly Allambie 2(4)

BTH A 0 BTH B 2
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Competition Trophy Winners

Junior Girls & Senior Women

Age/Div Champions KO Winners

W12-1 Curl Curl Brookvale 

W12-2 Forest Killarney Forest Killarney 

W12-3 Harbord Harbord

W12-4 Forest Killarney Beacon Hill

W13-1 BTH BTH

W13-2A Pittwater A Pittwater A

W13-2B Beacon Hill Harbord

W13-3A Seaforth B Curl Curl 

W13-3B CC Strikers Forest Killarney 

W14-1 CC Strikers A CC Strikers A

W14-2 Pittwater Pittwater 

W14-3 Brookvale Harbord

W15-1 Wakehurst Seaforth A

W15-2 CC Strikers Harbord

W16-1 Pittwater Pittwater 

W16-2A Curl Curl Narrabeen 

W16-2B Wakehurst Forest Killarney 

W18-1 Manly Vale Wakehurst 

W18-2 Curl Curl Curl Curl 

WPL Seaforth Manly Vale

WPLR Manly Vale Seaforth 

WAL1 Brookvale Brookvale

WAL2 Pittwater Mosman

WAL3 Manly Vale Manly Vale

WAL4 Manly Allambie Manly Allambie

WO40-1 Forest Killarney Wakehurst 

WO40-2 Curl Curl Curl Curl 

WO40-3 Wakehurst CC Strikers

KO Home Team Score KO Away Team Score

CC Strikers 0 Brookvale 1

Forest Killarney 0(2) Manly Vale B 0(1) 

Narrabeen 0 Harbord 2

Forest Killarney 1 Beacon Hill 2

BTH 1(3) Seaforth 1(0)

Pittwater A 1 Manly Allambie 0

Harbord 1(7) CC Strikers A 1(6)

Seaforth B 0 Curl Curl 1

CC Strikers 0 Forest Killarney 2

Wakehurst 0 CC Strikers A 1

Pittwater 0(6) Curl Curl A 0(5)

Brookvale 1(2) Harbord 1(4)

Wakehurst 0 Seaforth A 1

Harbord 4 Wakehurst 0

Pittwater 2 Seaforth 0

Narrabeen 1 Manly Vale 0

Brookvale B 1 Forest Killarney 2

Forest Killarney 0 Wakehurst 2

Curl Curl 3 BTH 0

Wakehurst 0 Manly Vale 3

Manly Vale 1(5) Seaforth 1(6)

Brookvale 2 Mosman 1

Pittwater 1 Mosman 4

Manly Vale 5 BTH 0

Manly Allambie 5 Narrabeen 2

Forest Killarney 1 Wakehurst 2

Forest Killarney 0 Curl Curl 2

Wakehurst 0 CC Strikers 2
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MWFA Challenge Cup

Men's Home Club Name Score Score Away Club Name

Round 1 Dee Why FC 1 v 2 CC Strikers FC

Harbord FC 2 v 1 Seaforth FC

Saint Augustine’s FC 1 v 3 Pittwater RSL FC

BTH Raiders SC 0 v 4 Brookvale FC
Manly Allambie United 

FC 0 v 5 Beacon Hill FC

Mosman FC 9 v 1 Avalon SC

Forest Killarney FC 2 v 0 Wakehurst FC

Narrabeen FC 4 v 1 Manly Vale FC

Round 2 CC Strikers FC 4 v 1 Harbord FC

Pittwater RSL FC 5 v 0 Brookvale FC

Beacon Hill FC 0 v 3 Mosman FC

Forest Killarney FC 0 v 2 Narrabeen FC

Semi-Final CC Strikers FC 1 v 3 Pittwater RSL FC

Mosman FC 2 v 4 Narrabeen FC

Final Pittwater RSL FC 2 v 0 Narrabeen FC

Women's Home Club Name Score Score Away Club Name

Round 1 Manly Vale FC 5 v 6 Curl Curl FC

Beacon Hill FC 2 v 4 Wakehurst FC

Seaforth FC 1 v 0 Brookvale FC

Manly Allambie United FC 2 v 1 Pittwater RSL FC

Semi-Final Curl Curl FC 0 v 1 Wakehurst FC

Seaforth FC 5 v 0 Manly Allambie United FC

Final Wakehurst FC 3 v 4 Seaforth FC
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Knockout Tournaments were held in the following age groups:

• Frank Broughton Cup for U12 Boys

• U13, U14, U15, U16, U17 Boys

• U18 Men

• Robertson Cup for U21 Men

• Bill Cullinan Cup for AA Men

• O35 & O45 Men

FNSW State, Robertson and Cullinan Cups

MWFA Winners

The State, Robertson (U21) and Bill Cullinan (All Age Men) Cup Knockout Tournaments are conducted by

Football NSW Community Football for Association based Men’s and Women’s Teams and Country 

Association representative or Club teams. This tournament attracts over 500 entries each season and

is an opportunity for teams from all areas of Football NSW to compete against teams from outside

their own Association. The table below shows MWFA past winners.

Unfortunately, all competitions were cancelled for 2021 due to COVID-19 & 2022 due to Wet Weather

• Cheryl Salisbury Cup for  WU12

• U13, U14, U16 Girls

• U18, AA Women's

• O30 Women's

Year Club Division

1977 Seaforth YC U21

1991 Wakehurst FC U16

1997 Wakehurst FC U18

1998 St Augustine U21

2001 Seasiders AAW

2002 Pittwater RSL SC U21

2002 Seasiders SC AAW

2003 Seasiders SC AAW

2006 Beacon Hill FC WU14

2007 Wakehurst FC WU12

2008 Brookvale FC AAW

2009 Wakehurst FC U14

2010 Brookvale FC U16

2011 Brookvale FC AAM

2012 Seaforth FC WU18

2012 Beacon Hill FC AAW

2013 Seaforth FC WU18

2013 Wakehurst FC U18

Year Club Division

2016 Wakehurst FC U18

2017 Narrabeen FC AAM

2018 CC Strikers FC U16

2019 Pittwater RSL FC W12

2019 Pittwater RSL FC W16

2019 Forest Killarney FC U18

2019 Avalon Soccer FC W18

2020 *N/A

2021 *N/A

2022 *N/A

2023 Forest Killarney FC U15

2023 BTH U13

2023 Seaforth FC AAW

2023 Pittwater RSL FC W16

2023 BTH Raiders SC W13
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FNSW State, Robertson and Cullinan Cups 2023 Results 

13 Boys
DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team

7th May 1
CC Strikers FC 1 v 4 Winston Hills Bears FC
Narrabeen FC 1 v 0 Sans Souci FC

Lourdes FC 0 v 8 BTH Raiders

21st May 2
BTH Raiders 5 v 1 Dunbar Rovers FC

Northbridge FC 2 v 1 Dee Why FC
Narrabeen FC 3 v 1 Sylvania Heights FC

4th June 3
Mount Colah FC 1 v 2 BTH Raiders

Epping FC 1 v 2 Narrabeen FC

18th June 4
BTH Raiders SC 5 v 1 Banksia Tigers

Lindfield FC 0 v 3 Narrabeen FC

2nd July Semi-Final
BTH Raiders SC 3 v 0 Sporting Rovers
Narrabeen FC 0 v 2 Kellyville Kolts SC

16th July Final BTH Raiders SC 4 v 2 Kellyville Kolts SC

14 Boys
DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team

7th May 1

Quakers Hill SC 0 v 5 Saint Augustine's FC
CC Strikers FC 5 v 0 Milperra Lions FC

Forest Killarney FC 0 v 2 Eschol Park FC
Kissing Point FC 0 v 1 Dee Why FC

21st May 2

Dee Why FC 0 (3) v 0 (4) South Coast United
Saint Augustine's FC 7 v 0 Oran Park Rovers FC

CC Strikers FC 8 v 0 Easts FC
Gymea United 5 v 4 Wakehurst FC

4th June 3
Kellyville Kolts SC 3 v 0 Saint Augustine's FC

CC Strikers 4 v 0 Shellharbour JFC

18th June 4 CC Strikers FC 2 v 0 Harrington United FC

2nd July Semi-Final CC Strikers FC 1 v 2 Balgownie JFC
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15 Boys
DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team

7th May 1

BTH Raiders 1 v 2 Lane Cove West FC
Lilli Pilli FC 2 v 3 Wakehurst FC

Gymea United 1 v 2 Narrabeen FC
Rouse Hill Rams SC 4 v 3 CC Strikers FC A

St Marys FC 0 v 3 Forest Killarney FC
Castle Hill United FC 2 v 3 Saint Augustine's FC

Bangor Brumbies 1 (5) v 1 (4) CC Strikers FC B
Curl Curl FC 2 v 1 Castle Hill Rockets FC

21st May 2

Saint Augustine's FC 3 v 0 Hornsby Heights FC
Curl Curl FC 0 v 2 St Ives FC

Wakehurst FC 0 v 1 Shellharbour JFC
Hills Knights FC 3 v 0 Narrabeen FC

Forest Killarney FC 7 v 2 Sylvania Heights FC

4th June 3
Northbridge FC 3 (3) v 3 (5) Saint Augustine's FC

Kemps Creek United 0 v 7 Forest Killarney FC

18th June 4
Banksia Tigers FC 1 v 0 Saint Augustine's FC
Forest Rangers FC 0 v 3 Forest Killarney FC

2nd July Semi-Final Georges River FC 0 v 2 Forest Killarney FC

16th July Final Forest Killarney FC 3 v 1 Banksia Tigers FC

16 Boys

DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team

7th May 1

Curl Curl FC 1 v 2 Mounties Juniors
CC Strikers FC 3 v 0 Connells Point Rovers FC

Maroubra United 0 v 4 Manly Allambie United FC

21st May 2

Cronulla Seagulls 0 v 2 Wakehurst FC
Saint Augustine's FC 8 v 1 Colo Soccer FC

Figtree FC 2 v 3 CC Strikers FC
Rouse Hill Rams SC 3 v 1 Manly Allambie United FC

4th June 3

Saint Augustine's FC 0 v 2 Enfield FC
Terrigal United FC 1 v 2 CC Strikers FC
Camden Tigers FC 0 v 5 Wakehurst FC

18th June 4
Enfield FC 3 v 0 Wakehurst FC

CC Strikers 0 v 3 West Pymble FC
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18 Boys

DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team

21st May 2

Forest Killarney FC 1 v 4 Auburn District FC

Lindfield FC 2 v 5 CC Strikers FC

Connells Point Rovers FC 2 v 4 Wakehurst FC

4th June 3

Northbridge FC 3 (4) v 3 (5) Wakehurst FC

Cronulla Seagulls FC 3 v 0 Seaforth FC

Greenacre Eagles FC 1 v 4 Narrabeen FC

Banksia Tigers FC 0 v 1 CC Strikers FC

18th June 4

Burwood FC 2 v 1 Wakehurst FC A

Rouse Hill Rams SC 2 v 5 Narrabeen FC

CC Strikers FC 1 v 2 Kirrawee Kangaroos FC

2nd July Semi-Final Burwood FC 3 v 2 Narrabeen FC

21 Boys

DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team

21st May 2

Eschol Park FC 2 v 3 Curl Curl FC

AC United FC 1 v 2 CC Strikers A

Kemps Creek United 0 v 4 Brookvale FC

Grays Point SC 4 v 0 Harbord FC

4th June 3

Narellan Rangers SC 3 v 1 CC Strikers A

Curl Curl FC 1 v 0 Lilli Pilli FC

Greenacre Eagles 1 v 3 Brookvale FC

18th June 4
Glenwood Redbacks FC 3 v 0 Curl Curl FC

Brookvale FC 2 v 0 Harrington United

2nd July Semi-Final Cronulla Seagulls FC 2 (5) v 2 (3) Brookvale FC

O35
DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team

4th June 3 Lindfield FC 0 vs 2 Wakehurst FC A

18th June 4 Wakehurst FC A 3 vs 1 Northbridge FC

2nd July Semi-Final Como Jannali SC 3 vs 1 Wakehurst FC A
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13 Girls

DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team

21st May 2 Bexley North FC 2 v 3 Seaforth FC

4th June 3

Bass Hill Rangers 3 v 0 CC Strikers FC

Seaforth FC 7 v 1 Camden Tigers FC

Easts FC 1 v 3 Pittwater RSL FC

Panania Diggers SC 0 v 4 Curl Curl FC

BTH Raiders SC 5 v 0 Castle Hill Rockets FC

18th June 4

Curl Curl FC 3 v 0 Engadine Eagles FC

BTH Raiders SC 4 v 0 Turramurra/Kissing Point

Seaforth FC 7 v 0 Pagewood Botany FC

Bass Hill Rangers FC 0 v 1 Pittwater RSL FC

2nd July Semi-Final
BTH Raiders SC 2 v 0 Curl Curl FC

Seaforth FC 1 (3) v 1 (4) Pittwater

16th July Final Pittwater RSL FC 0 v 1 BTH Raiders SC

14 Girls

DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team

4th June 3
Connells Point Rovers FC 1 v 9 CC Strikers FC A

Lindfield FC 5 v 0 Avalon SC

18th June 4 Easts FC 2 v 3 CC Strikers FC

2nd July Semi-Final Lilli Pilli FC 3 (4) v 3 (5) CC Strikers A

16th July Final CC Strikers FC 0 v 1 Lindfield FC
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16 Girls

DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team

21st May 2

Curl Curl FC 5 v 0 Kellyville Kolts SC

Avalon SC 1 v 0 Maroubra United

Bonnet Bay FC 0 v 9 Pittwater RSL FC A

Pittwater RSL FC B 1 v 13 Northbridge FC

4th June 3
Pittwater RSL FC  A 6 v 0 Castle Hill United FC

Lindfield FC A 5 v 1 Curl Curl FC

Roselea FC 1 v 0 Avalon SC

18th June 4 Hornsby Heights FC 0 v 3 Pittwater RSL FC A

2nd July Semi-Final Lindfield FC 0 v 1 Pittwater RSL FC A

16th July Final Northbridge FC 1 v 2 Pittwater RSL FC A

18 Girls

DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team

21st May 2
Manly Vale FC 7 v 0 West Pymble FC

Kanwal FC 0 v 16 Forest Killarney FC

4th June 3

Hornsby Heights FC 0 v 2 Narrabeen FC

Prospect United SC 1 v 8 Forest Killarney FC

Lilli Pilli FC 1 v 6 Manly Vale FC

18th June 4

Rouse Hill Rams SC 3 v 0 Narrabeen FC

Forest Killarney FC 3 v 2 Marton FC

Roselea FC 0 v 2 Manly Vale FC

2nd July Semi-Final
Rouse Hill Rams SC 1 v 2 Manly Vale FC

Shellharbour JFC 4 v 0 Forest Killarney FC

16th July Final Shellharbour JFC 3 v 0 Manly Vale FC
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AAW

DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team

7th May 1

Tahmoor SC 0 v 3 Manly Vale FC

Lokomotiv Cove FC 2 v 1 Curl Curl FC

Dunbar Rovers FC 7 v 2 Manly Allambie United FC

Pittwater RSL FC 3 v 1 Sydney University SFC

Coogee United FC 2 v 0 Brookvale FC

Waverly Old Boys FC 2 v 4 Wakehurst FC

21st May 2

Pittwater RSL FC 4 v 0 Leichhardt Saints FC

Beacon Hill FC 9 v 2 Lokomotiv Cove FC

Liverpool Olympic FC 0 v 3 Seaforth FC

Miranda Magpies FC 2 v 1 Wakehurst FC

Manly Vale FC 3 v 0 Randwick City FC

4th June 3

Lindfield FC 1 v 2 Beacon Hill FC

Harrington United FC 0 v 5 Pittwater RSL FC

UTS FC 0 v 1 Manly Vale FC

Seaforth FC 2 v 1 Gymea United FC

18th June 4

Northbridge FC 2 v 1 Pittwater RSL FC

Dunbar Rovers FC 1 v 6 Beacon Hill FC

Seaforth FC 2 (5) v 2 (4) Manly Vale FC

2nd July Semi-Final
Seaforth FC 3 v 0 Thirroul JFC

Beacon Hill FC 2 v 0 Northbridge FC

16th July Final Beacon Hill FC 0 v 1 Seaforth FC
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Club Age Group

Belrose-Terry Hills Raiders FC U13

CC Strikers FC U14

Forest Killarney FC U15

St Augustines A FC U16

Forest Killarney FC U17

Wakehurst A FC U18

Brookvale FC U21

Pittwater A RSL FC O35

Mosman A FC O45

Pittwater RSL FC AAM

Belrose-Terry Hills Raiders FC W13

CC Strikers FC W14

Wakehurst FC W15

Pittwater RSL FC W16

Manly Vale FC W18

Forest Killarney FC W30

Seaforth FC AAW

Since 1971 the Champion of Champions tournament has been conducted by Football NSW Community 
Football and is the pinnacle of Association based competition from all over the State.

Champion teams from every FNSW Association (Metropolitan & Country) play against each other in a 
knockout competition to decide the ultimate Champion in each age group.

Unfortunately, all competitions were cancelled for 2021 due to COVID-19

FNSW Champion of Champions Participants

57



FNSW Champion of Champions Winners

Year Club Division

1971 Seaforth YC U21

1975 Wakehurst FC U18

1976 Seaforth YC U21

1977 Seaforth YC U18

1979 Narrabeen FC U18

1980 Terrey Hills U21

1980 Avalon Soccer Utd All Age Men

1981 Curl Curl FC U18

1983 Killarney SC U21

1985 Seaforth YC All Age Men

1989 Brookvale All Age Men

1990 Wakehurst FC U15

1990 Brookvale FC All Age Men

1992 Seasiders All Age Men

1994 Seasiders All Age Women

1995 CC Strikers FC U12

1995 Brookvale All Age Men

1997 Pittwater RSL U14

1997 Seasiders All Age Women

1997 Wakehurst FC All Age Men

1998 Brookvale FC All Age Men

1998 Seasiders All Age Women

2000 Seasiders All Age Women

2001 Seasiders All Age Women

2001 Pittwater RSL FC All Age Men

2002 Seasiders All Age Women

2002 Brookvale SC All Age Men

2003 Brookvale SC All Age Men

2004 Seaforth FC W12

2005 Wakehurst FC W12

2005 Beacon Hill FC W14

2005 Beacon Hill FC W16

2006 Brookvale FC All Age Women

2007 Avalon Soccer W18

2007 Beacon Hill FC W16

2009 Wakehurst FC U14

2010 Forest Killarney FC U11

Year Club Division

2010 Brookvale FC U16

2010 Wakehurst FC W16

2010 Brookvale FC O35 Men

2011 Pittwater FC All Age Men

2011 Manly Vale FC All Age Women

2011 Seaforth FC W16

2012 Manly Vale FC All Age Women

2012 Pittwater RSL FC All Age Men

2013 Avalon Soccer WU16

2013 Seaforth FC WU18

2013 Wakehurst FC U18

2014 Wakehurst FC O35 Men

2014 Brookvale FC WU14

2014 Avalon Soccer WU16

2014 Wakehurst FC WU18

2015 Wakehurst FC U18

2016 Forest Killarney FC U13

2016 Wakehurst FC U18

2016 Narrabeen FC All Age Men

2017 Forest Killarney FC U12

2017 Forest Killarney FC U14

2018 Avalon Soccer Club W16

2019 Dee Why FC U12

2019 Belrose Terrey Hills W15

2019 Pittwater RSL FC O30 Women

2019 Brookvale FC All Age Men

2020 N/A

2021 N/A

2022 Pittwater RSL FC W15

2022 Seaforth FC All Age Women

2023 CC Strikers FC W14

2023 Wakehurst FC W15

2023 Brookvale FC U21

2023 Seaforth FC All Age Women

2023 Pittwater RSL FC All Age Men

2023 Forest Killarney FC O30 Women
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FNSW Champion of Champions Results 2023

13 Boys
DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team

24th September 2 BTH Raiders SC 4 v 0 Northbridge FC
8th October 3 Ryde Panthers FC 0 v 4 BTH Raiders SC

15th October Semi-Final Earlwood Wanderers FC 0 v 3 BTH Raiders SC
22nd October Grand Final BTH Raiders SC 4 v 5 Horsley Park United

14 Boys
DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team

24th September 2 Maroubra United 2 v 3 CC Strikers 
8th October 3 CC Strikers FC 1 v 3 Eschol Park FC

15 Boys
DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team

24th September 2 Forest Killarney FC 3 v 1 Lindfield FC
8th October 3 Maccabi Hakoah Juniors 0 v 3 Forest Killarney FC

15th October Semi-Final Greenacre Eagles FC 0 v 3 Forest Killarney FC
22nd October Grand Final Forest Killarney FC 1 v 2 Banksia Tigers FC

16 Boys
DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team

24th September 2 Saint Augustine's FC 3 v 0 North Sydney United
8th October 3 Maccabi Hakoah Juniors 0 v 6 Saint Augustine's FC

15th October 2023 Semi-Final Enfield FC 2 v 1 Saint Augustine's FC
17 Boys

DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team
24th September 2 Pagewood Botany FC 1 v 4 Forest Killarney FC

8th October 3 AC United FC 1 v 0 Forest Killarney FC
18 Boys

DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team
24th September 2 Waverley Old Boys FC 4 v 5 Wakehurst FC

8th October 3 Wakehurst FC 2 v 0 Banksia Tigers FC
15th October Semi-Final Wakehurst FC 5 v 1 Berkeley Vale SC
22nd October Grand Final Cronulla Seagulls FC 1 v 0 Wakehurst FC

All Age Men's
DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team

24th September 2 Auburn District FC 1 v 4 Pittwater RSL FC
8th October 3 Fairfield Bulls FC 0 v 2 Pittwater RSL FC

15th October Semi-Final Pittwater RSL FC 3 v 0 Glebe Gorillas FC

22nd October Grand Final West Pennant Hills 
Cherrybrook FC 2 v 5 Pittwater RSL FC

O35 Men's
DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team

24th September 2 Dunbar Rovers FC 2 v 1 Pittwater RSL FC
O45 Men's

DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team
24th September 2 Mascot Kings FC 0 v 2 Mosman FC

8th October 3 Epping FC 1 v 7 Mosman FC
15th October Semi-Final Cronulla Seagulls FC 2 v 1 Mosman FC
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13 Girls
DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team

24th September 2 Easts FC 1 v 4 BTH Raiders SC
8th October 3 BTH Raiders SC 3 v 0 Camden Tigers FC

15th October Semi-Final BTH Raiders SC 1 (3) v 1 (4) Kellyville United
14 Girls

DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team
24th September 2 Easts FC 0 v 2 CC Strikers FC

8th October 3 CC Strikers FC 2 v 1 Lindfield FC
15th October Semi-Final Lilli Pilli FC 1 v 2 CC Strikers FC
22nd October Grand Final CC Strikers FC 4 v 1 East Gosford FC

15 Girls
DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team

24th September 2 Easts FC 2 v 3 Wakehurst FC
8th October 3 Wakehurst FC 3 v 0 Lugarno FC

15th October Semi-Final Wakehurst FC 5 v 1 Harrington United FC
22nd October Grand Final Lilli Pilli FC 0 v 4 Wakehurst FC

16 Girls
DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team

24th September 2 Maroubra United 0 v 6 Pittwater RSL FC
8th October 3 Pittwater RSL FC 3 v 0 Banksia Tigers FC

15th October Semi-Final Pittwater RSL FC 4 v 1 Kincumber FC
22nd October Grand Final Lindfield FC 2 v 0 Pittwater RSL FC

18 Girls
DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team

24th September 2 Queens Park FC 0 v 9 Manly Vale FC
8th October 3 Hornsby Heights FC 0 v 3 Manly Vale FC

15th October Semi-Final Marton FC 0 v 3 Manly Vale FC
22nd October Grand Final Manly Vale FC 0 v 3 Shellharbour JFC

All Age Women's
DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team

24th September 2 Connells Point Rovers FC 1 v 3 Seaforth FC
8th October 3 Terrigal United FC 0 v 1 Seaforth FC

15th October Semi-Final Seaforth FC 3 v 1 Woonona Sharks JFC
22nd October Grand Final Jamisontown Giants FC 1 v 3 Seaforth FC

O30 Women's
DATE Round Home Team Score Score Away Team

24th September 2 Coogee United FC 0 v 2 Forest Killarney FC
8th October 3 Rydalmere FC 0 v 3 Forest Killarney FC

15th October Semi-Final Forest Killarney FC 3 v 0 Thirroul JFC
22nd October Grand Final Epping FC 2 v 8 Forest Killarney FC
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Year
Association Winner 
Mixed Competition

Association Winner
Women Competition

2020 MWFA MWFA

2021 Not Played Due to COVID 19 Not Played Due to COVID 19

2022 MWFA MWFA

2023 MWFA MWFA

NFSA-MWFA Champions Cup

NSFA and MWFA have introduced the NSFA/MWFA Champion Cup. Champion teams play 
against each other in a competition to decide the Champion Association in each age group for 

men and women.

Competition Home Team Score Score Away Team

12 Girls Curl Curl 0 v 7 Lindfield

13 Girls BTH Raiders 1 v 0 North Sydney United

14 Girls CC Strikers 1 v 1 Northbridge

15 Girls Wakehurst 2 v 0 Lindfield

16 Girls Pittwater 1 v 2 Lindfield

18 Girls Manly Vale 1 v 2 Hornsby Heights

O30 Women Forest Killarney 9 v 1 Kissing Point

All Age Women Seaforth 5 v 1 Lindfield

12 Boys North Sydney United 2 v 1 Manly Vale

13 Boys Northbridge 0 v 2 BTH Raiders

14 Boys Lindfield 0 v 2 CC Strikers

15 Boys Lindfield 1 v 3 Forest Killarney

16 Boys North Sydney United 1 v 4 St Augustine’s A

18 Mens Lindfield 2 v 4 Wakehurst A

21 Mens North Sydney United 3 v 1 Brookvale

O35 Mens Lindfield 3 v 3 Pittwater RSL A

O45 Mens North Sydney United 2 v 1 Mosman A

All Age Mens Willoughby Dalleys 0 v 2 Pittwater RSL
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Select MUFC - NFSA - MWFA 

Year MWFA MUFC

2014 2 v 6

2015 0 v 2

2016 1 v 6

2017 1 v 2

2018 0 v 2

2019 1 v 1

2020 1 v 6

2021 2 v 4

2022 2 (7) v 2 (6)

2023 0 v 5

Year MWFA NSFA

2019 0 (5) v 0 (3)

2020 3 v 0

2021 2 v 1

2022 3 v 2

2023 2 (4) v 2 (2)

Men's Women’s 
Year MWFA MUFC

2019 0 v 5

2020 1 v 4

2021 6 v 0

2022 Not Played

2023 Not Played

Year MWFA NSFA

2018 4 v 1

2019 3 v 0

2020 0 v 1

2021 0 (3) v 0 (5)

2022 4 v 1

2023 1 v 0
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Each year both MWFA and NSFA assemble a select team (a women's and a men's) to compete 
against each other during the preseason. MWFA will invite a coach, usually the coach of the year from 
the previous season to select a squad of 18 players representing all 17 clubs. MWFA Select teams 
then play MUFC. 
 



MWFA Women's World Cup Tournament Report  

In 2023, Australia and New Zealand hosted the Women’s World Cup tournament between July 20th –
August 20th, 2023, across 10 different cities with a record-high of 64 matches played.
To celebrate this event, the MWFA ran our own Women's World Cup at Cromer Park.

The MWFA invited our 16 clubs with women’s programs to enter a team in both the U8 & U11 age 
groups for a series of games, run just like the World Cup.

Tournament Details: 
Games were all played on Cromer Park 1 on the same days that the Matildas and the Ferns competed. 
The Far Post was open all competition nights, showing all games on the big screen for players to enjoy. 
Each team were drawn as a country at the MWFA Women’s World Cup draw night hosted at The Far 
Post. All players received medallions for participation in the tournament, all semi-finalist received a 
voucher for a meal at the Far Post and the winners of each age group received official FIFA Women's 
world cup scarfs.
The MWFA were grateful to receive grants from the FNSW Legacy Fund in partnership with the Office of 
Sport as well as the Northern Beaches Council. This amount totalling $10,500. 
 
Coach and Referee Development: 
The aim of this event was to boost the interest of football amongst young females in the Manly 
Warringah area and create an unforgettable experience for all participants while also increasing 
referee and coach numbers amongst young women. This tournament was a great opportunity for young 
females to learn a new skill and try a new aspect of the game they love. 

Coach Development Manager, Eugene offered a two-day coaching education program for players 
interested in coaching a ‘World Cup team’. This was offered to players who are passionate about 
acquiring new coaching skills in a non-competitive environment. 

The grant funding was used to put the twelve females listed below, through the MWFRA Referee 
course, each of them refereeing at the tournament and regular season matches (total regular season 
matches listed beside their name). All have been a great addition to the membership of the MWFRA 
and their goal to have all games covered during the regular season in 2023. MWFA hope all referees 
continue their journey in 2024 and beyond. 

• Peregring Keenlyside (32)
• Ruby Blades (41)
• Amirah Sergas (32)
• Liberty Blundell (17)

• Sinead Fisher (7)
• Jessica Preston (5)
• Amelia Turnbull (23)
• Tahnee Knieling (10)

• Madeleine Tool (8)
• Grace Mclean (25)
• Bianca Walton (12)
• Alyssha Armitage (15)
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MWFA Women's World Cup Tournament 
Competition Results 

Round 1 - 19th July 2023

Age Group League Home Team Score Score Away Team

W-8 Group A New Zealand 2 v 0 Norway

W-11 Group B Australia 0 v 1 Republic of Ireland

W-8 Group C Spain 3 v 0 Costa Rica

W-11 Group D Denmark 0 v 3 China

W-8 Group E USA 1 v 2 Vietnam

W-11 Group F France 5 v 0 Jamaica

W-8 Group G Sweden 1 v 0 South Africa

W-11 Group H Germany 5 v 0 Morocco

Round 2 - 25th July 2023

Age Group League Home Team Score Score Away Team

W-11 Group H Korea Republic 1 v 1 Morocco

W-11 Group H Germany 3 v 2 Colombia

W-11 Group D England 3 v 0 Haiti

W-11 Group B Nigeria 0 v 2 Canada

W-8 Group C Zambia 0 v 2 Japan

W-8 Group A New Zealand 6 v 0 Philippines

W-8 Group A Switzerland 1 v 3 Norway

W-8 Group E Netherlands 1 v 3 Portugal

W-11 Group F Brazil 0 v 6 Panama

W-8 Group G Italy 0 v 2 Argentina

Round 3 - 27th July 2023

Age Group League Home Team Score Score Away Team

W-8 Group G Argentina 1 v 1 South Africa

W-8 Group G Sweden 0 v 1 Italy

W-11 Group B Canada 2 v 0 Republic of Ireland

W-11 Group B Australia 1 v 3 Nigeria

W-11 Group H Colombia 0 v 2 Korea Republic

W-8 Group C Japan 0 v 2 Costa Rica

W-8 Group C Spain 1 v 1 Zambia

W-11 Group D England 6 v 0 Denmark

W-11 Group D China 3 v 1 Haiti

W-8 Group A Philippines 2 v 1 Switzerland
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Round 4 - 31st July 2023

Age Group League Home Team Score Score Away Team

W-8 Group A Switzerland 0 v 5 New Zealand

W-8 Group A Norway 2 v 2 Philippines

W-11 Group D China 1 v 2 England

W-11 Group D Haiti 1 v 1 Denmark

W-11 Group H Korea Republic 0 v 0 Germany

W-11 Group F France 7 v 0 Brazil

W-11 Group F Panama 1 v 0 Jamaica

W-11 Group H Morocco 2 v 1 Colombia

W-8 Group E USA 0 v 3 Netherlands

W-8 Group E Portugal 2 v 1 Vietnam

Round 5 - 7th August 2023

Age Group League Home Team Score Score Away Team

W-8 Group C Japan 0 v 1 Spain

W-8 Group C Costa Rica 2 v 1 Zambia

W-11 Group F Panama 0 v 3 France

W-8 Group E Portugal 7 v 0 USA

W-8 Group E Vietnam 2 v 1 Netherlands

W-8 Group G Argentina 4 v 1 Sweden

W-8 Group G South Africa 1 v 2 Italy

W-11 Group B Canada 3 v 0 Australia

W-11 Group B Republic of Ireland 1 v 2 Nigeria

W-11 Group F Jamaica 3 v 0 Brazil

Semi Finals - 11th August 2023

Age Group League Home Team Score Score Away Team

W-8 A vs E New Zealand 2 v 0 Portugal

W-8 C vs G Spain 1 v 4 Argentina

W-11 B vs F Canada 2 v 0 France

W-11 D vs H England 4 v 0 Germany

Finals - 11th August 2023

Age Group League Home Team Score Score Away Team

W-8 A vs G New Zealand 2 v 1 Argentina

W-11 B vs D Canada 0 v 0 England
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MWFA Women's World Cup Tournament 
Competition Tables 

U8 Competition
Group A Club P W D L GF GA GD Pts

New Zealand Manly Vale B 3 3 0 0 13 0 13 15
Norway Manly Vale A 3 1 1 1 5 5 0 7

Philippines Harbord 3 1 1 1 4 9 -5 7
Switzerland Beacon Hill A 3 0 0 3 2 10 -8 0

Group C Club P W D L GF GA GD Pts
Spain Brookvale 3 2 1 0 5 1 4 12

Costa Rica Avalon 3 2 0 1 4 4 0 10
Japan CC Strikers C 3 1 0 2 2 3 -1 5

Zambia Wakehurst 3 0 1 2 2 4 -2 2
Group E Club P W D L GF GA GD Pts
Portugal Pittwater A 3 3 0 0 12 2 10 15
Vietnam Manly Allambie 3 2 0 1 5 3 2 10

Netherlands CC Strikers D 3 1 0 2 5 5 0 5
USA Forest Killarney 3 0 0 3 1 12 -11 0

Group G Club P W D L GF GA GD Pts
Argentina Pittwater B 3 2 1 0 7 2 5 12

Italy CC Strikers A 3 2 0 1 3 3 0 10
Sweden CC Strikers B 3 1 0 2 2 5 -3 5

South Africa Beacon Hill B 3 0 1 2 2 4 -2 2

U11 Competition
Group B Club P W D L GF GA GD Pts
Canada CC Strikers 3 3 0 0 7 0 7 15
Nigeria Brookvale 3 2 0 1 5 4 1 10

Republic of Ireland BTH 3 1 0 2 2 4 -2 5
Australia Mosman 3 0 0 3 1 7 -6 0
Group D Club MP W D L GF GA GD Pts
England Harbord B 3 3 0 0 11 1 10 15

China Manly Allambie B 3 2 0 1 7 3 4 10
Haiti Avalon B 3 0 1 2 2 7 -5 2

Denmark Narrabeen 3 0 1 2 1 10 -9 2
Group F Club P W D L GF GA GD Pts
France Dee Why 3 3 0 0 15 0 15 15

Panama Manly Vale 3 2 0 1 7 3 4 10
Jamaica Harbord A 3 1 0 2 3 6 -3 5

Brazil Manly Allambie A 3 0 0 3 0 15 -15 0
Group H Club P W D L GF GA GD Pts
Germany Pittwater 3 2 1 0 8 2 6 12

Korea Republic Wakehurst 3 1 2 0 3 1 2 9
Morocco Avalon A 3 1 1 1 5 8 -3 7

Colombia Beacon Hill 3 0 0 3 4 8 -4 0
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Chairperson’s Report

After 2 years of constant interference with Covid followed by a year of consistent rain, it was very 
pleasing to have a season free from any interruption. I am sure that we all enjoyed a season of 
sunshine and fun filled football games. It was certainly great to see thousands of smiling faces 
every weekend playing on fields across our vast association. From 7pm on Friday until 5pm on 
Sunday there was always a game somewhere that was worthwhile watching. It all culminated in 3 
sensational finals days at our home of football, Cromer Park in August.  The Grand Finals were all 
watched by large crowds. Seeing the excitement and enjoyment throughout all our clubs was worth 
all the work that was put into making them special days.  The effort that the MWFA staff and 
volunteers from all clubs put into making these days special was huge. A massive thank you goes 
out to every one of you. The jobs ranged from set up to clean up, bbq duty or helping with the 
presentations. This is what community sport is all about. 

We are fortunate that all 17 of our clubs have hard working and reliable committees who all worked 
tirelessly throughout the year to have all clubs running brilliantly. The efforts of those people made 
the jobs of the MWFA staff and our various committees so much easier. 

I am of the honest opinion that our association has the best administration team in the state, and 
while we have had to rearrange our staff structure during the year, the new set up is a better model 
than the previous one. We should all be proud of our staff. I am sure we will all get the full benefit of 
the restructure next season, as they all know the full context of their individual roles.

I would like to thank the MWFRA for their effort in supplying match official to a large percentage of 
our games, a very big task indeed. Again, I ask you all to assist in any way you can to help stamp out 
abuse towards referees, or for that matter, abuse towards anyone. 

The MWFA Grading Committee, Competitions Committee, Appeals Committee, Disciplinary 
Committee, Registrars and Coaching Development team have all performed exceptionally well 
throughout the season and should be all individually thanked on a job well done.

I would also like to thank my fellow MWFA Board members for the many hours that they devote to 
their numerous roles that help make this all happen. We have a very dedicated team that always go 
the extra mile to get the job done properly. The next major project being worked on is the building of 
new change rooms and canteen at Cromer field 1. Director Linda Ward started the ball rolling when 
she created a rough layout and design which we then presented to council and the momentum is 
growing. Hopefully it will get approved in the near future. If so, this would be the final piece of the 
Cromer Park jigsaw. It will be a magnificent centre for football on the beaches.

The Northern Beaches Council deserve a massive thank you for everything they do for football in 
our area and a special mention for bringing the big screen to Cromer Park for the Matildas game. It 
was a season highlight that many local people enjoyed and appreciated.

On the field we have had a great season with FNSW having us host the State Cup Finals at Cromer 
Park. We had 9 local teams in the finals with 5 of those teams winning. We were also asked to host 
the FNSW AYL Semi Finals, again we had 4 teams represented in the 5 games, with 3 of the teams 
going on to the Finals. Unfortunately, despite playing great football, we lost all 3 games.
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David Wilson 

Chairman - MWFA

Our close relationship with our football neighbours NSFA continues to grow and we enjoyed winning 
the Men’s and Women’s select games as well as the Champions Cup which we have now won both 
the male and female competitions for the third time in a row. Our Champion of Champions teams 
made an incredible 11 finals winning an amazing number of 6 titles.  A great season both on and off 
the park showing the overall quality of our football community is at an extremely high level.

I hope you all have a great festive season with your loved ones and return refreshed and ready for an 
exciting season with anticipated growth in the women’s game due to an incredible World Cup. 
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CEO Report

2023 – Football does the talking!

How good was it to complete the 2023 season without any major disruptions after three years of 
COVID-19 and last year’s rainstorms.

Football matches and the cut and thrust of games was the focus of the year and it was great to see 
20,000 players get through the week-to-week season and take part in the Football NSW 
competitions.

On top of that, in the space of 12 months we won a record six Champion of Champions 
Competitions from 11 finalists, hosted the Football NSW State Cup Finals (and won 5 titles), hosted 
a Liberty W-League match, hosted a Pararoos International against the USA, watched 12 local 
players from MWFA Clubs and Manly United represent our National Teams and while the world’s 
focus was on Australia for the Women’s World Cup we hosted a successful Mini World Cup to help 
inspire local girls to drive a passion for football and a Live Site that saw 2,000 at Cromer Park for the 
Matildas’ World Cup semi final against England.

It has been an incredibly busy, successful and satisfying season for all levels of our game on the 
Northern Beaches.

And we should all (players, coaches, families, clubs, volunteers and administrators) sit back and 
reflect on not just the last 12 months but the structure and environment we have in place on the 
Northern Beaches that allows this type of success at every level of our game.

At a time when the world is screaming ahead at 100 miles an hour and patience and humility is 
constantly tested, we should take a step back and admire and revel in what we have collectively built 
and what we collectively continue to drive and enjoy.

2023 saw us increase players numbers to 19,068 and as always, the key drivers to our structure and 
success are our volunteers across all 17 clubs and the MWFA. It is these volunteers (coaches, 
committee members, BBQ helpers, gear stewards, groundsmen, team referees, registrars and 
managers) that are the lifeblood of our game.

A lot of people put in a lot of effort to be able to coordinate the MWFA Clubs and competition and we 
could not do what we do and enjoy our weekend football matches without you.

I would like to thank the dedicated MWFA staff for their work in 2023. To Lee-Anne Sestanovich, 
Angela Crandell, Eugene Lawrenz, Alysha Rowe, Eric Subijano, Anthony Pavlidis and Sigrid Mulherin 
(MWFRA), thank you for your work throughout the year.

I’d also like to thank the MWFA Directors, David Wilson, Dave Anglicas, Rhonda Ferguson, Terry 
Gatward, Joseph Sorbara and Linda Ward for their support and hard work over the last 12 months. So 
much work goes into running the MWFA Competitions and you were all a huge help.

The MWFRA, led by Toby Williams, played a significant role in our season and continue to be an 
enormous stakeholder in our game and asset to the competitions. 2023 saw us all work together to 
collectively grow referee numbers through a few shared initiatives and that will continue into 2024.

No referees. No game. It’s something we need to constantly remind ourselves of.
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I would also like to extend a Thank You to the members of the various Committees that assist with the 
running of our competitions. The Competition Committee, Registration and Grading Committee 
(including our two Registrars Annette Burgoyne and Peter Auld), Disciplinary Committee and Appeals 
Committee all functioned well in 2023.

A big Thank You to anyone who attended The Far Post at Cromer Park as it continues to grow and long 
may it continue to be a hub for local football.

Profits from the Club’s operations will again be split 50/50 between the MWFA and Manly United.

Grand Final Days were a huge success in 2023 with all three days full of memorable matches as we 
crowned the winners of all competitions across the men’s, women’s, girls and boys competitions.

The Women’s Premier League Grand Final saw Manly Vale return to the top of the tree defeating 
Wakehurst 3-0 in the decider after both teams knocked off higher-placed sides in the semi finals. A 
special mention to Seaforth for taking out the Premiership.

The Men’s Premier League Grand Final was an entertaining battle that eventually saw Narrabeen etch 
their names on the trophy after a dramatic 4-3 penalty shoot out win over Pittwater, who had previously 
taken out the Premiership.

Forest Killarney won promotion back to the Men’s Premier League and took out the Men’s AL1 Grand 
Final 2-0 over Wakehurst while Brookvale defeated Mosman 2-1 in the Women’s AL1 decider.

Earlier in the year, Pittwater (men’s) and Seaforth (women’s) won the MWFA Challenge Cup Finals; both 
clubs taking out the Challenge Cup/Premiership double.

The season was capped off with the 2023 Football NSW Champion of Champions and it will go down as 
the most successful Champion of Champions tournament for any Association in NSW in the history of 
the competition.

MWFA teams took part in 11 of the 17 Champions of Champion Finals with the MWFA claiming 6 Title. 
Both achievements were Football NSW records and is a stunning illustration of the power of our 
competitions and the work of all 17 Clubs.

The success warrants individual accolades for our 2023 Champion of Champions.

Pittwater won the Men’s All-Age defeating West Pennant Hills-Cherrybrook 5-2. The Pitts rolled their 
opposition early to lead 3-0 before finally prevailing 5-2 thanks to a double from Josh Yeates and goals 
to Riley Kilpatrick, John Walker and Odin Seoane Racano.

Seaforth claimed back-to-back titles in the Women’s All-Age competition, defeating Jamisontown
Giants 3-1 in a dominant display with goals coming through Michelle Le Roux, Hannah Griffiths and 
Kristina Reisinger.

The matches saw Chris Wood take out a unique double as he was Head Coach for both Men’s and 
Women’s teams after taking the reins at Pittwater mid season.

Brookvale won the U21 Men’s competition after beating Cronulla Seagulls 2-1 in a tense final thanks to 
strikes from Luca Ball and Thomas Sims.
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Forest Killarney won the Women’s Over 30s Final, hammering Epping Eastwood 8-2 with striker Karka 
Ray scoring 5 and further goals to Erika Alker (2) and Stacey Beer. The win was even more impressive 
as the team played the regular season in the MWFA Women’s O40/1 competition.

The Wakehurst U15 girls team were equally as impressive, leading from start to finish to defeat Lilli 
Pilli 4-0. The girls led 2-0 after 8 minutes and pulled away with Jessica Clagnan scoring a hat trick and 
Kiera Gard notching the 4th. 

The CC Strikers Girls 14s team were our youngest winners and they started the ball rolling on Finals 
day by thumping East Gosford 4-1 thanks to an Erin Dunne double and goals to Lily Gibbons and 
Kaitlinn Dune.

Our Champion of Champions Runners up in 2023 were:

BTH U13 boys, who went down 5-4 to Horsley Park. Goals to Kye Kearney, Luke Wicks (2) and Cooper 
Gray were not enough as they fell to a long-range Golden Goal in the last minute of extra time.

Forest Killarney U15 boys lost to Banksia Tigers 2-1. After a slow start the Forest team came 
screaming home but a goal from Beau Alcock was not enough.

The Pittwater U16 girls fell short of winning consecutive Champion of Champions, losing 2-0 to 
Lindfield, a team they also faced in the Champions Cup a few weeks earlier. 

Wakehurst were unlucky runners up in the Men’s U18 final, falling 1-0 to Cronulla Seagulls with a late 
long-range goal in difficult windy conditions.

The Manly Vale U18 Women’s team also fell at the last hurdle, beaten 3-0 by Shell Harbour FC, the 
identical scoreline and opponent from the State Cup Final earlier in the year.

The unprecedented success was acknowledged by Football NSW.

Leading into the Champion of Champions tournament, the MWFA and Northern Suburbs Football 
Association contested the “Champions Cup” with the MWFA retaining both trophies – men’s and 
women’s.

With three points for a win and one point for a draw, the MWFA won the men’s competition 19-10 and 
the women’s title 13-10.

Midway through the season, Cromer Park hosted the Football NSW State Cup Finals as Valentine 
Sports Park was used as a Women’s World Cup training centre, and MWFA teams took part in 7 of the 
14 finals, claiming 5 wins.

Such was the success of local teams in the State Cup that two games were all-MWFA affairs in the 
Women’s All-Age and Girls U13s while MWFA clubs played in all 5 women/girls finals.

Ours State Cup winners were:
• Women’s All Age: Seaforth, who defeated Beacon Hill 1-0
• Girls U16s: Pittwater, who beat Northbridge 2-1
• Girls U13s: BTH, who overcame Pittwater 1-0
• Boys U13s: BTH, who won 4-2 against Kellyville Colts
• Boys U15s: Forest Killarney, who triumphed 3-1 over Banksia Tigers
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There is a huge amount of football played and it is important to thank and acknowledge the 
Northern Beaches and Mosman Councils for the work they do to assist as much as possible given 
their difficult pinch point of balancing sportsfield usage with ground maintanance.

This year we benefitted from the finalization of a number of projects to upgrade fields with Kitchener 
Park and Passmore Reserve both receiving new upgraded lights and new storage units were built at 
Beacon Hill Oval, Millers Reserve, David Thomas and John Fisher.

While the 2023 Player Numbers increased by 35 to 19,069 there is no doubt we will see a surge in 
numbers for the 2024 season with the 20,000 limit sure to be tested following strong growth across 
Summer Football competitions.

The MWFA would like to acknowledge and congratulate Manly United Football Club for the 2023 
season.

The U13 and U16 Boys Youth League teams made the semi finals (a top 4 format from 16 clubs) with 
the U16s falling just 1 point short of claiming the Premiership behind the Newcastle jets. 

In the Association Youth League, the U13, U15, U16 and U18 teams all made the semi finals with 
the U13, U15 and U18 teams going down in the Grand Finals.

All four of our Girls Youth Teams (U14, U15, U16 and U18s) finished one place out of the finals in 5th

position.

The staff, coaches, volunteers and Board work hard to ensure we have a clear and vibrant pathway 
for the 500 local juniors who play for Manly United and MWFA representative teams and its role in 
proving local players with a talented player pathway that this year bore remarkable fruit.

As well as performing strongly across competitions in the Boys Youth League, Girls Youth League, 
Association Youth League and men’s/women’s seniors, we collectively celebrated the sight of 12 
local players representing Australian (and New Zealand) National Teams.

That is an incredible illustration of the collective strength of our united football ecosystem;
Lewis Miller (Pittwater) and Gianni Stensness (CC Strikers/Pittwater) played for the Socceroos
Remy Siemsen (BTH) played for the Matildas
Ally Green (Harbord) played for the New Zealand Senior National Team
Jake Holman (Seaforth), Calem Nieuwenhoff (Curl Curl), Patrick Wood (CC Strikers) and Cam 
Peupion (Wakehurst) played for the Olyroos (U23s)
Kahli Johnson (Dee Why/CC Strikers) and Shay Holman (Seaforth) played for the Australian U20s
Nathan Barrie (Seaforth) played for the Australian U17s (Joeys)
Sienna Dale (Wakehurst) played for the Australian U17s

All 12 came through the local MWFA competition to Manly United and beyond.

A special mention to Cameron Peupion (Brighton & Hove Albion) and Remy Siemsen (Leicester City) 
who earlier this year made their English Premier League debuts. A wonderful achievement for both 
players.
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David Mason
CEO - MWFA

At present there are a further 10 local players playing in the A-League Men and A-League Women’s 
squads. They are:
• Harry Van Der Saag (CC Strikers and Narrabeen / Adelaide United), 
• Jake Hollman (Seaforth / Macarthur Bulls)
•  Aaron Gurd (Wakehurst / Sydney FC)
• Oscar Priestman (Western Sydney Wanderers)
• Corey Hollman (Seaforth / Sydney FC)
• Patrick Wood (CC Strikers / Sydney FC)
• Shay Holman (Seaforth / Sydney FC)
• Jasmin Black (Manly Vale / Sydney FC)
• Kahli Johnson (Dee Why and CC Strikers / Western United)
• Sophie Harding (Harbord & Brookvale / Western Sydney Wanderers)

On top of this Lewis Miller, Gianni Stensness, Remy Siemsen, Ally Green, Calem Nieuwenhoff and 
Cam Peupion play their football in Europe.

The local MWFA Clubs continue to provide our players with the opportunity to be the best players 
and people they can be and the presence of players who started their journeys at MWFA Clubs, 
through Manly United to high levels is something we should all be proud of and celebrate.

I hope everyone enjoys their “break” and were back ready to fire again in 2024.
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Finance Report 
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The operating loss of the Company before development levies for the financial year ended 30 
September 2023 amounted to $99,837 (2022: $120,419 surplus) prior to net development levy 
funding. In 2023, an additional net $157,122 was collected for the Facility and Sportsfield 
development fund as compared to $151,748 in 2022. The Company is exempt from income tax.

The key points to note in this year’s results are: -

- Player numbers in 2023 increased marginally to 19,069 from 19,034 in 2022. Given the 
disrupted seasons 2020 and 2021 for COVID and the wet weather in the 2022 season, these 
player numbers were in line the Board’s expectations.

- We have not increased the fees for the last three years as our members have had to contend 
with two seasons of disruption through COVID in 2020 and 2021 and unprecedented rain in 
2022 and we have tried to absorb any increases in costs.

- However, in 2023, we have seen significant cost increases, particularly for: -
o $68,421 in wage and administration costs due to increased staffing and in general 

administrative costs.
o $74,655 increase in referee’s fees due to the completion of a full season matches.
o $99,504 increase for sportfields hire, particularly for Mosman Council and the back 

payment/accrual of training ground costs for Mosman FC for 2020-2023 that had been 
budgeted in each year for but for which we hadn’t received the invoices for until this 
year. 

- These cost increases were partially offset by higher interest income of $60,764 due to the 
significant increase in interest rate received for our funds on deposit and the donations from 
Manly Warringah District Soccer Club and Manly Warringah Football Club, totalling $30,000 
arising from the new clubhouse operations.

  
Net Asset Position

The MWFA’s net asset position has continued to improve as a result of the improved trading result, 
with net assets now totalling $3,017,826 (2022: $$2,960,541)

As at 30 September 2023, there was $925,245 (2022: $768,123) held in the Facility and Sportsfield 
development fund. This balance has increased as we received $190,690 in development income 
offset by payments for field equipment payments for 1 storage shed and the upgrade of the Beacon 
Hill canteen in conjunction with the Northern Beaches Council. We have also spent $61,710 in 
November 2023 for the purchase of new goals for Under 12 fields required for the 2024 season and 
beyond.

No additional funds were contributed to the Cromer Park Clubhouse in 2023. The MWFA investment 
in the Cromer Park building is protected by a Memorandum of Understanding that ensures that 
this investment will be secured by an increased mortgage over the Cromer Park Clubhouse building 
and land and an agreement that the MWFA will not pay any rent for the use of the offices at Cromer 
Park for the next 24 years. The final deed of agreement to formalise the Memorandum of 
Understanding is currently under review with Manly Warringah District Soccer FC and should be 
executed prior to 31 December 2023.



Given the extensive capital works that Northern Beaches Council have been undertaking on our playing 
fields, the MWFA Board continues to review of our strategic goals that will set the parameters for future 
budgets and use of the Facility and Sportsfield levies previously collected. 

2024 Budget

Over the past 6 years, the MWFA has tried to keep fee increases to a minimum despite the constant 
increases in operating costs. The below table show the operating profit/ loss and total expenses that we 
have incurred and are budgeting for in 2024.

Year Operating Profit/ (Loss) Total Expenses

2018 $92,858 $     2,640,520 

2019 ($146,325) $     2,876,457 

2020 $391,173 $     2,099,366 

2021 ($34,271) $     3,065,258 

2022 $120,419 $     2,811,617 

2023 ($99,837) $     3,150,243 

2024 - Budget ($39,496) $     3,373,579 

Cumulative Losses $40,646 

From 2018 to 2023, MWFA fees charged had only increased by 6% in total when compared to an 
increase in costs of 19%. However, based on the current budget, we are expecting an increase in costs 
of 7% due to higher FA/FNSW fees due to increasing costs, increased ground hire and increased 
administration costs that total $223,336. As such the MWFA has had to increase MWFA fees between 
5.35% to 11.7% as shown in Table 1. 

2024 – 
MWFA 
Fees

2024 – 
FA/ FNSW

Total Fees – 
2024

2023 – 
MWFA 
Fees

2023 – 
FA/ FNSW

Total Fees – 
2023

2023 -2024 
MWFA Fee 
Annual 
Increase

2023 -2024 
FA/FNSW Fee
 Annual 
Increase

2023 -2024 
Total Fee 
Annual 
Increase

U6 - U9 $89.50 $33.50 $123.00 $82.50 $31.50 $114.00 8.48% 6.35% 7.89%

U10 - U11 $95.50 $33.50 $129.00 $88.50 $31.50 $120.00 7.91% 6.35% 7.50%

U12 $119.50 $33.50 $153.00 $112.50 $31.50 $144.00 6.22% 6.35% 6.25%

U13 - U15 $119.50 $42.50 $162.00 $112.50 $39.50 $152.00 6.22% 7.59% 6.58%

U16 $128.50 $42.50 $171.00 $120.50 $39.50 $160.00 6.64% 7.59% 6.88%

U18 $174.00 $42.50 $216.50 $166.00 $39.50 $205.50 4.82% 7.59% 5.35%

U21 $174.00 $143.00 $317.00 $166.00 $124.00 $290.00 4.82% 15.32% 9.31%

MPL $290.00 $143.00 $433.00 $276.00 $124.00 $400.00 5.07% 15.32% 8.25%

AL2 + $241.00 $143.00 $384.00 $227.00 $124.00 $351.00 6.17% 15.32% 9.40%

WPL $231.00 $143.00 $374.00 $216.90 $124.00 $340.90 6.50% 15.32% 9.71%

WAL, O35 
& O45 $172.00 $143.00 $315.00 $158.00 $124.00 $282.00 8.86% 15.32% 11.70%
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Table 1 – Budgeted 2024 MWFA Fees vs Approved 2023 MWFA Fees



Joseph Sorbara 
Director - MWFA

2024 – 
MWFA 
Fees

2024 – 
FA/ FNSW

Total Fees – 
2024

2018 – 
MWFA 
Fees

2018 – 
FA/ FNSW

Total Fees – 
2018

2018 -2024 
MWFA Fee 
Annual 
Increase

2018 -2024 
FA/FNSW Fee 
Annual 
Increase

2018 -2024 
Total Fee 
Annual 
Increase

U6 - U9 $89.50 $33.50 $123.00 $ 84.94 $24.06 $109.00 0.77% 5.61% 1.83%

U10 - U11 $96.50 $33.50 $130.00 $84.94 $24.06 $109.00 1.78% 5.61% 2.62%

U12 $120.50 $33.50 $154.00 $ 112.20 $33.80 $146.00 0.93% -0.13% 0.68%

U13 - U15 $120.50 $42.50 $163.00 $112.20 $33.80 $146.00 0.93% 3.68% 1.57%

U16 $129.50 $42.50 $172.00 $120.20 $33.80 $154.00 0.99% 3.68% 1.58%

U18 $175.00 $42.50 $217.50 $159.69 $41.31 $201.00 1.28% 0.41% 1.10%

U21 $175.00 $143.00 $318.00 

MPL $290.00 $143.00 $433.00 $240.17 $108.83 $349.00 2.96% 4.49% 3.44%

AL2 + $241.00 $143.00 $384.00 $220.17 $108.83 $329.00 1.35% 4.49% 2.39%

WPL $231.00 $143.00 $374.00 $198.17 $108.83 $307.00 2.37% 4.49% 3.12%

WAL, O35 
& O45 $172.00 $144.00 $316.00 $158.17 $108.83 $267.00 1.25% 4.49% 2.57%
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Table 2 – Budgeted 2024 MWFA Fees vs Approved 2018 MWFA Fees

Table 2 shows that since 2018, including the significant increases in 2024, the average increase has 
ranged between 0.7% and 3.44% per annum, which are largely due to increased FA/FNSW fees.
 
Other  Matters

The audited 2023 financial results did not identify any adjustments to the results presented to the 
MWFA Board during the year.
Lastly, I would like to thank David Mason, Derek Turner and the MWFA Board for their efforts and 
support over the past year.



In 2014 the Lighting Levy was converted to a general levy for support of Club Development activities.

General Levy for Support of Club Development Activities  

Ground Club Purpose Year
MWFA Club Development 
Contribution

Warriewood Sports Pittwater RSL 2 Fields with Lights 2008 $25,000

Beacon Hill FC Beacon Hill FC 1 Fields with Lights 2008 $30,000

Careel Bay Avalon Soccer 2 Fields with Lights 2008 $60,000

Dee Why FC Oval Dee Why FC 1 Fields with Lights 2008 $20,000

Seaforth Oval Seaforth FC 2 Fields with Lights 2009 $60,000

David Thomas Manly Vale FC 2 Fields with Lights 2009 $60,000

Ararat Oval Wakehurst FC 1 Fields with Lights 2009 $15,000

Abbott Rd Curl Curl 2 Fields with Lights 2010 $60,000

Melwood Oval Forest Killarney 2 Fields with Lights 2011 $60,000

Wyatt Ave BTH Raiders 1 Fields with Lights 2012 $30,000

Terrey Hills Oval BTH Raiders 1 Fields with Lights 2012 $30,000

Narrabeen Sports High Narrabeen 1 Fields with Lights 2013 Nil – paid by Pittwater Council

Millers Manly Allambie 3 Fields with Lights 2013 Nil – paid by Warringah Council

Cromer Park 2,3,4,5 Manly United 4 Fields with Lights 2013 Nil – paid by Warringah Council

St Matthews Farm CC Strikers FC Clubhouse & Amenities 2014 $100,000

Melwood Oval Forest Killarney Synthetic Field 2015 $100,000

Allambie Oval Beacon Hill FC Lighting 2015 $31,861

Cromer Park All Clubs Upgrade Amenities Block 2015 $72,167

Cromer Park All Clubs Cromer 1 seats and fencing 2016 $14,910

Grahams Reserve Brookvale/St Aug Grahams Reserve fencing 2016 $20,750

Boondah Narrabeen Boondah Lights 2016 $44,666

Careel Bay Avalon Soccer Careel Bay Lights Upgrade 2016 $41,463

Seaforth Oval Seaforth Seaforth Oval 2016 $20,000

All Grounds All Clubs Defibrillator Project 2016 $10,000

Hews Parade Wakehurst Hews Parade Lights Upgrade 2017 $20,086

All Grounds All Clubs Defibrillator Project 2017 $42,217

Mosman Grounds Mosman Defibrillator 2018 $2,000

Dee Why FC Oval Dee Why FC Dee Why FC Oval Lights 2018 $32,000

Cromer Park All Clubs Grandstand Repair 2018 $36,000

Goodwill Hunting All Clubs Grant assistance 2019 $30,000

Cromer Park All Clubs Maintenance Costs 2020 $3,000                               

Cromer Park MWFA
Cromer Park Clubhouse & 
General  Maintenance

2021 $826,300

MWFA Club Clubs Storage Units 2021 $12,956

Mutilable Grounds Clubs Club Equipment/ Goals/Nets 2022 $11,103

MWFA Club Clubs Storage Units 2022 $27,489

Beacon Hill Oval Beacon Hill FC Upgrade to Canteen 2023 $14,000

Multiple Grounds Clubs Club Equipment/ Goals/Nets 2023 $7,874

Multiple Grounds Clubs Storage Units 2023 $16,718
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Coach Development Report

The 2023 season was a record year for Coach Development in MWFA, with 1,023 coaches 
supported across a variety of coaching courses and workshops, as well as training session and 
match visits.

This total does include a number of repeat customers, however this is also an indication of the 
positive experience that coaches have had when attending our courses, and the ongoing value they 
provide. Similarly, more than 70 coaches from outside of the Northern Beaches travelled to take 
advantage of the opportunity to attend our Coach Development events.

830 coaches in total attended 12 x MiniRoos courses, 5 x Skill and Game Training courses, 16 x 
Coach Workshops, 6 x Game Leader workshops, 2 x club-based coach meetings and 1 x C-
Licence. This is the highest number ever achieved in our association, largely due to the high 
number of dates made available across different clubs and spread out across the entire season, 
providing plenty of follow up development opportunities to encourage long term learning.

We also doubled the number of training session and match visits compared to last season (200 in 
total) where coaches were provided with personalised mentoring with their actual team at their 
actual training session or game, which is the most effective way to help them learn 'on the job'. The 
feedback received from the Coach Mentoring being provided has been overwhelmingly positive.

Overall, 21% of coaches supported through courses and mentoring were females, which is also the 
highest percentage we've ever seen. This was partly thanks to us organising another successful 
female only MiniRoos coaching course, presented by female coach developers. Our 2022 Female 
Scholarship winners Nina Sallenave and Patty Faria also joined our team of Coach Mentors and 
worked closely with 4 coaches who really enjoyed and benefited from the direct and ongoing 
support, and hopefully we can expand this program next season.

The Future Coaches Program continued its successful run in 2022, with another 15 participants 
this time around who were taken through an intense personal development program to help each 
of them reach their potential and achieve their coaching goals, along with several special guests 
sharing their experiences and advice. We also ran a C-Licence late last year as well as another one 
early this year, with 30 coaches in total progressing through the first stage of the advanced 
coaching pathway, and Rich Lacey and Steve Hurd respectively on board as assistant presents. 
MWFA Coach Development Manager Eugene Lawrenz was obviously very satisfied with this 
outcome, after a very busy but productive year.

"It's great to see so many coaches keen to develop themselves for the sake of their players, 
and credit to all of them, especially those who've come back more than once. Slowly but 
surely, we are starting to see a difference being made with more players having a positive 
experience in the sport, with more engaging and game-realistic training sessions, and player-
centered coaching. I would like to also express my thanks to all of the clubs who hosted and 
helped promote all of our events this season, as well as acknowledge the hard work and 
quality of support that was provided to coaches by my team, in particular the Coach Mentors: 
Gregor Agic, Marilinda Winter, James Mitchell, Sai van Wegen, Catriona Ormond, Nina 
Sallenave and Patty Faria."
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Eugene Lawrenz

Coach Development Manager - MWFA

The MWFA Coach Development team would like to wish every player, coach, club volunteer and 
parent a safe and happy holidays, and we look forward to seeing everyone again in 2024.

Coach development is an investment, not a cost.
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MWFA Comparison to other Associations

Associations 2021 2022 % Change

Albury Wodonga Football Association 1429 1412 -1.19%

Australian Chinese Soccer Association 263 213 -19.01%

Bankstown District Amateur Football Association Inc. 6258 5718 -8.63%

Bathurst & District Soccer Football Association Inc. 2391 2395 0.17%

Blacktown & District Soccer Football Association Inc. 10129 9248 -8.70%

Canterbury & District Soccer Football Association Inc. 17342 16899 -2.55%

Central Coast Football 14446 13891 -3.84%

Dubbo & District Football Association Inc. 2535 2352 -7.22%

Eastern Suburbs Football Association Inc. 9219 8507 -7.72%

Eurobodalla Football Association Inc. 1034 883 -14.60%

Far South Coast Football Association Inc. 1034 952 7.93%

Football South Coast 12735 12092 -5.05%

Granville & District Soccer Football Association Inc. 5877 5003 -14.87%

Griffith & District Soccer Association Inc. 1203 1108 -7.90%

Highlands Soccer Association Inc. 1763 1663 -5.67%

Hills Football Inc. 12773 12382 -3.06%

Lachlan Amateur Soccer Association Inc. 1856 1748 -5.82%

Lithgow & District Soccer Association 1045 983 -5.93%

Macarthur Football Association Inc. 10807 10043 -7.07%

Manly Warringah Football Association Inc. 19970 19165 -4.03%

Nepean Football Association Inc. 12556 11680 -6.98%

North West Sydney Football 16442 15850 -3.60%

Northern Suburbs Football Association Inc. 18113 17223 -4.91%

Orange & District Football Association Soccer Inc. 2481 2313 -6.77%

Shoalhaven District Football Association Inc. 3351 3067 -8.48%

Southwest Slopes Soccer Association 290 237 -18.28%

Southern Districts Soccer Football Association Inc. 8237 7185 -12.77%

Southern Tablelands Football Association Inc. 1300 1038 -20.15%

St George Soccer Football Inc. 10484 10197 -2.74%

State League Clubs (FNSW Competitions) 13005 12908 -0.75%

Sutherland Shire Football Association Inc. 19036 18767 -1.41%
Wagga Wagga & District Amateur Football Association 

Inc. 2885 2831 -1.87%

Western Plains Soccer Association 274 231 -15.69%

TOTALS 242,563 230,184 -5.10%

The table below shows figures taken from the 2022 FNSW Yearbook giving a comparison of 
various player statistics over 34 FNSW Associations
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Registrars’ Report 2023

Total players per club in 2023

Club Total Players Male % M Female % F 

Avalon SC 1240 758 61 482 39 

Beacon Hill FC 742 463 62 279 38 

BTH Raiders SC 594 382 64 212 36 

Brookvale FC 1215 719 59 496 41 

CC Strikers FC 1784 1054 59 730 41 

Curl Curl YC 1256 813 65 443 35 

Dee Why FC 509 401 79 108 21 

Forest Killarney FC 1207 866 72 341 28 

Harbord FC 868 618 71 250 29 

Manly Allambie FC 832 452 54 380 46 

Manly Vale FC 1203 799 66 404 34 

Mosman FC 1222 954 78 268 22 

Narrabeen YC 1199 811 68 388 32 

Pittwater RSL FC 1298 827 64 471 36 

Seaforth FC 1533 926 60 607 40 

St Augustines FC 517 517 100 -   

Wakehurst FC 1850 1183 64 667 36 

Total Players 19069 12543 66 6526 34 
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Juniors – U6 to U9, W-8 and W-9

U6 U7 U8 W-8 U9 W-9 Totals

Club P T P T P T P T P T P T P T

Avalon 145 11 108 9 53 5 23 2 74 7 41 4 444 38

Beacon Hill 52 4 48 4 52 5 21 2 30 3 22 2 225 20

BTH Raiders 23 2 38 3 11 1 10 1 19 2 101 9

Brookvale 142 11 83 7 66 6 52 5 65 6 23 2 431 37

CC Strikers 177 16 90 9 94 10 141 15 92 10 83 9 677 69

Curl Curl 106 9 85 7 59 6 20 2 80 8 20 2 370 34

Dee Why 12 1 35 3 19 2 21 2 87 8

Forest Killarney 78 6 101 8 101 10 72 7 12 1 364 32

Harbord 75 6 52 4 29 3 20 2 58 6 28 3 262 24

Manly Allambie 42 3 38 3 20 2 10 1 29 3 23 2 162 14

Manly Vale 105 9 117 10 97 9 29 3 67 7 27 3 442 41

Mosman 95 8 83 7 114 11 12 1 72 7 24 2 400 36

Narrabeen YC 107 8 102 8 90 9 31 3 68 7 31 3 429 38

Pittwater RSL 114 9 105 9 72 7 33 3 81 8 22 2 427 38

Seaforth 117 9 144 12 84 8 42 4 92 9 42 4 521 46

St Augustines 0 0

Wakehurst 163 13 157 13 129 12 43 4 94 9 31 3 617 54

Total Players 1553 1386 1090 477 1005 448 5959

Total Teams 125 116 106 47 100 44 538
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Youth – U10 to U16
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registered per club in 2023

U10 U11 U12 U13 U14 U15 U16 Totals

Club P T P T P T P T P T P T P T P T

Avalon 80 7 64 5 49 3 26 2 28 2 31 2 28 2 306 23

Beacon Hill 35 3 34 3 17 1 14 1 17 1 117 9

BTH Raiders 11 1 33 3 44 3 32 2 16 1 15 1 29 2 180 13

Brookvale 94 7 51 4 34 2 27 2 32 2 15 1 253 18

CC Strikers 67 6 67 6 71 5 46 3 71 5 45 3 31 2 398 30

Curl Curl 49 4 47 4 30 2 30 2 15 1 33 2 49 3 253 18

Dee Why 32 3 38 3 17 1 29 2 44 3 16 1 176 13

Forest Killarney 68 6 36 3 54 4 40 3 64 4 50 3 312 23

Harbord 25 2 38 3 17 1 40 3 18 1 138 10

Manly Allambie 23 2 27 2 31 2 16 1 18 1 33 2 148 10

Manly Vale 48 4 33 3 34 2 19 1 15 1 34 2 183 13

Mosman 85 7 53 4 59 4 29 2 16 1 17 1 27 2 286 21

Narrabeen 65 5 63 5 32 2 32 2 14 1 32 2 32 2 270 19

Pittwater 72 6 56 5 31 2 57 4 42 3 16 1 274 21

Seaforth 80 7 89 7 46 3 42 3 33 2 32 2 32 2 354 26

St Augustines 50 3 79 5 86 6 83 5 298 19

Wakehurst 91 7 75 6 70 5 53 4 60 4 30 2 46 3 425 31

Total Players 925 804 686 532 533 470 421 4371

Total Teams 77 66 45 37 35 30 27 317
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Senior Men
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Total number of Senior Players (U18-All Age) 
registered per club in 2023

U18 U21 AL O35 O45 PL Total

Club P T P T P T P T P T P T P T

Avalon 33 2 65 4 20 1 63 3 181 10

Beacon Hill 91 5 18 1 77 4 35 2 221 12

BTH Raiders 18 1 37 2 19 1 55 3 35 2 164 9

Brookvale 31 2 39 2 42 2 46 2 24 1 35 2 217 11

CC Strikers 50 3 50 3 37 2 58 3 40 2 34 2 269 15

Curl Curl 15 1 17 1 154 8 84 4 43 2 313 16

Dee Why 34 2 75 4 54 3 163 9

Forest Killarney 56 3 92 5 85 4 49 2 282 14

Harbord 33 2 17 1 121 7 83 4 20 1 35 2 309 17

Manly Allambie 35 2 73 4 55 3 69 3 232 12

Manly Vale 39 2 18 1 130 6 43 2 58 3 35 2 323 16

Mosman 16 1 168 9 60 3 102 5 32 2 378 20

Narrabeen YC 50 3 18 1 66 4 18 1 60 3 35 2 247 14

Pittwater RSL 33 2 95 5 78 4 42 2 33 2 281 15

Seaforth 51 3 18 1 52 3 83 4 20 1 224 12

St Augustines 112 7 73 4 34 2 219 13

Wakehurst 48 3 51 3 87 5 81 4 59 3 33 2 359 20

Total Players 654 228 1458 885 781 376 4382

Total Teams 39 13 79 44 38 22 235
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Junior Women
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Total number of Junior Women’s Players (W10-W16) 
registered per club in 2023

W-U10 W-U11 W-U12 W-U13 W-U14 W-U15 W-U16 Totals

Club P T P T P T P T P T P T P T P T

Avalon 31 3 50 4 30 2 44 3 29 2 32 2 24 2 240 18

Beacon Hill 12 1 9 1 28 2 15 1 16 1 80 6

BTH Raiders 11 1 9 1 20 2 14 1 54 5

Brookvale 34 3 33 3 32 2 15 1 15 1 13 1 45 3 187 14

CC Strikers 67 6 77 7 56 4 57 4 57 4 30 2 13 1 357 28

Curl Curl 35 3 23 2 41 3 29 2 24 2 13 1 32 2 197 15

Dee Why 6 1 14 1 27 2 47 4

Forest Killarney 23 2 33 3 46 3 13 1 18 1 1 17 1 151 11

Harbord 24 2 28 2 13 1 32 2 15 1 12 1 124 9

Manly Allambie 10 1 50 4 9 1 26 2 38 3 133 11

Manly Vale 36 3 13 1 26 2 14 1 16 1 28 2 133 10

Mosman 25 2 30 2 13 1 15 1 14 1 97 7

Narrabeen 25 2 39 3 16 1 29 2 16 1 29 2 12 1 166 12

Pittwater 34 3 38 3 15 1 57 4 25 2 13 1 30 2 212 16

Seaforth 50 4 41 3 74 5 78 5 45 3 47 3 16 1 351 24

St Augustines 0 0

Wakehurst 36 3 64 6 29 2 31 2 32 2 32 2 33 2 257 19

Total Players 404 528 466 454 360 282 292 2786

Total Teams 35 45 33 32 25 19 20 209
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Senior Women

W-U18 W-AL W-O30 W-O40 W-PL Totals

Club P T P T P T P T P T P T

Avalon 19 1 50 3 69 4

Beacon Hill 48 3 16 1 35 2 99 6

BTH Raiders 14 1 65 4 16 1 95 6

Brookvale 39 2 36 2 19 1 33 2 127 7

CC Strikers 15 1 31 2 37 2 83 5

Curl Curl 16 1 19 1 56 3 32 2 123 7

Dee Why 16 1 1 19 1 36 2

Forest Killarney 16 1 32 2 50 3 98 6

Harbord 35 2 35 2

Manly Allambie 15 1 35 2 73 4 34 2 157 9

Manly Vale 15 1 56 3 17 1 34 2 122 7

Mosman 61 3 61 3

Narrabeen YC 18 1 51 3 18 1 87 5

Pittwater RSL 16 1 34 2 20 1 34 2 104 6

Seaforth 15 1 18 1 16 1 34 2 83 5

St Augustines 0 0

Wakehurst 46 3 82 5 32 2 32 2 192 12

Total Players 260 654 0 389 268 1571

Total Teams 16 38 0 22 16 92
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MWFA Growth Since 1947

A comparison of the total number of players and teams since the formation of the MWFA is shown below.

Year Teams Players Year Teams Players Year Teams Players
1947 1948 1949 31 553
1950 31 446 1951 33 556 1952 30 536
1953 31 536 1954 26 428 1955 29 445
1956 35 550 1957 43 719 1958 51 764
1959 55 853 1960 62 911 1961 79 1147
1962 100 1328 1963 135 1708 1964 168 2314
1965 201 2708 1966 231 2977 1967 257 3412
1968 282 3826 1969 285 3855 1970 289 4025
1971 315 4203 1972 331 4386 1973 351 4745
1974 381 5174 1975 405 5523 1976 446 5656
1977 486 5735 1978 541 6399 1979 572 6714
1980 587 6856 1981 580 6941 1982 564 6851
1983 569 7013 1984 564 6439 1985 637 6089
1986 548 6238 1987 530 6081 1988 532 5531
1989 521 6035 1990 491 5694 1991 496 5712
1992 509 5830 1993 520 6082 1994 557 6430
1995 580 6850 1996 610* 7233 1997 633 7778
1998 684 8221 1999 731 8988 2000 762 9071
2001 803 9905 2002 874 10774 2003 872 12236
2004 1029 12989 2005 1053 13733 2006 1115 14167
2007 1190 15398 2008 1246 15689 2009 1191 15642

2010 1150 15814 2011 1124 15427 2012 1086 14917

2013 1111 14948 2014 1173 15757 2015 1281 17057

2016 1300 17240 2017 1315 17383 2018 1338 18023

2019 1367 18406 2020 1371 18386 2021 1474 19826

2022 1407 19034 2023 1391 19069

Registered Players in the MWFA since 1947
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Breakdown of Cautions by Age Group

Year 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

PL & R 365 389 351 493 527 465 526 579 498 509 485 518 412 623 614
AL 1 & R 298 251 280 370 473 327 324 325 375 413 371 380 387 379 475

AL 2 42 11 10 40 111 133 106 133 109 108 101 81 47 40 47
AL 3 25 13 3 7 34 40 26 43 46 48 58 79 37 30 41
AL 4 13 2 0 10 30 32 66 63 30 35 33 64 30 38 46
AL 5 9 1 0 9 33 26 30 18 24 45 48 51 23 7 32
AL 6 10 4 5 2 33 27 49 53 15 26 29 40 23 16 20
AL 7 4 6 3 2 17 20 27 26 17 21 29 18
AL 8 22 21 113 39 27 9 n/a
AL9 34 31 n/a n/a n/a

O35 1 14 0 7 48 34 97 74 63 80 60 49 69 71 68
O35 2 35 16 6 14 17 28 76 44 26 33 36 45 n/a
O35 3 15 25 6 6 31 34 60 41 57 54 52 61 36 31 29
O35 4 14 11 2 2 21 41 50 50 39 53 39 41 14 30 35
O35 A 35 52
O35 B 23 47
O35 5 8 7 2 10 35 25 53 29 44 28 60 44 15 n/a n/a

O35 6 1 4 5 5 22 32 40 57 28 31 39 n/a 23 n/a n/a

O35 7 4 5 6 11 19 28 36 25 22 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

O35 8 2 11 30 22 21 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

O45 1 3 11 0 22 10 42 26 42 31 19 34 12
O45 2 54 35 24 20 37 49 20 34
O45 3 10 33 22 34 31 15 28
O45 4 24 18
U18 100 58 52 59 131 123 244 372 347 225 201 274 144 190 343
U21 38 23 28 n/a n/a n/a 55 140 137

W-18 16 9 9 8 2 4 5
W-PL 25 29 22 37 31 42 45
W-AL 28 31 13 40 79 49 114 87 42 37 52 19 12 22 37

W30/40 8 9 6 4 14
W-O35 7 8 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Junior Mixed 71 62 37 17 70 174 255 283 229 200 180 204 155 165 337
Junior Girls 11 7 9 18 4 3 30

Judiciary Report 
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Breakdown of Cautions by Age Group and Offence

Caution Code Description

Y1 Is guilty of unsporting behaviour

Y2 Shows dissent by word or action (sin bin) 

Y3 Persistently infringes the laws of the game

Y4 Delays the restart of play

Y5 Failed to respect the required distance when play is restarted with a corner kick, or 
throw in

Y6 Enters or re-enters the field of play without the referee’s permission 

Y7 Deliberately leave the field of play without the referee’s permission

AGE/DIV Y1 Y2 Y3 Y4 Y5 Y6 Y7 Y8 Sin Bin Total

Junior Mixed 238 55 18 10 1 3 1 4 7 337

Under 18 293 13 11 11 0 1 0 2 12 343

Under 21 126 0 8 3 0 0 0 0 0 137

AL1 & R 408 21 14 25 1 0 1 0 5 475

AL2 to AL7 161 15 7 11 4 0 0 1 5 204

O35/1-2 40 12 7 3 0 2 0 0 4 68

O35/3 24 0 2 3 0 0 0 0 0 29

O35/4 32 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 35

O35/A 41 5 3 0 1 1 0 0 1 52

O35/B 38 5 1 0 0 0 0 0 3 47

O45/1 10 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 12

O45/2 32 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 34

O45/3 21 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 28

O45/4 15 0 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 18

PL & R 513 23 23 45 1 1 0 0 8 614

Junior Girls 24 4 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 30

W18 4 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 5

WAL 32 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 37

W40 10 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 13

WPL & R 39 4 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 45

Total 2101 169 99 119 8 8 2 7 50 2563

92



Breakdown of Send-Offs by Age Group and Offence

Send Off Code Description

R1 Serious foul play

R2 Violent conduct

R3 Spits at an opponent

R4 Denies an obvious goal scoring opportunity, handling ball

R5 Denies an obvious goal scoring opportunity, punishable by free kick or penalty kick

R6 Offensive or insulting language and/or gesture

R7 Receives a second caution in the same match

AGE/DIV R1 R2 R3 R4 R5 R6 R7 Citation 4th 
Yellow

6th
 Yellow

8th 
Yellow Total

Junior Mixed 2 3 4 3 10 7 3 32

Under 18 1 10 2 2 3 13 4 13 3 51

Under 21 1 3 1 4 1 10

AL1 & R 2 5 6 2 18 4 24 1 62

AL2 to AL9 2 4 2 9 2 19

O35/1 1 2 1 1 5

O35/3 1 2 3

O35/4 1 6 2 9

O35/A 1 1 3 1 6

O35/B 1 1 3 5

O45/1 1 1 1 3

O45/2 2 1 2 5

O45/3 1 3 4

O45/4 4 1 5

PL & R 5 8 3 2 27 5 47 6 103

Junior Girls 2 2

W18 0

WAL 1 1 2

W40 2 2

WPL & R 0

Total 13 44 14 17 11 102 30 87 10 328
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Manly United FC – Chairpersons Report 

Ray Fanning
Chairman - MUFC
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I would like to take this opportunity to give you an overview of what’s happening at Manly United FC 
which is the representative arm of the MWFA.

As the largest Association in Australia, it’s only natural that the MWFA should create a natural pathway 
for their most talented players to potentially play at the highest level either here in Australia or 
overseas and to represent their country where possible.

Over the many years I have been involved with Manly United it is satisfying to see the groundwork laid 
out many years ago finally coming to fruition with many players both male and female playing at A-
League level or overseas in some of the most competitive leagues in the world.

Some of the players that have gone on to play are names that you know well or will know better in 
years to come. In the A-league Men’s and Women’s area players such as Jake Hollman (Macarthur / 
Seaforth), Corey Hollman (Sydney FC / Seaforth) and sister Shay Hollman (Sydney FC / Seaforth), 
Patrick Wood (CC Strikers / Sydney FC), Harry Van Der Saag (CC Strikers and Narrabeen / Adelaide), 
Aaron Gurd (Wakehurst / Sydney FC), Khali Johnson (Dee Why and CC Strikers / Western United), 
Oscar Priestman (Seaforth / Western Sydney Wanderers), Jasmin Black (Manly Vale / Sydney FC) and 
Sophie Harding (Harbord and Brookvale / Western Sydney Wanderers).

Other players to go on and play overseas include Cameron Peupion (Wakehurst /Cheltenham Town), 
Lewis Miller (Pittwater / Hibernian), Calem Nieuwenhof (Curl Curl / Hearts), Remy Siemsen (BTH / 
Leicester City), Ally Green (Harbord / AGF) and Gianni Stensness (CC Strikers / Viking FC).

It should be noted that many have gone on to represent Australia as well. The future looks promising 
with younger players Lewis Miller (Socceroos), Remy Siemsen (Matildas) Khali Johnson (Young 
Matildas), Sienna Dale (Junior Matildas), Shay Hollman (Junior Matildas) Jake Hollman & Calem 
Niewenhof (Olyroos) all being selected to represent Australia. Ally Green is also a member of the New 
Zealand National Team. We wish them well as they progress through the ranks.

Manly United play in the highest league in NSW called the NPL, as a Club we are up against some 
heavy hitters financially (Clubs like Olympic, APIA, Sydney Utd and Marconi). We work on very 
moderate budgets in both the Men’s and Women’s area compared to these Clubs as our charter is to 
develop players from within the MWFA footprint where possible and not to buy players to win the 
League or Grand Finals.

It’s interesting to note that the model that was set up in the late 1990s with MWFA and Manly United 
tied closely together is now being followed by other Associations, in fact of the 15 Sydney metro 
Associations at least 13 of them now have affiliated representative Clubs, in fact of the 16 NPL teams 
in 2024 there will be 4 Association backed Clubs and 3 A-League Academy Clubs, I honestly believe 
this is the way forward in developing players for the future. 



Manly United FC – Men's Report 

Manly United FC commenced its 2023 journey under the stewardship of Technical Director Ian 
Crook, a distinguished former England international and the former technical director of Western 
Sydney Wanderers. However, Ian's tenure at Manly United FC proved to be fleeting, yielding to an 
opportunity ideally tailored to his expertise within a newly established role at the Football Australia 
(FA).

Within the increasingly competitive arena of the BYL NPL 1 division, Manly United's Boys Youth 
League encountered a challenging start, finding themselves nestled in the lower echelons of the 
Club Championship standings following the first half of the season.

Despite these initial setbacks, Manly United’s youth teams stayed true to our systems and program 
and had a strong resurgence during the second part of the season, led by the U13, U16 and 18’s 
squads, culminating in a respectable mid table (10th of 16 clubs) finish.

Notably, Manly United FC emerged as a strong presence in the top 4 championship playoffs with 
the U13, U16 and U18 teams featuring in the top 4 playoffs, with only Western Sydney Wanderers 
boasting a larger contingent in the final series.

Of particular note was the U16s, who came within one point of claiming the Premiership, which was 
ultimately won by the Newcastle Jets after a season-long battle between the two sides. 

And while the U14s and U15s did not progress to the semi finals their improvement over the second 
half of the season was starc and sets the squads up well for 2024.

The need to overcome challenges is a necessary part of youth development and builds resilience, 
which is an important tool for all developing footballers, in fact developing young men and women.

In the Association Youth League sphere, one of the standout achievements of this season was the 
impressive performance of our U13, U15, and U18 teams. Against tough competition, these teams 
showcased their talent, determination, and commitment to the sport. They battled their way to the 
grand final, proving themselves as true contenders for the championship.

While all three teams fell at the final hurdle, their teamwork, skill development and dedication were 
driving forces behind their success, and we couldn't be prouder of these young footballers' 
achievements.

However, the story isn't just about the glory of reaching the grand final. Our U14 team, in a cruel 
twist of fate, narrowly missed out on securing a spot in the grand final. The final kick of the semi 
final decided their fate, highlighting the fine margins that exist in football. It's a testament to their 
hard work and resilience that they came so close, and their determination will undoubtedly fuel 
their future success.

Similarly, our U16s faced a challenging journey in the season, reaching the semi-finals but bowing 
out after a dramatic penalty shootout. This experience will undoubtedly serve as a valuable lesson, 
teaching them the importance of composure under pressure and the unpredictability of the 
beautiful game.

The SAP program once again shined due to the club's commitment to developing the young players’ 
technical ability, which shows in their ability to outplay their opponents with Manly United’s 
distinctive brand of football.
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Jason Bennett 
Technical Director - MUFC

Both Manly United and MWFA SAP teams took part in the Sydney FC Cup during the season with some 
silverware heading back to Cromer Park through the Manly United U11 and U12 teams. All Manly United 
and MWFA SAP teams in the U11 and U12 competitions performed strongly against some of the best 
SAP NPL clubs, showcasing their potential and bright futures in the world of football.

In the Senior space, the first grade team found guidance under Patrick Zwaanswijk, a former Ajax and 
Central Coast Mariners player, who assumed the pivotal role of head coach.

Following an initial period of adjustment, the team exhibited exceptional displays, notably epitomized 
by a commanding 4-0 victory over this season’s champions APIA Leichhardt. This victory, marked by 
the participation of several promising Manly juniors, underscored the club’s remarkable depth.

The U20's squad, in parallel, enjoyed a stellar season, attaining noteworthy outcomes while 
concurrently nurturing emerging talents, thereby affording them invaluable first-grade exposure. The 
U20s took part in a Mini World Cup over 10 days at Homebush to assist referees in the lead up to the 
Women’s World Cup and made the Final, going down to Marconi.

The season bore witness to the seamless integration of several Manly juniors into the first-grade 
playing squad, with Saxon Hillyer securing a first grade contract for his stellar season after cementing 
himself a position in the starting lineup.

A special thank you to the coaching staff for their unwavering dedication in guiding the gifted young 
footballers of the Manly United and the MWFA teams. It has been a pleasure working with you all and 
we are looking forward to continuing to help grow these young men and players we have in the SAP, BYL 
and AYL teams.

It's evident that this year has been a rollercoaster ride filled with ups and downs, moments of triumph, 
and heartbreak but it was an incredible journey these young footballers embarked upon.

One of the most fulfilling aspects of our program is the role we play in developing young talent. It's with 
immense pride that we can say a number of players progressed from the AYL into the BYL and from the 
BYL into A-League youth teams. This progression is a testament to the coaching staff's dedication and 
the hard work of these young footballers.

The lessons learned, friendships forged, and skills honed will serve as the foundation for these young 
footballers as they continue to pursue their dreams on the football pitch.

For some of these players it is into the Manly United senior teams, for others it is into NPL2 clubs and 
for many it is back into the MWFA system where they continue their football journey back where it 
started.

The future looks bright, and we can't wait to see what these talented young footballers achieve next.

Joe Fox 
Head of Youth Football - MWFA
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Manly United FC – Women’s Report 

2023 saw the Manly United FC women’s program field teams in the FNSW NPL Competition in grades 
14, 15,16,18, Reserve Grade and First Grade.

This year, all 4 GYL teams finished 5th in a 14-team competition. The U16s missed out by one point 
on finishing 4th and the U18s missed out by two points on finishing 4th.

We fielded teams in U10, U11, U12, U13 in the FNSW GSAP competitions and under-pinned our 
GSAP program with 5 x Girls Development squads in grade U9, U10, U11, U12, U13.

13 of the 18-man First Grade squad this year were Manly United juniors and 3 members of the squad 
have secured W-League contracts with Melbourne City, Western United and Newcastle Jets.

Remy Siemsen (MUFC junior) was selected in the Matildas squad for the camp prior to the WWC and 
was very unlucky not to make the final cut.

Kahli Johnson was also a full-time scholarship holder with the Future Matildas program and a 
member of the Young Matildas. She has travelled overseas twice this year to play in all their matches.

Sienna Dale represented Australia in the Junior Matildas and in the final 2 games, of the most recent 
3 game tournament in Vietnam, scored all 6 of their goals. She then went on to represent NSW at the 
National Youth Championships a week later where she was named the Player of the Tournament.

Season 2023 saw the introduction of our Individual Youth Development Program within our GSAP and 
GYL programs. We were very happy with the outcomes achieved and have plans to continue the 
program in 2024 with a few tweaks.

Our youth development programs, playing style, fair play, integrity, and facilities are second to none, 
along with highly qualified, experienced and dedicated coaching staff, which is why we are often 
referred to as the ‘model’ women’s youth development program in NSW.

Once again, I consider myself fortunate to have held the position of Technical Director of 
the women’s program at Manly United FC this year. Our players are a delight to work with from the 
SAP and Development Squad programs right through to First Grade.

Most of whom have learnt their trade at MUFC, many from as young as 10.

I know I speak for our coaching staff when I say that we are very fortunate to be charged with the 
responsibility of developing the best of the best on the peninsula and every year we work harder to do 
just that, whilst ensuring we have a balanced, nurturing environment where enjoyment and 
development is paramount, particularly in the youth grades.

Believing in what we do, not veering from the script and working together as a unit is why we are at the 
top of the women’s game in NSW.

This year saw the 8th year of our Girls SAP (Skill Acquisition Program) and our 5th year of the full-time 
program in grades U10, U11, U12 and U13.
Our Girls SAP program is underpinned by four development squads for players registered in MWFA 
clubs – U10, U11, U12and U13.
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We have a commitment to developing home grown juniors so that our senior squad continues to draw 
from our youth grades both in the short term and in the future and the Girls SAP is certainly providing 
the best platform for this to continue.

We are in the business of developing elite footballers for Manly United and beyond, whether that be the 
W-League or National Teams and I am proud to say we are on track.

Sharon Egger 
Technical Director - MUFC
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Manly United Report

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

League - NPL 1 NSW Men's
8th First Grade 30 12 6 12 0 41 43 -2 42 0
7th U20 30 15 5 10 0 59 42 17 50 0

League - FNSW 1 BYL 
4th U13's 30 17 4 9 0 63 46 17 55 0

13th U14's 30 8 3 19 0 40 64 -24 27 0
15th U15's 30 2 8 20 0 30 84 -54 14 0
2nd U16's 30 23 4 3 0 76 29 47 73 0
5th U18's 30 16 4 10 0 56 45 11 52 0

League - NPL 1 NSW Women's
11th First Grade 26 5 11 10 0 27 35 -8 26 0
7th Res. Grade 26 12 7 7 0 42 32 10 43 0

League - FNSW 1 GYL 
6th U14's 26 14 6 6 0 58 26 32 48 0
5th U15's 26 15 4 7 0 54 24 30 49 0
5th U16's 26 18 2 6 0 96 28 68 56 0
5th U18's 26 16 1 9 0 52 32 20 49 0

League - FNSW AYL
3rd U13's 24 15 2 7 0 76 32 44 47 0
5th U14's 27 15 4 8 0 76 39 37 49 0
3rd U15's 27 15 4 8 0 52 36 16 49 0
2nd U16's 27 20 4 3 0 77 33 44 64 0
1st U18's 24 21 0 3 0 103 26 77 63 0

League Pos Team Played 14's 15's 16's 18's PTS

FNSW BYL 1 10th Manly United FC 120 27 14 73 52 166

League Pos Team Played First Grade 20's/Res. 18's PTS

NPL NSW Men's 6th Manly United FC 60 168 100 N/A 268

NPL NSW Women’s 10th Manly United FC 66 64 38 43 145

Club Championship

Competition Tables
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Manly United Report - Awards

Age Coaches Award Players Player
Association Youth League

13 Beau Moran (Wakehurst) Phoenix Trampedach 
14 Aureleo Dymock (Pittwater) Calan Robertson (CC Strikers)
15 Hugo Bakewell (Curl Curl) Connor Blaxell (Manly United)
16 Benji Cook Steven Curtis (Forest Killarney)
18 Mattias Wilson-Rynell (Manly Allambie) Tom Parkes (Brookvale)

Boys Youth League
13 Max Slater (Narrabeen) Lachlan Kline (BTH)
14 Kaden Shoebridge (Narrabeen) Miles Milliner (CC Strikers)
15 Jesse Bennett Will McCreery (Pittwater)
16 Monty Peppel Jasper Chipman (Wakehurst)
18 Jasper Swadling (Dee Why) Max Walker (Seaforth)

Girls Youth League
14 Amber Koi (BTH) Eve Goldsworthy (Manly Allambie)
15 Tara McSorley (CC Strikers) Ellie Robson (Forest Killarney)
16 Tara Banks (Curl Curl) Sarah Whelan (BTH)
18 Cara Harris (Mosman) Halle Smit (Seaforth)

Manly Warringah FA Skill Acquisition Program 
9 Charlie Page (Narrabeen) Alex Hodson (Harbord)

10 Caylem Watson (Forest Killarney) Leo Young (Forest Killarney)
11 Jack Blair (Harbord) Pat Yiend (BTH)
12 Zac Lincoln (Manly Vale) Charlie Plester (Beacon Hill)

Manly United FC Skill Acquisition Program 
9 Kobi Bell (Dee Why) Zachary Illman (Wakehurst)

10 Mason Bailey (Manly Vale) Harley Wills (Curl Curl)
11 Blake Whelan (Dee Why) Sonny Fleming (Manly United)
12 Kody Benoliel (Brookvale) Jay Rumler (Narrabeen)

Girls Skill Acquisition Program 
10 Kaiya Shoebridge (Narrabeen) N/A
11 Lara Matousek (Forest Killarney) N/A
12 Holly Sinnott (Avalon) N/A
13 Evie Murphy (CC Strikers) N/A

Senior Men
1st Levi Kaye (Pittwater) Alen Aganovic

20's Salvatore Ciolino Stefano Rossello
Senior Women

1st Phoebe Gilbane Ruby Jackson
Res. Leah Burton (Seaforth) India Horsley (Seaforth)
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History of Manly United Directors, Staff & Coaches

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Chairman Ray Fanning Ray Fanning Ray Fanning Ray Fanning Ray Fanning Ray Fanning 
Director Jeff Smit Jeff Smit Ian Clarke Ian Clarke Ian Clarke Keith Pester
Director Ian Clarke Ian Clarke Frank Chidiac Frank Chidiac Frank Chidiac Nick Tomaino

Director Nick Tomaino Nick Tomaino Chris Hale Chris Hale Chris Hale Juliette Siemsen

Director Frank Chidiac Frank Chidiac Ken Hutton Ken Hutton Ken Hutton Ken Hutton

Director Keith Pester Keith Pester Keith Pester Keith Pester Keith Pester Lee Gregory

Director Ken Hutton Ken Hutton Elizabeth Rex Elizabeth Rex Elizabeth Rex Tamara Toon

Director Chris Hale Chris Hale Nick Tomaino Nick Tomaino Nick Tomaino Ian Clarke
Elizabeth Rex David Wilson David Wilson David Wilson Elizabeth Rex

Director David Wilson

2020 2021 2022 2023
Men’s Technical 
Director Andrew Christensen Andrew Christensen Sam Gallagher Ian Crook/Jason Bennett

Women’s 
Technical Director Sharon Egger Sharon Egger Sharon Egger Sharon Egger

Head of Football
Boys Youth Joe Fox Joe Fox Joe Fox Joe Fox

Men’s First Grade 
Coach Adam Griffiths Adam Griffiths Adam Griffiths Patrick Zwaanswijk

Women’s First 
Grade Coach Tom Hopley Tom Hopley Tom Hopley Tom Hopley

Administrator Matt Weight Matt Weight Isaac Wood Isaac Wood
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Competition Tables

League - U12/1 

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Manly Vale FC 18 15 3 0 0 44 14 30 48 0

2 BTH Raiders SC 18 11 4 3 0 44 17 27 37 0

3 Saint Augustine’s FC 18 10 3 5 0 50 33 17 33 0

4 Wakehurst FC 18 10 3 5 0 45 33 12 33 0

5 Forest Killarney FC 18 8 4 6 0 33 29 4 28 0

6 Brookvale FC 18 8 2 8 0 35 40 -5 26 0

7 Curl Curl FC 18 7 3 8 0 28 23 5 24 0

8 CCStrikers FC 18 4 2 12 0 15 38 -23 14 0

9 Dee Why FC 18 2 2 14 0 9 39 -30 8 0

10 Avalon SC 18 1 2 15 0 18 55 -37 5 0

League - U12/2

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Seaforth FC 18 16 1 1 0 104 8 96 49 0

2 Wakehurst FC 18 14 3 1 0 57 15 42 45 0

3 Manly Allambie United FC 18 9 3 6 0 39 34 5 30 0

4 Mosman FC 18 8 3 7 0 47 39 8 27 0

5 Avalon SC 18 8 2 8 0 36 38 -2 26 0

6 Saint Augustine’s FC 18 8 2 8 1 35 38 -3 26 0

7 Narrabeen FC 18 6 3 9 1 36 45 -9 21 0

8 Pittwater RSL FC 18 4 3 11 0 29 48 -19 15 0

9 Forest Killarney FC 18 2 5 11 0 28 71 -43 11 0

10 CC Strikers FC 18 1 3 14 0 16 91 -75 6 0

League - U12/3

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Seaforth FC 11 11 0 0 0 92 6 86 33 0

2 Mosman FC 11 10 0 1 0 104 9 95 30 0

3 CC Strikers FC 11 8 0 3 0 45 19 26 24 0

4 Curl Curl FC 11 8 0 3 0 40 17 23 24 0

5 BTH Raiders SC 11 8 0 3 0 41 19 22 24 0

6 Wakehurst FC 11 5 1 5 0 13 30 -17 16 0

7 Brookvale FC 11 5 0 6 0 14 41 -27 15 0

8 Pittwater RSL FC 11 2 3 6 0 10 41 -31 9 0

9 Narrabeen FC 11 2 0 9 1 12 41 -29 6 0

10 Manly Vale FC 11 2 1 8 0 10 61 -51 5 -2

11 Forest Killarney FC 11 1 1 9 0 12 63 -51 4 0

12 Avalon SC 11 0 2 9 0 9 55 -46 2 0
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League - U12/3 Split A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Mosman FC 5 5 0 0 0 123 11 112 45 0

2 Seaforth FC 5 3 1 1 0 109 9 100 43 0

3 CC Strikers FC 5 3 1 1 0 60 27 33 34 0

4 Curl Curl FC 5 2 0 3 0 51 29 22 30 0

5 BTH Raiders SC 5 1 0 4 0 45 39 6 27 0

6 Wakehurst FC 5 0 0 5 0 14 52 -38 16 0

League - U12/3 Split B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Brookvale FC 5 3 2 0 0 22 44 -22 26 0

2 Pittwater RSL FC 5 2 0 3 0 21 48 -27 15 0

3 Narrabeen FC 5 2 1 2 0 21 50 -29 12 0

4 Manly Vale FC 5 3 0 2 0 18 67 -49 12 0

5 Avalon SC 5 2 1 2 0 15 64 -49 9 0

6 Forest Killarney FC 5 1 0 4 1 16 75 -59 7 0

League - U12/4

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Harbord FC 12 11 0 1 0 45 6 39 33 0

2 Seaforth FC 12 10 0 2 0 67 16 51 30 0

3 Mosman FC 12 6 2 4 0 37 36 1 20 0

4 Forest Killarney FC 12 5 2 5 0 26 35 -9 17 0

5 CC Strikers FC 12 2 2 8 0 17 39 -22 8 0

6 Wakehurst FC 12 2 2 8 1 19 50 -31 8 0

7 Manly Allambie United FC 12 1 2 9 2 12 41 -29 3 -2

League - U12/4 A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Harbord FC 3 3 0 0 0 7 0 7 9 0

2 Seaforth FC 3 2 0 1 0 10 3 7 6 0

3 Forest Killarney FC 3 1 0 2 0 4 8 -4 3 0

4 Mosman FC 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 -10 0 0

League - U12/4 B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 CC Strikers FC 2 2 0 0 0 8 0 8 6 0

2 Wakehurst FC 2 1 0 1 0 3 6 -3 3 0

3 Manly Allambie United FC 2 0 0 2 0 0 5 -5 0 0
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League - U12/5

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Beacon Hill FC 15 14 1 0 0 81 9 72 43 0

2 Mosman FC 15 11 2 2 0 39 10 29 35 0

3 CC Strikers FC 15 5 1 9 0 28 46 -18 16 0

4 Wakehurst FC 15 5 0 10 0 21 41 -20 15 0

5 BTH Raiders SC 15 3 4 8 0 24 52 -28 13 0

6 Saint Augustine’s FC 15 2 2 11 0 20 55 -35 8 0

League - U12/5 A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Mosman FC 3 2 1 0 0 9 0 9 7 0

2 Beacon Hill FC 3 2 1 0 0 9 1 8 7 0

3 Wakehurst FC 3 1 0 2 0 2 12 -10 3 0

4 CC Strikers FC 3 0 0 3 0 0 7 -7 0 0

League - U12/5 B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 BTH Raiders SC 1 0 1 0 0 2 2 0 1 0

2 Saint Augustine’s FC 1 0 1 0 0 2 2 0 1 0

League - U13/1

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 BTH Raiders SC 16 13 2 1 0 59 10 49 41 0

2 Dee Why FC 16 12 3 1 0 51 18 33 39 0

3 Narrabeen FC 16 11 1 4 0 44 28 16 34 0

4 CC Strikers FC 16 8 2 6 0 33 17 16 26 0

5 Wakehurst FC 16 8 1 7 0 27 25 2 25 0

6 Harbord FC 16 6 0 10 0 39 34 5 18 0

7 Forest Killarney FC 16 3 1 12 0 18 36 -18 10 0

8 Curl Curl FC 16 3 0 13 2 7 53 -46 9 0

9 Seaforth FC 16 3 0 13 0 15 72 -57 9 0

League - U13/2

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Pittwater RSL FC A 18 17 1 0 0 87 24 63 52 0

2 Wakehurst FC 18 15 1 2 0 77 27 50 46 0

3 Brookvale FC 18 12 2 4 1 57 30 27 38 0

4 BTH Raiders SC 18 10 1 7 0 42 29 13 31 0

5 Mosman FC 18 8 1 9 0 37 49 -12 25 0

6 CC Strikers FC 18 6 2 10 0 32 49 -17 20 0

7 Harbord FC 18 4 3 11 0 32 47 -15 15 0

8 Dee Why FC 18 5 0 13 0 24 52 -28 15 0

9 Pittwater RSL FC B 18 4 1 13 2 31 76 -45 11 -2

10 Forest Killarney FC 18 3 0 15 0 26 62 -36 9 0
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League - U13/2

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Pittwater RSL FC A 18 17 1 0 0 87 24 63 52 0

2 Wakehurst FC 18 15 1 2 0 77 27 50 46 0

3 Brookvale FC 18 12 2 4 1 57 30 27 38 0

4 BTH Raiders SC 18 10 1 7 0 42 29 13 31 0

5 Mosman FC 18 8 1 9 0 37 49 -12 25 0

6 CC Strikers FC 18 6 2 10 0 32 49 -17 20 0

7 Harbord FC 18 4 3 11 0 32 47 -15 15 0

8 Dee Why FC 18 5 0 13 0 24 52 -28 15 0

9 Pittwater RSL FC B 18 4 1 13 2 31 76 -45 11 -2

10 Forest Killarney FC 18 3 0 15 0 26 62 -36 9 0

League - U13/3 

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Avalon SC 18 15 3 0 0 106 11 95 48 0

2 Wakehurst FC 18 13 3 2 0 45 11 34 42 0

3 Beacon Hill FC 18 12 3 3 0 79 30 49 39 0

4 Pittwater RSL FC 18 9 2 7 0 46 53 -7 29 0

5 Seaforth FC 18 8 4 6 1 47 33 14 28 0

6 Mosman FC 18 7 2 9 0 51 53 -2 23 0

7 Manly Allambie United FC 18 4 4 10 0 30 59 -29 16 0

8 Narrabeen FC 18 4 1 13 0 36 67 -31 13 0

9 CC Strikers FC 18 3 2 13 0 12 73 -61 11 0

10 Forest Killarney FC 18 2 2 14 2 26 88 -62 6 -2

League - U13/4

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Manly Vale FC 14 12 2 0 0 69 8 61 38 0

2 Harbord FC 14 9 2 3 0 51 20 31 29 0

3 Seaforth FC 14 8 2 4 0 50 23 27 26 0

4 Pittwater RSL FC 14 8 2 4 0 50 28 22 26 0

5 Avalon SC 14 8 1 5 0 48 22 26 25 0

6 Wakehurst FC 14 2 1 11 1 21 63 -42 7 0

7 Curl Curl FC 14 2 0 12 0 16 90 -74 6 0

8 Brookvale FC 14 1 2 11 2 11 62 -51 5 0

League - U13/4 A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Manly Vale FC 3 2 1 0 0 12 3 9 7 0

2 Harbord FC 3 2 0 1 0 13 6 7 6 0

3 Seaforth FC 3 1 0 2 1 3 9 -6 3 0

4 Pittwater RSL FC 3 0 1 2 0 2 12 -10 1 0
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League - U13/4 B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Avalon SC 3 3 0 0 0 18 3 15 9 0

2 Curl Curl FC 3 1 1 1 0 3 4 -1 4 0

3 Wakehurst FC 3 1 1 1 0 5 11 -6 4 0

4 Brookvale FC 3 0 0 3 0 1 9 -8 0 0

League - U14/1

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 CC Strikers FC 12 11 0 1 0 39 14 25 33 0

2 Wakehurst FC 12 7 2 3 0 24 16 8 23 0

3 Saint Augustine’s FC 12 7 0 5 0 25 18 7 21 0

4 Forest Killarney FC 12 4 3 5 0 23 18 5 15 0

5 Dee Why FC 12 3 3 6 0 10 18 -8 12 0

6 Pittwater RSL FC 12 3 0 9 0 16 32 -16 9 0

7 Curl Curl FC 12 1 4 7 1 14 35 -21 7 0

League - U14/1 A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 CC Strikers FC 3 3 0 0 0 5 1 4 9 0

2 Wakehurst FC 3 1 1 1 0 7 3 4 4 0

3 Saint Augustine's FC 3 1 1 1 0 3 2 1 4 0

4 Forest Killarney FC 3 0 0 3 1 0 9 -9 0 0

League - U14/1 B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Curl Curl FC 2 2 0 0 0 6 4 2 6 0

2 Pittwater RSL FC 2 0 1 1 0 3 4 -1 1 0

3 Dee Why FC 2 0 1 1 0 1 2 -1 1 0

League - U14/2

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 CC Strikers FC 18 16 1 1 0 59 6 53 49 0

2 Wakehurst FC A 18 12 3 3 0 41 15 26 39 0

3 Saint Augustine’s FC 18 12 1 5 0 53 20 33 37 0

4 Avalon SC 18 9 7 2 0 40 21 19 34 0

5 Seaforth FC 18 8 4 6 0 38 26 12 28 0

6 Wakehurst FC B 18 7 3 8 0 28 27 1 24 0

7 Manly Allambie United FC 18 5 2 11 0 34 55 -21 17 0

8 Forest Killarney FC 18 4 4 10 1 37 55 -18 16 0

9 Pittwater RSL FC 18 2 2 14 0 25 78 -53 8 0

10 Harbord FC 18 1 1 16 1 9 61 -52 4 0
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League - U14/3 
Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 CC Strikers FC 18 14 1 3 0 93 20 73 43 0
2 Manly Vale FC 18 14 0 4 0 85 26 59 42 0
3 Saint Augustine’s FC A 18 13 1 4 0 66 23 43 40 0
4 Forest Killarney FC B 18 12 3 3 0 79 19 60 39 0
5 Forest Killarney FC A 18 9 0 9 0 44 42 2 27 0
6 Dee Why FC 18 7 2 9 0 46 41 5 23 0
7 Narrabeen FC 18 6 3 9 1 31 61 -30 20 -1
8 Mosman FC 18 3 3 12 0 26 52 -26 12 0
9 Avalon SC 18 3 0 15 1 9 98 -89 9 0

10 Saint Augustine’s FC B 18 2 1 15 0 16 113 -97 7 0
League - U14/4 

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.
1 Seaforth FC 14 11 2 1 0 56 18 38 35 0
2 CC Strikers FC A 14 10 2 2 0 51 20 31 32 0
3 BTH Raiders SC 14 9 2 3 0 45 26 19 29 0
4 CC Strikers FC B 14 6 4 4 0 43 26 17 22 0
5 Wakehurst FC 14 7 1 6 0 41 29 12 22 0
6 Saint Augustine’s FC 14 4 1 9 1 27 49 -22 13 0
7 Pittwater RSL FC 14 1 1 12 0 21 61 -40 4 0
8 Dee Why FC 14 1 1 12 2 16 71 -55 4 0

League - U14/4 A
Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 CC Strikers FC A 3 2 1 0 0 6 2 4 7 0
2 BTH Raiders SC 3 1 1 1 0 4 4 0 4 0
3 CC Strikers FC B 3 1 0 2 0 3 4 -1 3 0
4 Seaforth FC 3 1 0 2 0 3 6 -3 3 0

League - U14/1 B
Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Curl Curl FC 2 2 0 0 0 6 4 2 6 0
2 Pittwater RSL FC 2 0 1 1 0 3 4 -1 1 0
3 Dee Why FC 2 0 1 1 0 1 2 -1 1 0

League - U15/1
Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Forest Killarney FC 16 13 2 1 1 65 14 51 41 0
2 BTH Raiders SC 16 10 4 2 0 59 21 38 34 0
3 CC Strikers FC A 16 11 1 4 0 42 17 25 34 0
4 Saint Augustine’s FC 16 10 3 3 0 47 29 18 33 0
5 Curl Curl FC 16 5 6 5 0 32 24 8 21 0
6 Wakehurst FC 16 4 2 10 0 30 50 -20 14 0
7 Narrabeen FC 16 3 4 9 0 11 41 -30 13 0
8 CC Strikers FC B 16 2 1 13 0 12 57 -45 7 0
9 Seaforth FC 16 2 1 13 0 15 60 -45 6 -1
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League - U15/2 

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Saint Augustine’s FC B 18 15 3 0 0 83 24 59 48 0

2 Avalon SC 18 12 4 2 0 72 26 46 40 0

3 Saint Augustine’s FC A 18 10 7 1 0 41 14 27 37 0

4 Manly Vale FC 18 9 3 6 0 28 29 -1 30 0

5 Forest Killarney FC B 18 8 2 8 0 38 36 2 26 0

6 Dee Why FC 18 5 4 9 0 18 27 -9 19 0

7 Brookvale FC 18 5 4 9 0 18 31 -13 19 0

8 CC Strikers FC 18 5 3 10 0 47 76 -29 18 0

9 Forest Killarney FC A 18 4 4 10 0 27 51 -24 16 0

10 Seaforth FC 18 0 0 18 0 14 72 -58 0 0

League - U15/3

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Narrabeen FC 10 8 0 2 0 52 6 46 24 0

2 Saint Augustine’s FC A 10 7 1 2 0 45 18 27 22 0

3 Mosman FC 10 7 1 2 0 37 13 24 22 0

4 Wakehurst FC 10 7 0 3 0 28 22 6 21 0

5 Saint Augustine’s FC C 10 6 1 3 0 36 44 -8 19 0

6 Avalon SC 10 5 1 4 0 43 27 16 16 0

7 Saint Augustine’s FC B 10 3 1 6 0 21 37 -16 10 0

8 Manly Vale FC 10 3 0 7 0 17 25 -8 9 0

9 Curl Curl FC 10 3 0 7 0 14 40 -26 9 0

10 Beacon Hill FC 10 2 0 8 1 13 50 -37 6 0

11 Brookvale FC 10 1 1 8 0 12 36 -24 4 0

League - U15/3 Split A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Mosman FC 5 3 1 1 0 48 16 32 32 0

2 Saint Augustine’s FC A 5 3 1 1 0 55 26 29 32 0

3 Narrabeen FC 5 2 1 2 0 62 10 52 31 0

4 Avalon SC 5 4 0 1 0 54 30 24 27 0

5 Wakehurst FC 5 0 1 4 0 32 38 -6 22 0

6 Saint Augustine’s FC C 5 0 2 3 1 42 62 -20 20 0

League - U15/3 Split B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Saint Augustine’s FC B 4 3 0 1 0 35 46 -11 19 0

2 Curl Curl FC 4 2 0 2 0 21 49 -28 15 0

3 Manly Vale FC 4 1 1 2 0 30 33 -3 13 0

4 Brookvale FC 4 2 1 1 0 19 41 -22 11 0

5 Beacon Hill FC 4 1 0 3 0 19 66 -47 9 0
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League - U16/1 

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Saint Augustine’s FC A 14 12 1 1 0 53 13 40 37 0

2 BTH Raiders SC 14 9 2 3 0 31 11 20 29 0

3 Curl Curl FC 14 9 2 3 0 36 26 10 29 0

4 Wakehurst FC 14 8 1 5 0 36 21 15 25 0

5 Narrabeen FC 14 4 2 8 0 22 52 -30 14 0

6 Manly Allambie United FC 14 4 1 9 0 19 34 -15 13 0

7 CC Strikers FC 14 3 2 9 0 17 29 -12 11 0

8 Saint Augustine’s FC B 14 0 3 11 0 14 42 -28 3 0

League - 16/1 A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 BTH Raiders SC 3 2 1 0 0 3 0 3 7 0

2 Saint Augustine's FC 3 2 0 1 0 8 2 6 6 0

3 Wakehurst FC 3 1 0 2 0 3 7 -4 3 0

4 Curl Curl FC 3 0 1 2 0 0 5 -5 1 0

League - 16/1 B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 CC Strikers FC 3 3 0 0 0 6 0 6 9 0

2 Narrabeen FC 3 2 0 1 0 10 4 6 6 0

3 Saint Augustine’s FC B 3 0 1 2 0 1 5 -4 1 0

4 Manly Allambie United FC 3 0 1 2 0 0 8 -8 1 0

League - U16/2

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Mosman FC A 16 11 3 2 0 66 16 50 36 0

2 Seaforth FC 16 10 2 4 0 61 17 44 32 0

3 Wakehurst FC 16 10 2 4 0 38 20 18 32 0

4 Curl Curl FC 16 8 5 3 0 47 17 30 29 0

5 Saint Augustine’s FC 16 7 5 4 0 33 25 8 26 0

6 Avalon SC 16 7 4 5 0 47 31 16 25 0

7 BTH Raiders SC 16 4 1 11 1 23 68 -45 13 0

8 Narrabeen FC 16 4 0 12 0 31 67 -36 12 0

9 Mosman FC B 16 0 0 16 0 6 91 -85 0 0
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League - U16/3

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Manly Allambie United FC 18 13 2 3 0 42 17 25 41 0

2 CC Strikers FC 18 12 2 4 0 54 19 35 38 0

3 Saint Augustine’s FC A 18 11 2 5 0 56 19 37 35 0

4 Wakehurst FC 18 10 3 5 0 53 17 36 33 0

5 Pittwater RSL FC 18 10 3 5 0 25 19 6 33 0

6 Seaforth FC 18 9 3 6 0 39 24 15 30 0

7 Brookvale FC 18 9 3 6 0 28 22 6 30 0

8 Avalon SC 18 4 0 14 0 22 59 -37 12 0

9 Curl Curl FC 18 1 1 16 0 18 68 -50 4 0

10 Saint Augustine’s FC B 18 1 1 16 2 10 83 -73 2 -2

League - U18/1

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Wakehurst FC 16 12 4 0 0 49 16 33 40 0

2 Saint Augustine’s FC 16 10 4 2 0 46 18 28 34 0

3 Narrabeen FC 16 9 2 5 0 46 21 25 29 0

4 CC Strikers FC 16 8 3 5 0 40 26 14 27 0

5 Wakehurst Football Club B 16 6 6 4 0 42 32 10 21 -3

6 Seaforth FC 16 5 3 8 0 28 47 -19 18 0

7 Forest Killarney FC 16 4 2 10 0 21 43 -22 14 0

8 Manly Vale FC 16 3 3 10 0 32 61 -29 12 0

9 Manly Allambie United FC 16 1 1 14 0 11 51 -40 4 0

League - U18/2

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Narrabeen FC 18 14 1 3 0 51 29 22 43 0

2 Harbord FC 18 12 3 3 0 66 35 31 39 0

3 Dee Why FC 18 10 4 4 0 55 37 18 34 0

4 Saint Augustine’s FC 18 10 3 5 0 53 23 30 33 0

5 Avalon SC A 18 9 4 5 0 39 24 15 31 0

6 Brookvale FC 18 9 2 7 0 62 43 19 29 0

7 Seaforth FC 18 5 3 10 1 37 53 -16 18 0

8 Pittwater RSL FC 18 3 2 13 0 30 68 -38 11 0

9 BTH Raiders SC 18 3 1 14 0 24 51 -27 10 0

10 Avalon SC B 18 3 1 14 1 39 93 -54 10 0
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League - U18/3 A Split

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Narrabeen FC 5 3 0 2 0 37 20 17 31 0

2 Manly Allambie United FC 5 4 0 1 0 39 19 20 30 0

3 Seaforth FC 5 3 0 2 0 34 22 12 29 0

4 CC Strikers FC 5 2 0 3 0 38 21 17 28 0

5 Pittwater RSL FC 5 2 0 3 0 44 35 9 26 0

6 Mosman FC 5 1 0 4 0 33 31 2 21 0

League - U18/3 B Split

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Saint Augustine’s FC A 4 2 1 1 0 38 37 1 18 0

2 Dee Why FC 4 2 1 1 0 36 33 3 16 0

3 Saint Augustine’s FC C 4 1 2 1 0 22 36 -14 16 0

4 Saint Augustine’s FC B 4 2 0 2 0 28 59 -31 8 0

5 Manly Vale FC 4 1 0 3 0 29 65 -36 4 0

League - U18/4

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 CC Strikers FC 16 14 0 2 0 101 10 91 42 0

2 Curl Curl FC 16 11 1 4 0 73 24 49 34 0

3 Harbord Football Club 16 9 4 3 0 61 25 36 31 0

4 Forest Killarney FC A 16 10 1 5 0 72 40 32 31 0

5 Forest Killarney FC B 16 9 0 7 0 53 40 13 27 0

6 Saint Augustine’s FC A 16 6 0 10 0 40 75 -35 18 0

7 Saint Augustine’s FC B 16 4 2 10 0 36 79 -43 14 0

8 Wakehurst FC 16 3 1 12 0 32 82 -50 10 0

9 Brookvale FC 16 1 1 14 0 10 103 -93 4 0

League - U21/1

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Brookvale FC 12 12 0 0 0 55 10 45 36 0

2 CC Strikers FC B 12 9 1 2 0 54 11 43 28 0

3 CC Strikers FC A 12 8 1 3 0 38 11 27 25 0

4 Curl Curl FC 12 5 1 6 1 25 32 -7 16 0

5 CC Strikers FC C 12 2 1 9 2 17 53 -36 7 0

6 Harbord FC 12 2 1 9 0 13 51 -38 7 0

7 Wakehurst FC 12 1 1 10 0 14 48 -34 4 0

League - U21/1 A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Brookvale FC 3 2 1 0 0 13 4 9 7 0

2 CC Strikers FC B 3 2 0 1 0 10 5 5 6 0

3 CC Strikers FC A 3 1 1 1 0 7 3 4 4 0

4 Curl Curl FC 3 0 0 3 0 2 20 -18 0 0
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League - 21/1 B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Harbord FC 2 1 1 0 0 5 2 3 4 0

2 Wakehurst FC 2 1 1 0 0 5 2 3 4 0

3 CC Strikers FC C 2 0 0 2 0 2 8 -6 -2 -2

League - U21/2

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Seaforth FC 15 11 0 4 0 59 22 37 33 0

2 Wakehurst FC B 15 8 1 6 0 34 28 6 25 0

3 Brookvale FC 15 10 0 5 3 48 37 11 24 -6

4 Manly Vale FC 15 7 1 7 0 37 37 0 22 0

5 Narrabeen FC 15 4 3 8 0 29 39 -10 15 0

6 Wakehurst FC A 15 2 1 12 2 15 59 -44 7 0

League - U21/2 A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Manly Vale FC 3 1 2 0 0 6 5 1 5 0

2 Seaforth FC 3 1 2 0 0 5 4 1 5 0

3 Wakehurst FC 3 0 2 1 0 6 7 -1 2 0

4 Brookvale FC 3 0 2 1 0 5 6 -1 2 -6

League - U21/2 B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Narrabeen FC 1 1 0 0 0 5 0 5 3 0

2 Wakehurst FC A 1 0 0 1 1 0 5 -5 0 0

League - PL

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Pittwater RSL FC 20 17 0 3 0 57 19 38 48 -3

2 Narrabeen FC 20 15 2 3 0 54 16 38 47 0

3 CC Strikers FC 20 13 2 5 0 54 25 29 41 0

4 Mosman FC 20 12 3 5 0 41 28 13 39 0

5 Saint Augustine’s FC 20 8 1 11 0 51 41 10 25 0

6 Wakehurst FC 20 7 2 11 0 37 44 -7 23 0

7 Beacon Hill FC 20 6 4 10 0 36 52 -16 22 0

8 Brookvale FC 20 5 5 10 0 35 47 -12 20 0

9 Harbord FC 20 4 8 8 0 32 50 -18 20 0

10 Manly Vale FC 20 5 3 12 0 35 58 -23 18 0

11 BTH Raiders SC 20 2 2 16 0 17 69 -52 5 -3
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League - PL/R

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 CC Strikers FC 20 12 5 3 0 36 19 17 41 0

2 Mosman FC 20 12 1 7 0 42 20 22 37 0

3 Wakehurst FC 20 11 4 5 0 35 23 12 37 0

4 Pittwater RSL FC 20 11 6 3 0 48 25 23 36 -3

5 Brookvale FC 20 10 3 7 0 33 23 10 33 0

6 Narrabeen FC 20 9 5 6 0 48 37 11 32 0

7 Beacon Hill FC 20 9 5 6 0 35 33 2 32 0

8 Saint Augustine’s FC 20 7 4 9 0 41 45 -4 25 0

9 Manly Vale FC 20 4 3 13 0 20 46 -26 15 0

10 Harbord FC 20 4 2 14 0 19 50 -31 14 0

11 BTH Raiders SC 20 2 0 18 0 20 56 -36 3 -3

League - AL/1

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Forest Killarney FC 18 15 1 2 0 79 15 64 46 0

2 Wakehurst FC 18 12 3 3 0 35 19 16 39 0

3 Manly Allambie United FC 18 12 2 4 0 45 30 15 38 0

4 Dee Why FC 18 11 2 5 0 38 34 4 35 0

5 Mosman FC 18 10 2 6 0 26 26 0 32 0

6 Saint Augustine’s FC 18 9 2 7 0 49 29 20 29 0

7 Seaforth FC 18 5 3 10 0 22 41 -19 18 0

8 Harbord FC 18 3 1 14 0 23 61 -38 10 0

9 Narrabeen FC 18 2 2 14 0 25 47 -22 8 0

10 Avalon SC 18 1 2 15 0 15 55 -40 5 0

League - AL/1R

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Saint Augustine’s FC 18 11 4 3 0 45 17 28 37 0

2 Wakehurst FC 18 11 3 4 0 45 26 19 36 0

3 Narrabeen FC 18 11 3 4 0 43 28 15 36 0

4 Forest Killarney FC 18 9 4 5 0 40 30 10 31 0

5 Harbord FC 18 7 6 5 0 30 29 1 27 0

6 Mosman FC 18 7 4 7 0 26 29 -3 25 0

7 Dee Why FC 18 6 2 10 0 27 36 -9 20 0

8 Manly Allambie United FC 18 5 4 9 0 18 35 -17 19 0

9 Seaforth FC 18 3 5 10 0 22 33 -11 14 0

10 Avalon SC 18 1 3 14 0 14 47 -33 6 0
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League - AL/2

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Pittwater RSL FC 16 11 2 3 0 48 37 11 35 0

2 BTH Raiders SC 16 10 3 3 0 49 24 25 33 0

3 Brookvale FC B 16 9 2 5 0 36 31 5 29 0

4 Manly Vale FC 16 9 1 6 0 45 34 11 28 0

5 Curl Curl FC 16 8 2 6 0 36 27 9 26 0

6 Brookvale FC A 16 7 3 6 0 32 29 3 24 0

7 Manly Allambie United FC 16 7 1 8 0 43 32 11 22 0

8 Beacon Hill FC A 16 0 2 14 0 19 46 -27 1 -1

9 Beacon Hill FC B 16 3 0 13 3 20 68 -48 1 -8

League - AL/3

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Seaforth FC 18 13 2 3 1 53 22 31 41 0

2 Mosman FC A 18 12 3 3 0 43 24 19 39 0

3 Manly Vale FC B 18 10 3 5 0 33 18 15 33 0

4 Manly Vale FC A 18 9 4 5 0 44 28 16 31 0

5 Harbord FC 18 8 6 4 0 52 36 16 30 0

6 CC Strikers FC 18 6 5 7 0 34 33 1 23 0

7 Mosman FC B 18 5 5 8 2 28 40 -12 18 -2

8 Pittwater RSL FC 18 5 0 13 0 25 50 -25 15 0

9 Mosman FC C 18 2 5 11 0 26 54 -28 11 0

10 Narrabeen FC 18 2 3 13 1 27 60 -33 9 0

League - AL/4

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Saint Augustine’s FC 18 14 2 2 0 68 25 43 44 0

2 Curl Curl FC A 18 12 2 4 0 58 36 22 38 0

3 Forest Killarney FC A 18 11 1 6 0 53 38 15 34 0

4 Forest Killarney FC B 18 11 1 6 0 45 31 14 34 0

5 Curl Curl FC B 18 10 3 5 0 49 35 14 33 0

6 Pittwater RSL FC 18 8 5 5 0 39 21 18 29 0

7 Beacon Hill FC 18 5 2 11 1 33 60 -27 17 0

8 Manly Vale FC 18 3 7 8 0 35 50 -15 16 0

9 Harbord FC 18 3 0 15 0 32 62 -30 9 0

10 Mosman FC 18 0 3 15 3 24 78 -54 -3 -6
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League - AL/5

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Mosman FC 18 13 3 2 0 57 21 36 42 0

2 Dee Why FC 18 12 4 2 0 65 32 33 40 0

3 Manly Vale FC B 18 12 2 4 0 60 23 37 38 0

4 Manly Vale FC A 18 10 4 4 0 66 30 36 34 0

5 Harbord FC 18 9 3 6 1 36 33 3 30 0

6 Curl Curl FC 18 7 1 10 0 32 50 -18 22 0

7 Beacon Hill FC 18 6 3 9 0 43 36 7 20 -1

8 Avalon SC 18 4 2 12 0 22 57 -35 13 -1

9 Pittwater RSL FC B 18 3 3 12 0 20 41 -21 12 0

10 Pittwater RSL FC A 18 1 1 16 2 20 98 -78 0 -4

League - AL/6

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Mosman FC A 18 13 3 2 0 73 18 55 42 0

2 Wakehurst FC 18 13 1 4 2 43 35 8 40 0

3 Curl Curl FC 18 11 4 3 0 54 25 29 37 0

4 Mosman FC B 18 9 1 8 0 62 43 19 28 0

5 Harbord FC A 18 9 3 6 2 44 38 6 28 -2

6 Harbord FC B 18 8 3 7 0 37 35 2 26 -1

7 BTH Raiders SC 18 6 3 9 2 37 55 -18 19 -2

8 Forest Killarney FC 18 6 1 11 0 39 49 -10 15 -4

9 Avalon SC 18 4 0 14 0 23 62 -39 12 0

10 Narrabeen FC 18 1 1 16 0 17 69 -52 4 0

League - AL/7

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Curl Curl FC A 18 14 3 1 1 46 18 28 44 -1

2 Curl Curl FC B 18 12 5 1 0 62 14 48 41 0

3 Beacon Hill FC 18 11 2 5 1 61 27 34 35 0

4 Dee Why FC 18 9 1 8 0 45 34 11 28 0

5 Saint Augustine’s FC 18 10 0 8 1 52 48 4 27 -3

6 Wakehurst FC B 18 6 5 7 0 28 43 -15 23 0

7 Manly Allambie United FC 18 6 1 11 0 41 59 -18 19 0

8 Curl Curl FC C 18 5 0 13 0 26 52 -26 15 0

9 CC Strikers FC 18 4 1 13 2 19 61 -42 11 -2

10 Wakehurst FC A 18 2 4 12 0 27 51 -24 10 0
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League - O35 1/2

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Mosman FC 10 8 2 0 0 47 4 43 26 0

2 Wakehurst FC A 10 8 2 0 0 47 10 37 26 0

3 Pittwater RSL FC A 10 8 1 1 0 55 12 43 25 0

4 BTH Raiders SC 10 6 1 3 0 21 24 -3 19 0

5 CC Strikers FC 10 4 4 2 0 24 27 -3 16 0

6 Narrabeen FC 10 4 1 5 0 30 20 10 13 0

7 Dee Why FC B 10 3 2 5 0 23 32 -9 11 0

8 Pittwater RSL FC B 10 2 1 7 0 11 45 -34 7 0

9 Wakehurst FC B 10 1 3 6 0 13 32 -19 6 0

10 Dee Why FC A 10 1 1 8 1 14 37 -23 4 0

11 Manly Vale FC 10 0 2 8 0 15 57 -42 2 0

League - O35/1 Split

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Pittwater RSL FC A 5 4 1 0 0 76 17 59 38 0

2 Wakehurst FC A 5 4 0 1 0 74 17 57 38 0

3 Mosman FC 5 3 1 1 0 59 9 50 36 0

4 BTH Raiders SC 5 0 1 4 0 23 40 -17 20 0

5 CC Strikers FC 5 1 0 4 1 28 49 -21 18 0

6 Narrabeen Football Club 5 1 1 3 0 36 37 -1 17 0

League - O35/2 Split

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Dee Why FC B 4 3 0 1 1 31 41 -10 20 0

2 Wakehurst FC B 4 3 0 1 0 24 38 -14 15 0

3 Dee Why FC A 4 2 1 1 0 25 42 -17 11 0

4 Pittwater RSL FC B 4 1 0 3 0 16 53 -37 10 0

5 Manly Vale FC 4 0 1 3 0 23 72 -49 3 0

League - O35/3

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Pittwater RSL FC 16 10 6 0 0 42 26 16 36 0

2 Seaforth FC A 16 10 2 4 0 47 28 19 32 0

3 Harbord FC A 16 9 3 4 0 48 22 26 30 0

4 Harbord FC B 16 8 3 5 0 48 33 15 27 0

5 CC Strikers FC A 16 7 2 7 0 32 28 4 23 0

6 Dee Why FC 16 7 0 9 0 28 31 -3 21 0

7 CC Strikers FC B 16 5 3 8 0 29 40 -11 18 0

8 Harbord FC C 16 4 1 11 0 25 54 -29 13 0

9 Seaforth FC B 16 1 2 13 2 20 57 -37 5 0
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League - O35/4

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Brookvale FC 18 14 3 1 0 57 12 45 45 0

2 Beacon Hill FC 18 12 5 1 0 54 20 34 41 0

3 Curl Curl FC A 18 12 1 5 0 65 27 38 37 0

4 Curl Curl FC B 18 9 4 5 0 47 34 13 31 0

5 Seaforth FC B 18 6 4 8 0 43 43 0 21 -1

6 Manly Allambie United FC 18 6 2 10 0 34 49 -15 20 0

7 Seaforth FC A 18 5 4 9 0 39 53 -14 19 0

8 Avalon SC 18 5 3 10 0 34 49 -15 18 0

9 Manly Vale FC 18 3 3 12 0 26 67 -41 12 0

10 Curl Curl FC C 18 3 1 14 2 23 68 -45 8 -2

League - O35/A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Manly Allambie United FC 18 15 1 2 1 80 23 57 46 0

2 Mosman FC A 18 14 3 1 0 58 20 38 45 0

3 Forest Killarney FC A 18 10 4 4 0 46 27 19 33 -1

4 Wakehurst FC 18 6 3 9 0 29 42 -13 21 0

5 Harbord FC 18 6 2 10 1 33 48 -15 20 0

6 Mosman FC B 18 2 0 16 1 19 59 -40 6 0

7 Pittwater RSL FC 18 2 3 13 3 19 65 -46 5 -4

League - O35/B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Curl Curl FC 18 15 1 2 0 95 22 73 46 0

2 Forest Killarney FC C 18 11 4 3 0 63 33 30 37 0

3 Forest Killarney FC B 18 12 1 5 1 48 38 10 37 0

4 Forest Killarney FC A 18 9 1 8 1 49 30 19 28 0

5 Brookvale FC 18 5 4 9 1 40 60 -20 19 0

6 Wakehurst FC 18 2 2 14 0 16 88 -72 8 0

7 Manly Allambie United FC 18 1 3 14 4 24 64 -40 4 -2

League - O45/1

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Mosman FC A 15 14 1 0 0 56 8 48 43 0

2 Manly Allambie United FC 15 8 2 5 1 40 21 19 26 0

3 Wakehurst FC 15 8 0 7 0 34 24 10 24 0

4 Mosman FC B 15 6 1 8 0 21 36 -15 19 0

5 Curl Curl FC 15 5 2 8 1 23 35 -12 17 0

6 Narrabeen FC 15 1 0 14 2 11 61 -50 1 -2

117



League - O45/1 A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Manly Allambie United FC 3 2 1 0 0 7 5 2 7 0

2 Mosman FC 3 2 0 1 0 10 3 7 6 0

3 Wakehurst FC 3 1 1 1 0 7 7 0 4 0

4 Mosman FC 3 0 0 3 0 5 14 -9 0 0

League - O45/1 B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Curl Curl FC 1 1 0 0 0 5 0 5 3 0

2 Narrabeen FC 1 0 0 1 1 0 5 -5 0 0

League - O45/2

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Manly Vale FC B 11 7 4 0 0 40 17 23 25 0

2 Pittwater RSL FC 11 8 1 2 0 38 20 18 25 0

3 Manly Vale FC A 11 7 3 1 0 27 10 17 24 0

4 Brookvale FC 11 7 1 3 0 25 12 13 22 0

5 Avalon SC 11 5 2 4 0 27 22 5 17 0

6 Manly Allambie United FC 11 5 1 5 0 21 24 -3 16 0

7 BTH Raiders SC 11 5 0 6 0 34 25 9 15 0

8 Wakehurst FC 11 4 1 6 0 16 29 -13 13 0

9 Mosman FC 11 4 0 7 0 26 27 -1 12 0

10 Narrabeen FC 11 2 1 8 0 19 34 -15 7 0

11 Beacon Hill FC 11 2 1 8 1 15 38 -23 7 0

12 Harbord FC 11 2 1 8 2 13 43 -30 5 -2

League - O45/2 Split A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Brookvale FC 5 4 1 0 0 42 14 28 35 0

2 Manly Vale FC B 5 3 0 2 0 50 29 21 34 0

3 Pittwater RSL FC 5 2 2 1 0 56 30 26 33 0

4 Manly Vale FC A 5 1 1 3 1 34 22 12 28 0

5 Manly Allambie United FC 5 2 0 3 0 31 41 -10 22 0

6 Avalon SC 5 1 0 4 0 35 39 -4 20 0

League - O45/2 Split B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 BTH Raiders SC 5 2 3 0 0 50 37 13 24 0

2 Mosman FC 5 2 2 1 0 36 42 -6 20 0

3 Wakehurst FC 5 2 1 2 0 25 38 -13 20 0

4 Harbord FC 5 4 0 1 0 33 50 -17 17 0

5 Beacon Hill FC 5 1 1 3 0 24 52 -28 11 0

6 Narrabeen FC 5 0 1 4 0 24 46 -22 8 0
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League - O45/3

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Forest Killarney FC A 10 9 1 0 0 45 12 33 28 0

2 Avalon SC 10 8 1 1 0 49 11 38 25 0

3 Beacon Hill FC A 10 6 2 2 0 34 21 13 20 0

4 Mosman FC 10 6 2 2 0 22 11 11 20 0

5 Wakehurst FC 10 5 2 3 0 21 14 7 17 0

6 Forest Killarney FC B 10 4 0 6 0 25 21 4 12 0

7 Seaforth FC 10 2 2 6 0 19 30 -11 8 0

8 Pittwater RSL FC 10 2 2 6 0 12 32 -20 8 0

9 Manly Allambie United FC 10 2 2 6 0 18 41 -23 8 0

10 Beacon Hill FC B 10 2 1 7 0 12 31 -19 7 0

League - O45/3 Split A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Avalon SC 5 5 0 0 0 73 12 61 40 0

2 Forest Killarney FC A 5 4 0 1 0 58 18 40 40 0

3 Wakehurst FC 5 3 0 2 0 33 22 11 26 0

4 Beacon Hill FC A 5 1 1 3 0 44 35 9 24 0

5 Mosman FC 5 1 1 3 0 33 28 5 24 0

6 Forest Killarney FC B 5 0 0 5 0 27 47 -20 12 0

League - O45/3 Split B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Seaforth FC 5 3 1 1 0 35 39 -4 18 0

2 Manly Allambie United FC 5 3 0 2 0 28 52 -24 17 0

3 Pittwater RSL FC 5 2 1 2 0 25 42 -17 15 0

4 Beacon Hill FC B 5 1 0 4 0 18 46 -28 10 0

League - O45/4

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 BTH Raiders SC A 18 11 4 3 0 29 15 14 37 0

2 BTH Raiders SC B 18 12 0 6 0 52 20 32 36 0

3 Manly Vale FC 18 9 5 4 0 38 33 5 32 0

4 Beacon Hill FC 18 9 2 7 0 44 36 8 28 -1

5 Curl Curl FC 18 7 5 6 0 27 29 -2 25 -1

6 Narrabeen FC 18 7 3 8 0 41 45 -4 24 0

7 CC Strikers FC A 18 6 1 11 0 32 39 -7 19 0

8 CC Strikers FC B 18 5 3 10 0 29 41 -12 18 0

9 Avalon SC 18 4 7 7 1 28 34 -6 15 -4

10 Mosman FC 18 2 6 10 0 23 51 -28 12 0
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League - W12/1

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Curl Curl FC 12 8 4 0 0 21 5 16 28 0

2 Dee Why FC 12 8 2 2 0 29 7 22 26 0

3 CC Strikers FC 12 7 1 4 0 23 11 12 22 0

4 Brookvale FC 12 5 3 4 0 17 18 -1 18 0

5 Seaforth FC 12 5 1 6 0 15 17 -2 16 0

6 Avalon SC 12 2 2 8 0 18 28 -10 8 0

7 Wakehurst FC 12 0 1 11 0 5 42 -37 1 0

League - W12/1 A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 CC Strikers FC 3 2 1 0 0 4 1 3 7 0

2 Brookvale FC 3 1 1 1 0 2 3 -1 4 0

3 Dee Why FC 3 1 0 2 0 3 3 0 3 0

4 Curl Curl FC 3 0 2 1 0 1 3 -2 2 0

League - W12/1 B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Wakehurst FC 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 3 0

2 Avalon SC 2 1 0 1 0 1 1 0 3 0

3 Seaforth FC 1 0 0 1 0 0 1 -1 0 0

League - W12/2

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Forest Killarney FC 17 14 2 1 0 46 7 39 44 0

2 Manly Vale FC B 17 10 6 1 0 22 8 14 36 0

3 Manly Allambie United FC 17 10 3 4 0 36 13 23 33 0

4 Manly Vale FC A 17 8 5 4 0 21 11 10 28 -1

5 Harbord FC 17 8 3 6 0 18 19 -1 27 0

6 CC Strikers FC A 17 6 5 6 0 28 13 15 23 0

7 CC Strikers FC B 17 5 1 11 0 20 48 -28 16 0

8 Curl Curl FC 17 4 3 10 0 17 36 -19 15 0

9 Beacon Hill FC 17 2 3 12 0 15 44 -29 8 -1

10 Brookvale FC 17 1 3 13 0 7 31 -24 6 0

League - W12/3

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Harbord FC 14 13 0 1 1 54 13 41 39 0

2 Narrabeen FC 14 9 1 4 0 41 19 22 28 0

3 Forest Killarney FC 14 9 1 4 0 28 15 13 28 0

4 Seaforth FC A 14 7 2 5 0 21 20 1 23 0

5 Seaforth FC B 14 6 2 6 0 17 17 0 20 0

6 Seaforth FC C 14 5 1 8 0 23 31 -8 16 0

7 Avalon SC 14 2 1 11 0 11 29 -18 7 0

8 Wakehurst FC 14 1 0 13 1 8 59 -51 3 0
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League - W12/3 A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Narrabeen FC 2 2 0 0 0 6 0 6 6 0

2 Harbord FC 2 2 0 0 0 4 2 2 6 0

3 Seaforth FC A 2 0 0 2 0 1 4 -3 0 0

4 Forest Killarney FC 2 0 0 2 0 1 6 -5 0 0

League - W12/3 B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Seaforth FC B 2 2 0 0 0 4 1 3 6 0

2 Seaforth FC C 2 1 0 1 0 4 1 3 3 0

3 Avalon SC 2 1 0 1 0 3 4 -1 3 0

4 Wakehurst FC 2 0 0 2 0 1 6 -5 0 0

League - W12/4

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Forest Killarney FC 14 11 1 2 0 42 16 26 34 0

2 Beacon Hill FC 14 10 2 2 0 48 15 33 32 0

3 Seaforth FC 14 8 0 6 0 20 16 4 24 0

4 Pittwater RSL FC 14 6 2 6 0 35 24 11 20 0

5 Mosman FC A 14 5 3 6 0 31 27 4 18 0

6 Mosman FC B 14 5 3 6 1 20 28 -8 18 0

7 Curl Curl FC 14 3 0 11 0 16 46 -30 9 0

8 CC Strikers FC 14 1 3 10 0 11 51 -40 6 0

League - W12/4 A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Forest Killarney FC 2 2 0 0 0 4 0 4 6 0

2 Beacon Hill FC 2 1 1 0 0 3 2 1 4 0

3 Seaforth FC 2 0 1 1 0 0 2 -2 1 0

4 Pittwater RSL FC 2 0 0 2 0 2 5 -3 0 0

League - W12/4 B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Mosman FC A 2 2 0 0 0 6 0 6 6 0

2 Mosman FC B 2 1 0 1 0 1 4 -3 3 0

3 Curl Curl FC 2 1 0 1 0 2 1 1 3 0

4 CC Strikers FC 2 0 0 2 0 0 4 -4 0 0
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League - W13/1

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 BTH Raiders SC 14 11 2 1 0 51 10 41 35 0

2 Seaforth FC 14 11 2 1 0 39 16 23 35 0

3 CC Strikers FC 14 10 1 3 0 56 19 37 31 0

4 Pittwater RSL FC 14 6 2 6 0 23 18 5 20 0

5 Curl Curl FC 14 5 3 6 0 18 24 -6 18 0

6 Avalon SC 14 3 1 10 0 16 30 -14 10 0

7 Wakehurst FC 14 2 2 10 0 12 41 -29 8 0

8 Narrabeen FC 14 1 1 12 0 9 66 -57 4 0

League - W13/1 A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 BTH Raiders SC 3 3 0 0 0 6 1 5 9 0

2 Seaforth FC 3 2 0 1 0 3 2 1 6 0

3 CC Strikers FC 3 1 0 2 0 2 5 -3 3 0

4 Pittwater RSL FC 3 0 0 3 0 0 3 -3 0 0

League - W13/1 B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Curl Curl FC 2 1 1 0 0 5 0 5 4 0

2 Avalon SC 2 1 1 0 0 1 0 1 4 0

3 Wakehurst FC 2 1 0 1 0 1 1 0 3 0

4 Narrabeen FC 2 0 0 2 1 0 6 -6 0 0

League - W13/2

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Pittwater RSL FC A 11 9 0 2 0 42 10 32 27 0

2 Manly Allambie United FC 11 7 2 2 0 28 7 21 23 0

3 Seaforth FC 11 6 4 1 0 16 6 10 22 0

4 Brookvale FC 11 6 2 3 1 18 13 5 20 0

5 Pittwater RSL FC B 11 4 4 3 0 21 19 2 16 0

6 BTH Raiders SC 11 4 3 4 0 19 23 -4 15 0

7 CC Strikers FC A 11 5 0 6 0 21 27 -6 15 0

8 CC Strikers FC B 11 4 2 5 0 28 20 8 14 0

9 Beacon Hill FC 11 4 2 5 0 20 20 0 14 0

10 Harbord FC 11 3 3 5 0 10 22 -12 12 0

11 Avalon SC 11 2 1 8 0 17 33 -16 7 0

12 Mosman FC 11 0 1 10 1 4 44 -40 1 0
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League - W13/2 Split A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Pittwater RSL FC A 5 4 0 1 0 61 15 46 39 0

2 Manly Allambie United FC 5 3 0 2 0 34 10 24 32 0

3 Brookvale FC 5 4 0 1 0 35 19 16 32 0

4 Seaforth FC 5 1 0 4 0 21 16 5 25 0

5 Pittwater RSL FC B 5 3 0 2 0 27 32 -5 25 0

6 BTH Raiders SC 5 0 0 5 0 22 42 -20 15 0

League - W13/2 Split B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Beacon Hill FC 4 3 1 0 0 29 23 6 23 0

2 CC Strikers FC A 4 2 1 1 0 31 34 -3 22 0

3 CC Strikers FC B 4 1 2 1 0 36 26 10 19 0

4 Harbord Football Club 4 2 1 1 0 17 27 -10 19 0

5 Avalon SC 4 1 1 2 0 22 40 -18 11 0

6 Mosman Football Club 4 0 0 4 0 10 61 -51 1 0

League - W13/3

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Seaforth FC B 11 9 1 1 0 35 8 27 28 0

2 Curl Curl FC 11 8 2 1 0 35 5 30 26 0

3 Avalon SC 11 7 2 2 0 20 8 12 23 0

4 Seaforth FC A 11 6 4 1 0 29 12 17 22 0

5 Wakehurst FC 11 5 2 4 0 27 27 0 17 0

6 Narrabeen FC 11 4 3 4 0 23 25 -2 15 0

7 Forest Killarney FC 11 4 2 5 0 15 20 -5 14 0

8 CC Strikers FC 11 3 3 5 0 17 26 -9 12 0

9 Manly Allambie United FC 11 2 3 6 1 15 29 -14 9 0

10 Seaforth FC C 11 2 2 7 0 12 18 -6 8 0

11 Pittwater RSL FC 11 1 3 7 0 12 30 -18 6 0

12 Manly Vale FC 11 0 3 8 0 5 37 -32 3 0

League - W13/3 Split A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Seaforth FC B 5 3 1 1 0 41 13 28 38 0

2 Curl Curl FC 5 2 2 1 0 46 16 30 34 0

3 Seaforth FC A 5 3 0 2 0 39 19 20 31 0

4 Avalon SC 5 1 1 3 0 23 13 10 27 0

5 Narrabeen FC 5 2 2 1 0 30 30 0 23 0

6 Wakehurst FC 5 0 2 3 0 34 38 -4 19 0
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League - W13/3 Split B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 CC Strikers FC 4 4 0 0 0 28 26 2 24 0

2 Forest Killarney FC 4 1 3 0 0 23 23 0 20 0

3 Manly Allambie United FC 4 1 1 2 0 21 41 -20 13 0

4 Seaforth FC C 4 1 1 2 0 18 26 -8 12 0

5 Pittwater RSL FC 4 1 1 2 0 13 33 -20 10 0

6 Manly Vale FC 4 1 0 3 0 7 45 -38 6 0

League - W14/1

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 CC Strikers FC A 14 13 0 1 0 49 8 41 39 0

2 Wakehurst FC 14 11 1 2 0 43 11 32 34 0

3 Manly Allambie United FC A 14 10 2 2 0 44 21 23 32 0

4 Harbord FC 14 5 2 7 0 21 24 -3 17 0

5 Avalon SC 14 5 1 8 0 30 28 2 16 0

6 Manly Allambie United FC B 14 3 4 7 0 11 27 -16 13 0

7 CC Strikers FC B 14 3 1 10 0 18 45 -27 10 0

8 Forest Killarney FC 14 0 1 13 0 7 59 -52 1 0

League - W14/1 A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Wakehurst FC 3 2 1 0 0 5 1 4 7 0

2 CC Strikers FC 3 1 2 0 0 3 2 1 5 0

3 Manly Allambie United FC A 3 0 2 1 0 2 3 -1 2 0

4 Harbord FC 3 0 1 2 0 1 5 -4 1 0

League - W14/1 B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 CC Strikers FC 2 2 0 0 0 5 0 5 6 0

2 Avalon SC 2 1 0 1 0 2 1 1 3 0

3 Manly Allambie United FC B 2 1 0 1 0 1 1 0 3 0

4 Forest Killarney FC 2 0 0 2 0 0 6 -6 0 0

League - W14/2

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Pittwater RSL FC 14 13 1 0 0 86 9 77 40 0

2 Curl Curl FC A 14 10 3 1 0 43 10 33 33 0

3 Seaforth FC A 14 8 2 4 0 33 19 14 26 0

4 CC Strikers FC 14 7 2 5 0 25 24 1 23 0

5 Curl Curl FC B 14 4 3 7 0 21 39 -18 15 0

6 Seaforth FC B 14 4 2 8 0 18 31 -13 14 0

7 Narrabeen FC 14 1 3 10 0 11 42 -31 6 0

8 Dee Why FC 14 0 2 12 0 10 73 -63 2 0
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League - W14/2 A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Pittwater RSL FC 2 2 0 0 0 13 1 12 6 0

2 Curl Curl FC A 2 1 1 0 0 2 1 1 4 0

3 Seaforth FC A 2 0 1 1 0 1 7 -6 1 0

4 CC Strikers FC 2 0 0 2 0 1 8 -7 0 0

League - W14/2 B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Seaforth FC B 2 2 0 0 0 2 0 2 6 0

2 Dee Why FC 2 1 1 0 0 3 2 1 4 0

3 Narrabeen FC 2 0 1 1 0 1 2 -1 1 0

4 Curl Curl FC B 2 0 0 2 0 1 3 -2 0 0

League - W14/3

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Brookvale FC 15 11 2 2 0 58 17 41 35 0

2 Pittwater RSL FC 15 9 3 3 0 39 25 14 30 0

3 Harbord FC 15 7 5 3 0 32 15 17 26 0

4 Mosman FC 15 6 5 4 0 17 24 -7 23 0

5 Manly Allambie United FC 15 6 2 7 0 21 25 -4 20 0

6 Wakehurst FC 15 5 3 7 1 29 30 -1 18 0

7 Avalon SC 15 4 6 5 1 21 25 -4 18 0

8 Seaforth FC 15 2 4 9 1 10 33 -23 10 0

9 CC Strikers FC 16 1 4 11 0 11 44 -33 7 0

League - W15/1

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Wakehurst FC 17 17 0 0 0 95 2 93 51 0

2 Seaforth FC A 17 15 0 2 0 97 3 94 45 0

3 Seaforth FC B 17 10 3 4 0 50 33 17 33 0

4 CC Strikers FC 17 10 3 4 0 43 33 10 33 0

5 Narrabeen FC 17 6 4 7 0 26 20 6 22 0

6 Dee Why FC 17 6 2 9 0 29 50 -21 20 0

7 Avalon SC 17 4 3 10 0 27 58 -31 15 0

8 Curl Curl FC 17 4 1 12 0 27 63 -36 13 0

9 Pittwater RSL FC 17 4 1 12 2 29 83 -54 11 -2

10 Manly Vale FC 17 0 1 16 0 11 89 -78 1 0
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League - W15/2

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 CC Strikers FC 15 11 1 3 0 55 26 29 34 0

2 Wakehurst FC 15 11 1 3 0 43 21 22 34 0

3 BTH Raiders SC 15 11 0 4 0 41 12 29 33 0

4 Harbord FC 15 10 1 4 0 35 16 19 31 0

5 Narrabeen FC 16 9 2 5 1 48 29 19 29 0

6 Avalon SC 15 4 3 8 2 17 31 -14 15 0

7 Brookvale FC 15 3 2 10 1 23 38 -15 11 0

8 Dee Why FC 15 3 1 11 0 20 37 -17 10 0

9 Seaforth FC 15 0 1 14 2 5 77 -72 -1 -2

League - W16/1

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Pittwater RSL FC 14 12 2 0 0 52 5 47 38 0

2 Seaforth FC 14 10 2 2 0 55 8 47 32 0

3 Wakehurst FC 14 8 1 5 0 31 17 14 25 0

4 Avalon SC 14 7 3 4 1 21 22 -1 24 0

5 Manly Vale FC 14 7 2 5 0 34 20 14 23 0

6 Curl Curl FC 14 4 2 8 0 22 23 -1 14 0

7 Brookvale FC 14 2 0 12 1 14 51 -37 6 0

8 Mosman FC 14 0 0 14 1 8 91 -83 0 0

League - W16/1 A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Pittwater RSL FC 3 2 1 0 0 6 1 5 7 0

2 Seaforth FC 3 2 1 0 0 4 0 4 7 0

3 Avalon SC 3 0 1 2 0 2 6 -4 1 0

4 Wakehurst FC 3 0 1 2 0 3 8 -5 1 0

League - W16/1 B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Brookevale FC 2 2 0 0 0 10 1 9 6 0

2 Manly Vale FC 2 2 0 0 0 6 1 5 6 0

3 Curl Curl FC 2 0 0 2 0 1 7 -6 0 0

4 Mosman FC 2 0 0 2 1 1 9 -8 0 0
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League - W16/2

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 CC Strikers FC 11 10 0 1 0 44 12 32 30 0

2 Curl Curl FC 11 9 1 1 0 30 7 23 28 0

3 Manly Vale FC 11 7 0 4 0 31 15 16 21 0

4 Brookvale FC A 11 7 0 4 0 19 10 9 21 0

5 Narrabeen FC 11 6 2 3 0 17 19 -2 20 0

6 Beacon Hill FC 11 5 0 6 0 24 29 -5 15 0

7 Forest Killarney FC 11 4 2 5 0 13 16 -3 14 0

8 Wakehurst FC 11 4 1 6 0 21 32 -11 13 0

9 Harbord FC 11 3 2 6 0 14 17 -3 11 0

10 Avalon SC 11 3 1 7 1 9 17 -8 10 0

11 Brookvale FC B 11 2 1 8 0 5 25 -20 7 0

12 Pittwater RSL FC 11 1 0 10 0 8 36 -28 3 0

League - W16/2 Split A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Curl Curl FC 5 4 0 1 0 40 11 29 40 0

2 CC Strikers FC 5 3 0 2 0 50 18 32 39 0

3 Manly Vale FC 5 4 0 1 0 42 21 21 33 0

4 Narrabeen FC 5 2 0 3 1 22 29 -7 26 0

5 Brookvale FC A 5 0 0 5 0 25 24 1 21 0

6 Beacon Hill FC 5 2 0 3 0 34 37 -3 21 0

League - W16/2 Split B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Wakehurst FC 4 4 0 0 0 34 37 -3 25 0

2 Forest Killarney FC 4 2 1 1 0 19 18 1 21 0

3 Harbord FC 4 2 0 2 0 21 23 -2 17 0

4 Brookvale FC B 4 1 2 1 0 11 30 -19 12 0

5 Avalon SC 4 0 1 3 1 11 29 -18 9 0

6 Pittwater RSL FC 4 0 2 2 0 11 43 -32 5 0

League - W18/1

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Manly Vale FC 15 10 2 3 0 51 21 30 32 0

2 Brookvale FC 15 7 3 5 0 45 28 17 24 0

3 Forest Killarney FC 15 7 1 7 0 22 40 -18 22 0

4 Wakehurst FC 15 6 2 7 1 33 31 2 20 0

5 Narrabeen FC 15 5 2 8 0 25 41 -16 17 0

6 Dee Why FC 15 4 2 9 0 24 39 -15 14 0
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League - W18/1 A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Forest Killarney FC 3 2 1 0 0 5 1 4 7 0

2 Wakehurst Football Club 3 2 1 0 0 5 2 3 7 0

3 Brookvale FC 3 1 0 2 0 3 5 -2 3 0

4 Manly Vale FC 3 0 0 3 0 2 7 -5 0 0

League - W18/1 B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Narrabeen FC 1 1 0 0 0 5 0 5 3 0

2 Dee Why FC 1 0 0 1 1 0 5 -5 0 0

League - W18/2

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Curl Curl FC 17 15 1 1 0 98 16 82 46 0

2 BTH Raiders SC 17 12 4 1 0 86 24 62 40 0

3 Wakehurst FC A 17 11 2 4 0 68 28 40 35 0

4 Seaforth FC 17 10 2 5 0 77 31 46 32 0

5 Wakehurst FC B 17 9 2 6 0 54 38 16 29 0

6 Avalon SC 17 6 2 9 0 42 50 -8 20 0

7 Pittwater RSL FC 17 6 1 10 2 25 53 -28 17 -2

8 CC Strikers FC 17 5 1 11 0 25 63 -38 16 0

9 Brookvale FC 17 2 1 14 2 11 93 -82 7 0

10 Manly Allambie United FC 17 1 0 16 1 13 103 -90 3 0

League - WPL

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Seaforth FC 14 11 2 1 0 32 9 23 35 0

2 Beacon Hill FC 14 11 1 2 0 45 14 31 34 0

3 Manly Vale FC 14 10 1 3 0 41 15 26 31 0

4 Wakehurst FC 14 5 3 6 0 23 24 -1 18 0

5 Curl Curl FC 14 2 7 5 0 20 27 -7 13 0

6 Brookvale FC 14 2 4 8 0 11 23 -12 10 0

7 Pittwater RSL FC 14 2 3 9 0 11 32 -21 9 0

8 Manly Allambie United FC 14 1 3 10 0 15 54 -39 6 0
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League - WPL/R

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Manly Vale FC 14 12 2 0 0 47 5 42 38 0

2 Seaforth FC 14 10 1 3 0 47 17 30 31 0

3 Beacon Hill FC 14 9 3 2 0 43 12 31 30 0

4 Wakehurst FC 14 8 0 6 0 21 24 -3 24 0

5 Curl Curl FC 14 6 1 7 0 22 21 1 19 0

6 Brookvale FC 14 4 1 9 0 11 26 -15 13 0

7 Pittwater RSL FC 14 2 0 12 0 12 39 -27 6 0

8 Manly Allambie United FC 14 1 0 13 0 9 68 -59 3 0

League - WAL/1

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Brookvale FC 14 12 1 1 0 60 15 45 37 0

2 Narrabeen FC 14 10 0 4 0 27 11 16 30 0

3 Mosman FC 14 8 1 5 0 25 19 6 25 0

4 Avalon SC 14 7 1 6 0 29 29 0 22 0

5 Wakehurst FC 14 7 0 7 0 21 24 -3 21 0

6 BTH Raiders SC 14 6 1 7 0 32 25 7 19 0

7 Manly Vale FC 14 1 3 10 0 14 35 -21 6 0

8 Beacon Hill FC 14 1 1 12 2 11 61 -50 2 -2

League - WAL/1 A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Brookvale FC 3 2 1 0 0 11 4 7 7 0

2 Mosman FC 3 1 1 1 0 7 7 0 4 0

3 Avalon SC 3 1 1 1 0 5 6 -1 4 0

4 Narrabeen FC 3 0 1 2 0 2 8 -6 1 0

League - WAL/1 B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 BTH Raiders SC 3 3 0 0 0 8 5 3 9 0

2 Manly Vale FC 3 2 0 1 0 10 4 6 6 0

3 Wakehurst FC 3 1 0 2 0 10 8 2 3 0

4 Beacon Hill FC 3 0 0 3 1 1 12 -11 0 0
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League - WAL/3

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Manly Vale FC 17 16 1 0 0 61 10 51 49 0

2 Curl Curl FC 17 14 2 1 0 59 17 42 44 0

3 BTH Raiders SC 17 10 2 5 0 57 31 26 32 0

4 Beacon Hill FC 17 8 3 6 0 38 24 14 27 0

5 Harbord FC 17 7 4 6 0 35 32 3 25 0

6 Wakehurst FC A 18 6 3 9 1 26 32 -6 21 0

7 Pittwater RSL FC 17 6 1 10 0 26 43 -17 19 0

8 Manly Allambie United FC 17 4 1 12 1 13 53 -40 13 0

9 Forest Killarney FC 17 3 2 12 2 17 53 -36 9 -2

10 Wakehurst FC B 18 1 3 14 1 13 50 -37 6 0

League - WAL/4

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Manly Allambie United FC 17 9 3 5 0 37 18 19 30 0

2 Avalon SC 17 10 0 7 0 30 30 0 30 0

3 Narrabeen FC 17 8 3 6 0 41 30 11 27 0

4 Wakehurst FC 17 8 3 6 1 23 22 1 27 0

5 Mosman FC 17 6 8 3 0 38 29 9 26 0

6 BTH Raiders SC 17 7 2 8 0 39 37 2 23 0

7 Forest Killarney FC 17 6 4 7 0 44 41 3 22 0

8 Brookvale FC 17 6 4 7 0 31 35 -4 22 0

9 CC Strikers FC 17 5 2 10 0 24 33 -9 17 0

10 Seaforth FC 17 4 3 10 1 21 53 -32 15 0

League - W40/1

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Forest Killarney FC 14 13 1 0 0 80 6 74 40 0

2 Wakehurst FC 14 12 1 1 0 48 7 41 37 0

3 Manly Allambie United FC 14 6 3 5 0 22 23 -1 21 0

4 Curl Curl FC B 14 4 4 6 0 18 32 -14 16 0

5 Curl Curl FC A 14 4 3 7 1 20 30 -10 15 0

6 CC Strikers FC 14 4 1 9 0 15 43 -28 12 -1

7 Manly Vale FC 14 3 2 9 0 6 30 -24 11 0

8 Narrabeen FC 14 1 3 10 0 11 49 -38 6 0
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League - W40/1 A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Forest Killarney FC 3 3 0 0 0 13 0 13 9 0

2 Wakehurst FC 3 2 0 1 0 8 2 6 6 0

3 Manly Allambie United FC 3 1 0 2 0 3 9 -6 3 0

4 Curl Curl FC 3 0 0 3 0 0 13 -13 0 0

League - W40/1 B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Curl Curl FC A 3 3 0 0 0 7 3 4 9 0

2 Manly Vale FC 3 1 1 1 0 5 3 2 4 0

3 Narrabeen FC 3 1 1 1 0 3 4 -1 4 0

4 CC Strikers FC 3 0 0 3 0 1 6 -5 -1 -1

League - W40/2

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Curl Curl FC 14 9 1 4 0 35 19 16 28 0

2 Forest Killarney FC 14 8 3 3 0 26 11 15 27 0

3 Seaforth FC 14 8 0 6 1 22 29 -7 24 0

4 Dee Why FC 14 7 2 5 0 20 13 7 23 0

5 Manly Allambie United FC 14 6 2 6 0 24 23 1 20 0

6 Brookvale FC 14 5 2 7 0 22 30 -8 17 0

7 Pittwater RSL FC 14 4 1 9 0 34 39 -5 13 0

8 Beacon Hill FC 14 3 1 10 0 15 34 -19 10 0

League - W40/2 A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Forest Killarney FC 3 2 1 0 0 4 2 2 7 0

2 Curl Curl FC 3 1 2 0 0 3 1 2 5 0

3 Dee Why FC 3 0 2 1 0 2 3 -1 2 0

4 Seaforth FC 3 0 1 2 0 1 4 -3 1 0

League - W40/2 B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Manly Allambie United FC 3 2 0 1 0 7 6 1 6 0

2 Pittwater RSL FC 3 1 1 1 0 7 6 1 4 0

3 Brookvale FC 3 1 1 1 0 2 4 -2 4 0

4 Beacon Hill FC 3 1 0 2 0 4 4 0 3 0
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League - W40/3 

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Wakehurst FC 15 14 1 0 0 42 8 34 43 0

2 CC Strikers FC 15 11 1 3 0 38 12 26 34 0

3 BTH Raiders SC 15 6 3 6 0 16 15 1 21 0

4 Forest Killarney FC 15 6 2 7 1 20 18 2 20 0

5 Manly Allambie United FC A 15 4 1 10 0 14 35 -21 13 0

6 Manly Allambie United FC B 15 0 0 15 0 2 44 -42 0 0

League - W40/3 A

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Wakehurst FC 3 3 0 0 0 4 0 4 9 0

2 CC Strikers FC 3 2 0 1 0 8 3 5 6 0

3 Forest Killarney FC 3 0 1 2 0 0 1 -4 1 0

4 BTH Raiders SC 3 0 1 2 0 0 5 -5 1 0

League - W40/3 B

Pos Team P W D L Forf. GF GA GD PTS Adj.

1 Manly Allambie United FC B 1 1 0 0 0 2 0 2 3 0

2 Manly Allambie United FC A 1 0 0 1 0 0 2 -2 0 0
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MANLY WARRINGAH FOOTBALL ASSOCIATION Ltd

Seventy Fifth Annual General Meeting 

MINUTES

Monday 28th November 2022 7.30pm

Item 1 Welcome and confirmation of Chair for the meeting

As David Wilson had recently had an operation, Terry Gatward was confirmed as 
Chairman for the meeting, which commenced at 7.36pm.

Terry welcomed all attendees to the 75th Annual General Meeting. He thanked all Clubs 
and the MWFRA for their efforts on behalf of the Board and MWFA.

The life members were also welcomed – Linda Ward, Rhonda Ferguson, Ed Neill, Don 
Gale, John Mesite and Jackie Higgins.

Item 2 Attendees (as per attendance book)

Item 3 Apologies

Apologies were received from Stuart Nairn, Trevor Watson, Leon Brilman, Keith Pester, 
Andrew Bustos, Alex Green, Ray Fanning and Jeff Smit.

Item 4 Quorum

A quorum was confirmed as present.

Item 5 Proxy appointments

There were no proxy appointments.

Item 6 Confirm the Minutes of the 2020 AGM

Confirmation was moved by Richard Pike, seconded by Toby Williams. 

THE MOTION WAS CARRIED BY MEMBERS

Item 7 Matters Arising from the 2020 AGM minutes

There were none.

Item 8 Presentation of Meritorious Service Awards
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8.1 Stephen Calacouras (Forest Killarney Football Club) 
Steven has been a vibrant member of the MWFA community for 20 years, 
with Wakehurst, CC Strikers and more recently with Forest Killarney, acting 
as coach, manager, volunteer and committee member. Steve has a particular 
passion for matchday set up at Melwood and has been a driving force in the 
enhancement of the women’s and girls’ program at Forest Killarney. For his 
service to the Forest Killarney Football Club and the MWFA competitions, we 
are delighted to award Steven Calacouras the MWFA Meritorious Service 
Award. 

The MWFA presented Stephen Calacouras with a Meritorious Service Award.

8.2 Alan Glixman (Seaforth Football Club) 
Alan, or “Al” as he is affectionately known has been involved as a coach and 
manager since his sons started playing football. Al joined the Seaforth 
committee in 2008 assisting with training, ground and team coordination 
before stepping up to take on the role of Club Secretary. In recent years he has 
taken on the added responsibilities around COVID plans and compliance, and 
upgrading the club website and taking on added roles to fill gaps. For his 
service to Seaforth and the MWFA competitions, we are delighted to award 
Alan Glixman the MWFA Meritorious Service Award. 

The MWFA presented Alan Glixman with a Meritorious Service Award.

8.3 Giuseppe Guerrera (Forest Killarney Football Club) 
Giuseppe has been a hard-working part of the Forest Killarney Club for the past 
13 years. As with most members of committees, he joined the club as a coach 
of his son’s U6 team and quickly progressed to coach and manage other teams 
before joining the committee in 2015. He spent time as the Club’s Technical 
Director but more recently has been the Club President since 2019. For his 
service to the Forest Killarney Football Club and the MWFA competitions, we 
are delighted to award Giuseppe Guerrera the MWFA Meritorious Service 
Award. 

The MWFA presented Giuseppe Guerrera with a Meritorious Service Award.

8.4 David Schmidt (Mosman Football Club) 
David has been a member of Mosman Football Club for 50 years, having 
started as a 6-year-old player. He still plays to this day but it is his 
contribution off the field that warrants praise. David has filled almost every 
position at Mosman from team manager to age manager, committee 
member, vice president, Delegate to the MWFA and coach. For his service to 
Mosman and the MWFA competitions, we are delighted to award David 
Schmidt the MWFA Meritorious Service Award. 

The MWFA presented David Schmidt with a Meritorious Service Award.

Item 9 Nomination of Life Members 
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There were two nominations for Life Membership.

9.1 David Brennan

In line with the MWFA Ltd Constitution, MWFA Director Joseph Sorbara forwarded a 
proposal for David Brennan to be nominated as a Life Member to the MWFA Board 
for their consideration. The MWFA Board has nominated David Brennan to be elected 
as a Life Member by Special Resolution at the 2022 AGM. 

Background

David was Vice President -Juniors on the MWFA Management Committee from 2006 
until 2019, when the new Board structure commenced. In this role David was 
passionate about ensuring decisions made were in the best interests of all junior 
participant’s enjoyment. This included participation, inclusiveness, fairness in 
competitions and making changes when required to keep younger players in the 
game longer. David has continued to be an active and essential member of the 
Grading Committee. He has actively led the Grading Committee, including the 
preparation of the grading protocols and information that has been essential in 
improving the information available to assist the Grading Committee. David dedicates 
significant hours to this task covering all age groups that require grading from under 
12’s right through to the oldest age groups and includes all grades and divisions. 
David also provides invaluable insight and analysis with the sub junior grades when it 
comes to regrading those teams for all age groups after the initial few rounds of the 
year. 

David is a progressive thinker and has always upheld the MWFA ideals to improve the 
experience of all players, young or old, Premier League or Division 8 as his primary 
goal while being unafraid to propose new or different ideas, no matter how different 
they are from custom and practice. David has been on the Committee at Wakehurst 
for 15 years, since 2008 as Vice President - Youth and now also Treasurer. He's also 
been Competition Secretary. David has also been a key part of the reestablishment of 
the Wakehurst Summer Football competition. David has used the Summer Football 
competition to test the sum of his innovative ideas such as the Swiss System which is 
a round-robin-style tournament where rather than each competitor playing every 
other competitor, each competitor plays only other competitors that have won a 
similar number of games. 

David has an enviable coaching record at Wakehurst FC, winning many Major & 
Minor Premierships, two State Cups and two Champion of Champions. He has also 
coached two teams in the same year at least 8 times. 

David’s commitment and dedication to the game of football is deserving of being 
awarded life membership of the MWFA. 

Terry Gatward asked if anyone wanted to speak for or against David’s nomination.

Greg Dick (President, Wakehurst FC) spoke in support of the nomination in that David 
Brennan epitomises everything that is good about grassroots football. David Brennan 
is as much, if not more, interested in lower divisions as he is in Premier League and if 
there were more people like him it would be wonderful.
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Rhonda Ferguson (MWFA Board member and MWFA Life Member) agreed with 
the nomination for the effort and time David has put in over the decades he has 
been involved in football and for his commitment for structured change during his 
tenure as Vice-President role. 

THE MOTION WAS CARRIED BY MEMBERS

9.2 Jeff Smit
In line with the MWFA Ltd Constitution, MWFA Director and Life Member Linda 
Ward forwarded a proposal for Jeff Smit to be nominated as a Life Member to the 
MWFA Board for their consideration. The MWFA Board has nominated Jeff Smit to 
be elected as a Life Member by Special Resolution at the 2022 AGM. 

Background 

Jeff Smit has played, coached, managed, refereed, sponsored and been on the 
committee of either a local soccer club or MWFA for the past 30 years. 

Jeff started playing for Curl Curl in the Under 6s and continued to play with them 
for 17 years. He played senior football with Cromer, Collaroy Plateau and one year 
with Long Reef. He has played PL for Pittwater, Wakehurst and St. Augustine’s. 

Jeff moved to the Central Coast in 1989 where he joined Killarney District Soccer 
Club. He played in their senior team and the boys started playing in their Under 5s 
competition. He coached one of their teams each year and joined the committee 
and was the Senior President. He also ran the canteen and was on field set up 
most Sundays. 

On his return to Sydney in 1998 Jeff settled in Frenchs Forest, near Lionel Watts 
reserve, hence Wakehurst became his new club. It didn’t take long before he was 
running the Hews Parade Canteen and then the Bantry Bay Road canteen. Jeff 
coached or managed one or two of his children each season. He played goalkeeper 
for the Premier League. He was also on the Wakehurst committee and assisted 
with all the grading days and team allocations. 

His sons went to St. Augustine’s. Again, he took on canteen duties and ran the 
Grahams canteen for several years. Jeff was St. Augustine’s Registrar for a few 
years (until the school took over the role), he also assisted with the gradings, team 
allocations and coached a team for a number of years. 

Jeff started refereeing when he became a Cadet Referee at 14 years old, a branch 
entrant at 16 and then onward to complete his Level 2 certificate and referee all 
grades including Premier League. Jeff became Vice President of MWFA in 2006 and 
held that position until he became President in 2015, a position he held for 5 
years. 

Jeff has also served as a Member of the Manly United, Manly Warringah District 
Soccer Football Club Boards as well as numerous committees both with MWFA and 
Football NSW through his position. 

In 2019, as a Committee Member of the Manly Warringah District Soccer Football 
Club, Jeff became the major driver in the re-development of the Cromer Park 
Clubhouse facility. Which came to fruition with its re-opening in October 2021.
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Jeff has been a long standing, dedicated member of the football family of Manly 
Warringah over many years. Linda Ward felt his dedication and commitment should 
be recognised with the awarding of Life Membership of the MWFA. 

Terry Gatward asked if anyone wanted to speak for or against Jeff’s nomination. 
There were no speakers. 

THE MOTION WAS CARRIED BY MEMBERS

Item 10 Presentation and adoption of 2022 Annual Report

Terry Gatward congratulated the MWFA Office staff (Alysha, Lee-Anne and Sophie) 
on the presentation of the Annual Report, noting that it is an important record of 
history of the operations of the business of football. 

The 2022 Annual report also included the 2022 Financial Report. 

Terry Gatward called for a motion that the Annual Report be accepted by the 
meeting. This was motioned by Toby Williams, and seconded by Greg Dick. THE 

MOTION WAS CARRIED BY MEMBERS

Item 11 Presentation of the 2022 Financial Report

Joseph Sorbara reported that Paul Turner and Michael Ellis, Auditors, had formally 
signed off the accounts with the MWFA showing a profit of $120,419 before 
Development Levy ($272,167 after Development Levy). Due to the season severely 
impacted by rain, this allowed for savings in referee fees and other cost savings to 
provide the final result. $750,000 had been set aside from COVID payments from 
2021, of which $717,979 had been given back to all players via discounted fees for 
2022 season. 

After review and recommendation of the financial statements to the Board, they 
show the MWFA Ltd to be in a robust financial position, with currently $2,000,000 
cash reserves, including $760,000 approximately in the Development Levy, 
investment in the building considered a significant asset worth approximately 
$1,000,000. There were also end of year liabilities that have been paid such as 
Northern Beaches Council ground hire fees and end of season fees that had not been 
paid by the end of September. 

The Board reflected on this position to form its view on the budget for next season.

Item 12 Adoption of 2023 Budget (including consideration of Honorariums)

Joseph Sorbara stated the Board had reflected on the prepared financial statements 
to form its view on the budget for next season, including the aim to keep fees 
unchanged. However, after discussing initiatives for the 2023 season this was not 
achievable for all players with Football NSW and Football Australia increasing their 
fees and some alterations to the referees' fees for different age groups. On an 
operating level it is projected there will be a loss of $163,000.
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Funds will be utilised to assist MWFRA in recruiting senior referees. It is worthwhile 
noting that Football NSW will remove registration fees for referees. $10,000 will be 
used to target recruiting senior referees. 

There have been some fee increases in other areas from Football NSW and the FFA 
which will be passed on. The budget also allows for expenses associated with the 75th 
anniversary celebration of the MWFA. Accrual costs, including legal fees, are included 
in the budget. 

Other points to note are the $25,000 dividend from the Manly Warringah FC and 
Manly Warringah District Soccer FC as part of the Memorandum of Understanding that 
any profits from The Far Post would be shared equally between MWFA and Manly 
United FC (after retaining some funds for maintenance costs). 

Player numbers were expected to remain at 19,034 though this may increase due to 
the Men’s World Cup this year and the Women’s World Cup in 2023. Growth in female 
player numbers may materialise the following season in 2024. 

Development Levy funds would be used for small storage sheds, lights at Passmore 
Oval, and an allowance for nets and goals to be used by Clubs. David Mason confirmed 
lights at Passmore would be ready by the start of next season. 

Overall, the budget has been prepared with the aim of maintaining cash reserves at 
$2,000,000. 

After considering FFA and Football NSW fee increases for all players, referee costs for 
Premier League competitions (both Men’s and Women’s) and all age competitions 
have been adjusted. Men’s PL fees to increase by $24 ($4 to FFA and Football NSW and 
$20 for referee fee adjustment) and Women’s fees to increase by $18.90 ($4 to 
statutory bodies and $14.90 for referee adjustment). There will be no increase for all 
age Women’s and Men’s, and O/35s, O/40s and O/45s competitions. This reflects 
referee coverage. 

Costs of administration would remain the same as previous year, with the aim of 
reducing the cost of football as much as possible. Honorariums will be in line with 
2022. 

Joseph recommended the proposed budget to the Board, which had been accepted. 
Joseph and David Mason had worked closely to prepare the budget to focus on referee 
initiatives, coaching, staffing levels and it reflects what the CEO would like to be 
delivered.

 Joseph Sobara moved that the 2023 Budget, including consideration of Honorariums, 
be adopted. This was seconded by Guiseppe Guerrera. 

THE MOTION WAS CARRIED BY MEMBERS

Item 13 Presentation of the 2022 Auditors Report

Paul Turner, the Auditor, spoke to the distributed financial reports highlighting they 
were well prepared in line with Australian accounting standards. With $2,000,000 cash 
reserve and $120,000 profit for year ending 30 September 2022, MWFA Ltd was 
considered to be in a very healthy position. Internal controls were considered 
excellent.
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The auditor provided an unqualified opinion of the financial accounts.

Item 14 Appointment of Auditor for 2023

Linda Ward moved that Watson Turner Corporate Services continue as auditor in 2023. 
This was seconded by Joseph Sorbara. 
THE MOTION WAS CARRIED BY MEMBERS 

Item 15 Questions regarding the MWFA Ltd business and operations

There were none. 

Item 16 Election of Directors

As per the MWFA Ltd Constitution, two current Board members had reached the end of 
their elected term – David Wilson and Terry Gatward. 

Following calls for nominations for the Board of Directors, two people submitted 
nominations for a place on the Board (Mr David Wilson and Mr Terry Gatward). 

As per the MWFA Ltd Constitution, because the number of nominations received for 
positions on the Board was equal to the number of vacancies to be filled, David Wilson 
and Terry Gatward were declared elected for a three-year term. 

Item 17 Confirmation of Committees

I. Finance and Audit Committee 
Members of this committee are the Financial Director Joseph Sorbara, CEO David Mason 
and Terry Gatward (Director). 

II. Disciplinary Committee 
Director to be David Wilson 
Tony Cavalieri 
Ange Carey 
Mark Gale 
Iain Church 
James Raphael 
Alternates will be Leon Brilman or Joe Vescio. 

III. Appeals Committee 
Chairman will be Ed Neill 
Warren Meppem 
Stuart Nairn 
Roy Sider 
Richard Wright 
Alternate will be Cas Greco 

IV. Competitions Committee 
Director will be Terry Gatward 
Greg Dick 
Michael Sestanovich 
John Kowtan 
Ashley Parker 
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Suzy Broughton 
David Schmidt 

V. Registration and Grading Committee 

Director will be Rhonda Ferguson 
Annette Burgoyne 
Peter Auld 
David Brennan 
James Raphael 
Brian Barkworth 
Kym Weekes 

Peter Auld (Registrar) and Annette Burgoyne (Registrar) were warmly 
congratulated on their recent Football NSW State Award. 

Item 18 Special Resolutions – Notice of Motion 

a) Adoption of 2023 Playing Rules 

The proposed amendments to the MWFA Playing Rules, as per the document 
circulated to Clubs following the October MWFA Ltd Board meeting was moved by 
Terry Gatward and seconded by Greg Dick. 

THE MOTION WAS CARRIED BY MEMBERS 

Item 19 Affiliation of Clubs 

David Mason stated that all clubs are affiliated. 

Item 20 General Business 

There was none. 

Item 21 2023 AGM 

The 76th Manly Warringah Football Club Ltd AGM in 2023 will be held on Monday 
27th November 2023. 

Item 22 Meeting Closed 

Time: The Meeting closed at 8.13pm. 
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Manly Warringah Football Association Limited

30 September 2023

The directors present their report on Manly Warringah Football Association Limited (Company) for the 

financial year ended 30 September 2023.

The date of the Annual General Meeting is 27th November 2023

The names of each person who has been a director during the year and to date of the report are: 

David Wilson (Chairman)

Linda Ward (Secretary) 

Giuseppe (Joseph) 

Sorbara Rhonda Ferguson

Terry Gatward 

David Anglicas

The number of meetings of the company's Board of Directors ("the Board") held during the year 

ended 30 September 2023, and the number of meetings attended by each director were:

Attended
Held and eligible 

to

attend

David Wilson 11 11

Linda Ward 11 11

Giuseppe (Joseph) Sorbara 10 11

Rhonda Ferguson 11 11

Terry Gatward 10 11

David Anglicas 11 11

The principal activity of Manly Warringah Football Association Limited during the financial year was to 

promote and encourage the development of playing football in the Manly Warringah area for both men 

and women.

The underlying operating loss of the Company before development levies for the financial year 

amounted to $99,837 (2022: $120,419 surplus) prior to net development levy funding. The Company 

is exempt from income tax. The operating loss achieved this year was due to a number of key 

elements being:
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Manly Warringah Football Association Limited

30 September 2023

The MWFA fee has remained largely unchanged since 2018 with the MWFA absorbing costs 

despite having to contend with two seasons of disruption through COVID and unprecedented 

rain in 2022. Following years of financial stability and prudent expenditure through growth, we 

were able to lean on our increases in reserves to absorb the increases on costs in previous 

years.

These increases included $68,421 in staff and administration costs, $74,655 increase in referees 

fees due to the completion of a full season and a $99,504 increase in money payable to use the 

fields., particularly for Mosman Council and the back payment/accrual of training ground for 

Mosman FC for 2020-2023.

These cost increases were partially offset by higher interest income in 2023 ($60,764) due to 

the significant increase in interest rates in 2023 and the donations from Manly Warringah 

District Soccer Club and Manly Warringah Football Club, totalling $30,000.

Moving forward we plan to correct the loss by reducing some costs, increasing fees (for the first 

time in 5 years), taking advantage of increased interest rates on our retained earnings and 

utilising the benefit of donations from the Manly Football Group.

The net profit for the Company for the financial year was $57,285 (2022: $ 272,167)

No significant changes in the nature of the Company's activity occurred during the financial year.

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly 

affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results of those operations or 

the state of affairs of the Company in future financial years.

The Company's operations are not regulated by any significant environmental regulations under a law 

of the Commonwealth or of a state or territory of Australia.

In the event of, and for the purpose of winding up of the Company, the amount capable of being 

called up from each member and any person or association who ceased to be a member in the year 

prior to the winding up, is limited to $10, subject to the provisions of the Company's constitution.
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The lead auditor's independence declaration in accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, 

for the year ended 30 September 2023 has been received and can be found on page 24 of the financial 

report.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of directors.

4

Giuseppe (Joseph) Sorbara 

Director

Dated:

David Wilson 

Chairman



Auditor's independence declaration to the directors of Manly 
Warringah Football Association Limited

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 September 2023, 

there have been:

no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in section 307C of the

Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.
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Watson Turner Corporate Services Pty Limited 

Suite 104, Level 1 270 Pacific Highway 

CROWS NEST NSW 2065

Dated this ........... of November 2023



Manly Warringah Football Association Limited

For the year ended 30 September 2023

Revenue from contracts with customers 5.b 2,894,649 2,863,957

Awards Night 34,364 31,909

Masters 14,595 26,282

Fines 3,735 2,709

Others 136 40

52,830 60,940

Grants and rebates 6,872 1,848

Interest income 6 66,055 5,291

MWFC Receipt 17,500 -

MWDSFC Receipt 12,500 -

3,050,406 2,932,036

Administrative expenses (708,765) (640,344)

Depreciation 10 (4,584) (4,672)

FFA Levy (341,751) (332,047)

Football NSW Levy (659,557) (625,779)

Referee fees (482,729) (408,074)

Representation funding (190,690) (190,340)

Coaching courses (35,580) (36,802)

Other costs (64,004) (54,295)

Honorariums (44,800) (44,300)

Sporting field hire (453,050) (353,546)

Competition costs (164,733) (153,439)

Player Rebate Provision - 32,021

Income tax

(99,837)

-

120,419

-

(99,837) 120,419

Development levies received 190,690 190,340

Development levies used (33,568) (38,592)

157,122 151,748

57,285 272,167

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Manly Warringah Football Association Limited

As at 30 September 2023

Cash and cash equivalents 7 2,690,450 2,467,511

Trade and other receivables 8 - 1,300

Other assets 9 7,993 25,391

2,698,443 2,494,202

Computer equipment 10,626 8,888

Furniture, fixtures and fittings 2,059 2,745

Motor vehicles 1,108 1,858

13,793 13,491

Other assets 9 1,012,317 1,012,317

1,026,110 1,025,808

3,724,553 3,520,010

Trade and other payables 11 616,303 474,315

Employee benefits 12 90,424 85,154

706,727 559,469

706,727 559,469

3,017,826 2,960,541

Opening balance 2,960,541 2,688,374

Profit for the year 57,285 272,167

3,017,826 2,960,541

3,017,826 2,960,541

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Manly Warringah Football Association Limited

For the year ended 30 September 2023

Receipts from customers 3,275,227 2,592,660

Payments to suppliers and employees (3,119,750) (3,189,424)

Receipt from grants 6,872 1,848

162,349 (594,916)

Interest received 66,055 5,291

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (5,375) (2,917)

60,680 2,374

223,029 (592,542)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,467,511 3,060,053

2,690,540 2,467,511

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Manly Warringah Football Association Limited

For the year ended 30 September 2023

The financial report covers Manly Warringah Football Association Limited as an individual entity. Manly 

Warringah Football Association Limited is a not-for-profit proprietary Company, incorporated and 

domiciled in Australia.

The functional and presentation currency of Manly Warringah Football Association Limited is Australian 

dollars.

The principal activities of the Company for the year ended 30 September 2023 was to promote and 

encourage the development of playing football in the Manly Warringah area for both man and 

women..

The financial report was authorised for issue by the Directors on 27 November 2023. 

Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated.

The Company is an entity to which ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial/Directors' Reports) 

Instrument 2016/191 applies and, accordingly amounts in the financial statements and directors' 

report have been rounded to the nearest dollar.

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in 

accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards - Simplified Disclosures issued by the Australian 

Accounting Standards Board ('AASB') and the Corporations Act 2001, as appropriate for not-for-profit 

oriented entities.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs 

modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial 

assets and financial liabilities.

Significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are presented 

below and are consistent with prior reporting periods unless otherwise stated.

The Company is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 

1997.

All borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

10



Manly Warringah Football Association Limited

For the year ended 30 September 2023

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), 

except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office 

(ATO).

Receivables and payable are stated inclusive of GST.

Cash flows in the Statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of 

cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, 

the taxation authority is classified as operating cash flows.

Financial instruments are recognised initially on the date that the Company becomes party to the 

contractual provisions of the instrument.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised 

cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification

On initial recognition, the Company classifies its financial assets into the following categories, 

those measured at:

amortised cost

fair value through profit or loss - FVTPL

fair value through other comprehensive income - equity instrument (FVOCI - equity) 

fair value through other comprehensive income - debt investments (FVOCI - debt)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the 

Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Amortised cost

The Company's financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other 

receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position.

Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective 

interest rate method less provision for impairment.

Interest income, foreign exchange gains or losses and impairment are recognised in profit or 

loss. Gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Trade receivables and contract assets

Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets have been determined using the simplified 

approach in AASB 9 which uses an estimation of lifetime expected credit losses. The

Company has determined the probability of non-payment of the receivable and contract asset 

and multiplied this by the amount of the expected loss arising from default.

The amount of the impairment is recorded in a separate allowance account with the loss being

11



Manly Warringah Football Association Limited

For the year ended 30 September 2023

recognised in finance expense. Once the receivable is determined to be uncollectable then the 

gross carrying amount is written off against the associated allowance.

Where the Company renegotiates the terms of trade receivables due from certain customers, 

the new expected cash flows are discounted at the original effective interest rate and any 

resulting difference to the carrying value is recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

Impairment of other financial assets measured at amortised cost are determined using the 

expected credit loss model in AASB 9. On initial recognition of the asset, an estimate of the 

expected credit losses for the next 12 months is recognised. Where the asset has experienced 

significant increase in credit risk then the lifetime losses are estimated and recognised.

The Company measures all financial liabilities initially at fair value less transaction costs, 

subsequently financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 

method.

The financial liabilities of the Company comprise trade payables, bank and other loans and lease 

liabilities.

The Company has adopted all standards which became effective for the first time at 30 September 

2023, the adoption of these standards has not caused any material adjustments to the reported 

financial position, performance or cash flow of the company.

The directors make estimates and judgements during the preparation of these financial 

statements regarding assumptions about current and future events affecting transactions and 

balances.

These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing 

the financial statements, however as additional information is known then the actual results may differ 

from the estimates.

The Company assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluating conditions 

specific to the Company that may be indicative of impairment triggers. Recoverable amounts of 

relevant assets are reassessed using value-in-use calculations which incorporate various key 

assumptions.
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Manly Warringah Football Association Limited

For the year ended 30 September 2023

The core principle of AASB 15 is that revenue is recognised on a basis that reflects the transfer 

of promised goods or services to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration the 

Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services.

Generally, the timing of the payment for sale of goods and rendering of services corresponds 

closely to the timing of satisfaction of the performance obligations, however where there is a 

difference, it will result in the recognition of a receivable, contract asset or contract liability.

None of the revenue streams of the Company have any significant financing terms as there is 

less than 12 months between receipt of funds and satisfaction of performance obligations.

Where the amounts billed to customers are based on the achievement of various milestones 

established in the contract, the amounts recognised as revenue in a given period do not 

necessarily coincide with the amounts billed to or certified by the customer.

When a performance obligation is satisfied by transferring a promised good or service to the 

customer before the customer pays consideration or the before payment is due, the

Company presents the contract as a contract asset, unless the Company's rights to that amount 

of consideration are unconditional, in which case the Company recognises a receivable.

When an amount of consideration is received from a customer prior to the entity transferring a 

good or service to the customer, the Company presents the contract as a contract liability.

Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Company is entitled to it.

13



Manly Warringah Football Association Limited

For the year ended 30 September 2023

Administration and finances 506,583 505,026

Levies collected on behalf of others 1,277,512 1,233,482

Referees fees 451,761 465,906

Playing fees 309,057 310,688

Coach and training fees 3,027 2,782

Representation funding 346,709 346,073

2,894,649 2,863,957

Grants 6,872 1,848

Other revenue from other sources 52,830 60,940

2,954,351 2,926,745

Interest income 66,055 5,291

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments 

which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant 

risk of change in value.

Cash at bank 1,076,750 891,386

Short-term deposits 1,613,700 1,576,125

2,690,450 2,467,511

As at 30 September 2023, there is $925,245 (2022: $768,123) held in the sports field development 

fund.
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Manly Warringah Football Association Limited

For the year ended 30 September 2023

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash flows is reconciled to items 

in the statement of financial position as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents 2,690,450 2,467,511

Trade receivables - 10,175

Provision for impairment - (8,875)

- 1,300

The carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due to 

the short-term nature of the balances.

Prepayments 7,993 25,391

MWFC LTD (Mortgage) 31,969 31,969

MWDSFC Ltd (Building Unsecured Loan) 164,348 164,348

MWDSFC (Unsecured Loan) 816,000 816,000

1,012,317 1,012,317

In 2021, the MWFA contributed $816,000 to the Cromer Park Clubhouse redevelopment project. This 

investment is protected by a memorandum of Understanding that ensures that this balance will be 

secured by a mortgage over the Cromer Park Clubhouse building and land. As well, the MWFA will be 

granted the use of its offices rent-free for 22 further years until 2045.

In relation to the currently unsecured loans, the MWDSFC will register a mortgage for the MWFA on 

the Cromer Park Clubhouse building and land to $980,348 (2022: $980,348). This process should be 

finalised in early 2024.
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Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any 

accumulated depreciation and impairment.

Property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over 

the asset's useful life to the Company, commencing when the asset is ready for use.

Leased assets and leasehold improvements are amortised over the shorter of either the unexpired 

period of the lease or their estimated useful life.

The estimated useful lives used for each class of depreciable asset are shown below:

Computer equipment 

Furniture, fixtures and fittings 

Motor vehicles

4 - 10 years

4 - 10 years

6.5 years

At the end of each annual reporting period, the depreciation method, useful life and residual value of 

each asset is reviewed. Any revisions are accounted for prospectively as a change in estimate.

When an asset is disposed, the gain or loss is calculated by comparing proceeds received with its 

carrying amount and is taken to profit or loss.

Computer equipment 10,626 8,888

Furniture, fixtures and fittings 2,059 2,745

Motor vehicles 1,108 1,858

13,793 13,491

Opening balance 8,888 2,745 1,858 13,491

Additions 4,883 - - 4,883

Depreciation (3,145) (686) (750) (4,581
)

10,626 2,059 1,108 13,793

At cost 24,337 131,653 5,000 160,990

Accumulated depreciation (13,711) (129,594) (3,892) (147,197
)

10,626 2,059 1,108 13,793
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Opening balance 9,053 3,585 2,608 15,246

Additions 2,917 - - 2,917

Depreciation (3,082) (840) (750) (4,672
)

8,888 2,745 1,858 13,491

At cost 19,453 131,653 5,000 156,106

Accumulated depreciation (10,565) (128,908) (3,142) (142,615)

8,888 2,745 1,858 13,491

Trade payables 464,437 355,560

GST payable 37,956 9,571

Superannuation Payable 14,992 13,574

PAYG Tax Payable 12,518 10,928

Other trade and other payables 86,400 84,682

616,303 474,315

Trade and other payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 30 days. The 

carrying value of trade and other payables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due to the 

short-term nature of the balances.

Provision is made for the Company's liability for employee benefits, those benefits that are expected to 

be wholly settled within one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the 

liability is settled, plus related on-costs.

Long service leave 50,210 43,212

Annual leave 40,214 41,942

90,424 85,154

The Company is exposed to a variety of financial risks through its use of financial instruments.

The Company‘s overall risk management plan seeks to minimise potential adverse effects due to the 

unpredictability of financial markets.

The most significant financial risks to which the Company is exposed to are described below:

17



Liquidity risk 

Credit risk

Market risk - currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk

The principal categories of financial instruments used by the Company are: 

Trade receivables

Cash at bank 

Bank overdraft

Trade and other payables 

Floating rate bank loans

Cash and cash equivalents 2,690,450 2,467,511

Trade and other receivables - 1,300

2,690,450 2,468,811

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment of the Company’s financial risk 

management framework. This includes the development of policies covering specific areas such as 

foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, credit risk and the use of derivatives.

Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions 

and the Company’s activities.

The day-to-day risk management is carried out by the Company’s finance function under policies and 

objectives which have been approved by the Board of Directors. The Chief Executive Officer has been 

delegated the authority for designing and implementing processes that follow the objectives and policies. 

This includes monitoring the levels of exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risk and 

assessment of market forecasts for interest rate and foreign exchange movements.

The Board of Directors receives monthly reports which provide details of the effectiveness of the 

processes and policies in place.

Mitigation strategies for specific risks faced are described below:

Liquidity risk arises from the Company’s management of working capital and the finance charges and 

principal repayments on its debt instruments. It is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in 

meeting its financial obligations as they fall due.

The Company’s policy is to ensure that it will always have sufficient cash to allow it to meet its liabilities 

as and when they fall due. The Company maintains cash and marketable securities to meet its liquidity 

requirements for up to 30-day periods. Funding for long-term liquidity needs is additionally secured by an 

adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to sell long-term financial assets.

Liquidity needs are monitored in various time bands, on a day-to-day and week-to-week basis, as well a 

rolling 30-day projection. Long-term liquidity needs for a 180-day and a 360-day period are identified 

monthly.
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At the reporting date, these reports indicate that the Company expected to have sufficient liquid 

resources to meet its obligations under all reasonably expected circumstances and will not need to draw 

down any of the financing facilities.

The timing of cash flows presented in the table to settle financial liabilities reflects the earliest 

contractual settlement dates and does not reflect management's expectations that banking facilities will 

be rolled forward. The amounts disclosed in the table are the undiscounted contracted cash flows and 

therefore the balances in the table may not equal the balances in the statement of financial position due 

to the effect of discounting.

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a 

financial loss to the Company.

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and deposits with 

banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposure to wholesale and retail customers, including 

outstanding receivables and committed transactions.

The credit risk for liquid funds and other short-term financial assets is considered negligible, since the 

counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company did not have any contingencies at 2023 (2022: None).

The Company's main related parties are Manly Warringah Football Club Limited, Manly United Football 

Club Limited and Manly Warringah District Soccer Football Club Limited.

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

MWFC Ltd (Mortgage) - 17,500 31,969

MWDSFC Ltd (Building Unsecured Loan) - 12,500 164,348

MWDSFC (Unsecured Loan) - - 816,000

MUFC Ltd 190,690 - -

In 2021, the MWFA contributed $816,000 to the Cromer Park Clubhouse redevelopment project. This 

investment is protected by a Memorandum of Understanding that ensures that this balance will be 

secured by a mortgage over the Cromer Park Clubhouse building and land, that will be registered in 

early 2024. Also, the MWFA will be granted the use of its offices rent-free until 2045.
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During the year, the MWFA had the following transactions with related parties:-

Manly United Football Club Limited $190,690 (2022: $190,340) cash contribution for 

representative teams. As well, the MWFA provides office staff support and pays for the 

Cromer Park lease fee and maintenance which is primarily utilised by Manly United Football 

Club. The value of these services amounted to $195,260 (2022: $155,733).

Manly Warringah Football Club Limited $17,500 cash receipt for donation.

Manly Warringah Soccer Football Club Limited $12,500 cash receipt for donation.

The Company remains confident that any amounts owed by associated entities as at 30 September 

2023 as shown in note 10 are fully recoverable. All transactions were made on normal commercial 

terms and conditions and at market rates and are secured by an agreement to establish a 

mortgage for the total amount owed to the MWFA.

Compensation

The aggregate compensation made to Directors and other members of key management personnel 

of the company is set out below:

Aggregate compensation 179,500 178,000

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly 

affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results of those operations, or 

the state of affairs of the Company in future financial years.

The registered office and principal place of business of the Company is: 

Manly Warringah Football Association Limited

101 South Creek 

Road Cromer NSW 

Australia 2099
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Manly Warringah Football Association Limited

The directors of the Company declare that:

The financial statements and notes for the year ended 30 September 2023 are in accordance with the

Corporations Act 2001 and:

comply with Australian Accounting Standards; and

give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 September 2023 and of the 

performance for the year ended on that date of the Company.

In the directors' opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its 

debts as and when they become due and payable with the continuing support of creditors.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

21

Giuseppe (Joseph) Sorbara 

Director

Dated:

David Wilson

Director



Independent audit report to the members of Manly Warringah 
Football Association Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Manly Warringah Football Association Limited 

(the Company), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 September 2023, the 

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and 

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements and the 

Directors' declaration.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Company is in accordance with the

Corporations Act 2001, including:

1. giving a true and fair view of the Company's financial position as at 30 September 2023 and of 

its financial performance for the year ended; and

2. complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under 

those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 

Report section of our report. We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the auditor 

independence requirements of the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical 

Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our 

audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our opinion.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in 

accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management 

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report is free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 

process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
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misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 

if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

Watson Turner Corporate Services Pty Limited 

Suite 104, Level 1 270 Pacific Highway 

CROWS NEST NSW 2065

Dated this ........... of November 2023
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